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QEP Resources Inc NYSEQEP is leading independent

energy company focused on the exploration production

gathering processing and marketing of natural gas natural

gas liquids and crude oil in the continental United States

QEP is actively involved in several of North Americas most

prolific resource plays QEP has large inventory of identified

development drilling locations primarily in the Williston

Basin in North Dakota the Pinedale Anticline in western

Wyoming the Haynesville/Cotton Valley plays in north

western Louisiana the Uinta Basin in eastern Utah the

Anadarko Basin in Oklahoma and Texas and other proven

properties in the Rockies and Midcontinent At the end of

2012 QEP had estimated proved reserves of 3936 Bcfe

Headquartered in Denver Colorado QEP employs more than

900 people in eight states and is an SP 500 Index member

QEP Resources Inc
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QEP has track record of

strong production growth

75
MO

Annual Production in Bcfe/yr

2007 2008 2009 2010
2011 2012

2012 SCORECARD

Maximize our Health Safety and Environmental HSE performance

through an increased focus on our HSE organization policies standards

systems performance measurements and
reporting

.7 Actual
Improvements in Total Recordable Incident Rate TRIR Vehicle

Incident Rate VIR and
Spill

Rate Tc
Generate $1.4 billion of QEP Resources Adjusted EBITDA

2012 Proved Reserves
Actual $1.4 billion of Adjusted EBITDA

Grow production to 307 Bcfe with $1.2 billion of EP CAPEX

Production of 319 Bcfe with $1.3 billion of EP CAPEX excluding

0/acquisitions

Increase liquids production to over 20% of total net production up from Liquids in Proved Reserves

14% in 2011

.1 Liquids comprised 22% of total net production

Achieve QEP Field Services Adjusted EBITDA of at least $320 million

Actual $281 million of Adjusted EBITDA Despite strong operational

year Field Services Adjusted EBITDA fell short of its goal due primarily to 2012 Adjusted EBITDA
weak NGL

prices
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We are active in several

of North Americas most

economic resource plays

Northern Region
above Ii re

Southern Region
below line

2012 Reserves

3936 BrIE

2876

1060

2012 Production

319 Bcfe

158

161

LQ2._Proved Reserves

Northern Region

Willisron Basin

Pinedale

Uinea Basin

Legacy other

Northern Region

Southern Region

Mideontinent

Haynesville/

Cotton Valley

Bcfe Liquids

613 92%

1531 23%

618 33%

112 18%

530 33%

531

PROI5ELLING FUTURE ORGANIC GROWTH

QEP Energy operates in two core regionsthe Northern Region

primarily in the Rockies and the Williston Basin and the

Southern Region primarily Louisiana Oklahoma and the TExas

Panhandle The Northern Region contributed 49% of 2012

production while the Southern Region contributed 51% QEP

Energy reported 3936 Befe of estimated proved reserves at

December 31 2012 up
from 3614 Bcfe at the end of 2011

Approximately 54% of the proved reserves reported by QEP

Energy at year
end 2012 were developed Approximately 33% of

the estimated proved reserves at December 31 2012 were com

prised of crude oil and NGL up
from 24% at December 312011
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Ownership and control of

midstream assets is integral

to value maximization

FIELD SERVICES ASSETS ARE CONCENTRATED

QEP owns midstream gathering processing and treating

assets to complement its exploration and production operations

in most of the regions where QEP Energy has production

Through ownership and operation of these assets QEP is able

to better
manage

the timing and costs associated with bringing

on new production and to enhance the value received for its

products by gathering processing and treating the Companys

production In addition QEPs midstream business also

provides midstream services to third-party customers including

major and independent producers QEP generates revenues

from its midstream activities through variety of
agreements

including fee-based gathering and both fee-based and keep-

whole
processing agreements QEP Field Services assets include

more than 2000 miles of gathering lines and natural gas

processing capacity of 1.37 Bcfd

SlZ1M
2012

Capital Investment

l.3Bcfd

Processing Capacity

2000
Miles of Gathering Lines

r-t-j

$113

$170
$163

s281

Adjusted EBITDA $MM/yr
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
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FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

For QEP Resources 2012 was truly transformative
year

filled

with many significant accomplishments We posted record

Adjusted EBITDA of $1.4 billion on record production of 319

Bcfe and ended 2012 with record estimated proved reserves of

3.9 Tcfe More important we continued to successfully execute

on our multi-year strategy to rebalance our production mix

away from our sizeable exposure to natural gas Even before our

debut as standalone public company
in July 2010 we had

already begun implementing strategy to be more than just

leading low-cost developer and producer of natural gas

In 2007 our predecessor company generated annual Adjusted

EBITDA of $891 million with 82% of revenues derived from

the sale of natural gas In 2007 the NYMEX natural gas price

averaged $6.97 per MMBtu Despite these strong
natural

gas

prices and vibrant and growing business we made deliberate

decision in 2007 to diversify away from our exposure to natural

gas By the end of 2008 we had built an 87000-net-acre explor

atory leasehold position in what was to become the largest new

source of crude oil production in the United States in decades

North Dakotas Williston Basin

Our diversification strategy began to show results in 2010 as the

average annual natural gas price declined to $4.37 per MMBtu

Even in this depressed natural gas price environment we were

able to deliver annual Adjusted EBITDA of $1.1 billion 28%

increase over 2007 Through successful delineation drilling we

substantially de-risked our Williston Basin acreage
while Field

Services embarked upon major program to expand our mid

stream business through the construction of new gathering and

processing facilities

Thanks to the ongoing successful development of our Williston

Basin acreageand company-record $1.4 billion acquisition of

properties in the Williston Basin which closed on September 27

2012liquids production jumped to 22% of total production

in 2012 and was at 27% in the fourth quarter of 2012 The suc

cess of this diversification is also evident in our financial results

Despite record Adjusted EBITDA of $1.4 billion only 39% of

QEP Resources 2012 operating revenues were derived from the

sale of natural gas

QEP ENERGY

QEP Energys net production was record 319 Bcfe in 2012

16% increase over 2011 volumes Segment Adjusted EBITDA

was record $1.1 billion in 2012 7% increase from 2011

despite 15% decrease in net realized natural gas prices and

24% decrease in net realized NGL prices The decline in natural

gas
and NGL prices was more than offset by growth in combined

crude oil and NGL production up 81% from 2011 Our

commodity price risk-management program
also performed as

designed Settled commodity derivatives added $366 million to

our 2012 Adjusted EBITDA

QEP Energys 2012 year-end estimated proved reserves increased

to 3.9 Tefe up 9% from 2011 levels Crude oil and NGL reserves

grew by 52% in 2012 compared to 2011 and now represent 33%

of proved reserves up
from 24% in 2011 Despite 33% decline in

the natural gas price used to calculate 2012 year-end estimated

proved reserves our negative price-related reserve revisions were

among the lowest in the industry and serve as testament to the

quality of QEP Energys reserve base

During the third quarter
of 2012 QEP Energy closed on its

Williston Basin acquisition adding approximately 125 million

barrels of crude oil equivalent to its proved and probable reserves

These properties combined with QEPs existing acreage in

North Dakota will serve as the foundation for QEPs crude oil

production growth for the next several years

QEP FIELD SERVICES

Field Services had very successful year operationally with record

gathering and processing volumes but lower NGL prices nega

tively impacted financial results Adjusted EBITDA for Field

Services declined to $281 million in 2012 down from record

$320 million in 2011 Field Services fee-based processing revenues

increased 40% from 2011 due to higher processing volumes and

per-unit revenue reflecting full
year

of operation at our Blacks

Fork II cryogenic gas processing plant and an overall
strategic

shift

toward fee-based processing arrangements Gathering volume

and unit revenue both increased slightly
from the prior year

During 2012 Field Services began construction on the 150

MMcfd Iron Horse II cryogenic gas processing plant in the

Uinta Basin of eastern Utah The plant which was completed

and operational in February 2013 is contracted under long-term

fee-based processing agreements
In southwest Wyoming Field

Services also began construction of 10000-barrel-per-day

expansion of the fractionation facilities at our Blacks Fork

processing complex When complete in mid-2013 fractionation

capacity at Blacks Fork will total 15000 barrels
per day To sup

port
the expansion QEP is doubling the existing railcar-loading

capacity at Blacks Fork to facilitate access to what are often

higher-value local regional and national NGL markets

QEP Resources Inc p.10



32%

22

13

12
____

Liquids of Total Net Production

2007 2008 2009 2010

Forecast

2011 2012 2013F

Liquids of Total Proved Reserves

2007 2008 2009 2010 201 2012

LOOKING AHEAD TO 2013 AND BEYOND..

As we look forward to 2013 and beyond the future of QEP is

bright Weve successfully executed on our strategy to rebalance

our production mix away from one dominated by natural
gas

With our existing assets and recent acquisitions in North Dakotas

Will iston Basin we have built solid asset base and inventory of

future development locations to grow crude oil production in

2013 and beyond The search continues for additional
organic

growth opportunities and bolt-on acquisitions to broaden and

deepen that inventory While the focus of this letter and our

efforts of late have been decidedly directed toward
growing crude

oil production QEP remains one of the lowest cost most efficient

developers and producers of natural
gas

in North America We
have deep high-quality inventory of natural gas development

locations in world-class assets like the Pinedalc Antieline the

Uinta Basin and the Cana and Haynesville shale plays

As write this letter North American natural
gas markets remain

oversupplied but there are signs that the situation is improving

In response to declining gas-directed drilling activity North

American natural
gas production appears to have finally

plateaued and in some dry gas plays production is in decline

While the decline in NGL prices appears to have dampened the

industrys enthusiasm for many of the marginal liquids-rich gas

plays demand for natural gas continues to grow Natural gas

consumption in the electric
power generation sector set new

records in 2012 thanks in part to very competitive natural
gas

prices but also due to the inherent environmental advantages of

natural
gas over competing fossil fuels Industrial demand is

headed
up too as energy-intensive businesses from petrochemi

cals to steel announce plans to build new facilities to take

advantage of clean abundant U.S natural gas Finally natural

gas is also making inroads into the transportation sector as

vehicle owners and
operators are attracted to the compelling

economies and environmental advantages of natural
gas over

liquid fuels in trucks buses and cars

So while we focus on driving growth in crude oil production in

the near termwith some of the best gas assets in North

America and track record of low-cost leadership in drilling

completion and productionQEP is well positioned to benefit

from increased natural
gas demand both now and in the future

IN CONCLUSION

For QEP Resources 2012 was pivotal year Our deep portfolio

of
upstream and midstream projects is managed by some of the

most creative innovative and hardest working women and men

in our industry We maintain
corporate culture that is focused

on safe and reliable operations on minimizing our impact on the

environment and on giving back to the communities in which

we live and work We all have constant focus on enhancing

long-term shareholder value by continuing to be best-in-class

low-cost producer by focusing our investments on the highest

return projects in our portfolio and by maximizing the value of

our production We run our business with financial discipline

designed to ensure that we can withstand commodity price

volatility and take advantage of opportunities as they arise am

proud of what we have accomplished And am excited about

where we are headed

On behalf of QEPs board of directors management and

dedicated employees thank
you for your investment in our

company We
manage this business for you and we come to

work every day mindful of the trust that
you place in us when

you buy QEP shares

Sincerely

Charles Stanley

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

33%

24

11

14

28/
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2013 Goals

Maximize our Health Safety and Environmental HSE performance through an increased focus

on our HSE organization policies standards systems performance measurements and reporting

Generate $1.57 billion of QEP Resources Adjusted EBITDA

Increase crude oil production by at least 65% from 2012 levels

QEP Resources

Financial Highlights dollars in millions
2010 2011 2012

Adjusted EBITDA $1141 1387 $1416

Total Assets
6785 7443 9109

Capital Expenditures
1469 1431 2800

Long-term Debt
1531 1679 3207

Total Equity
3063 3352 3314

Total Capitalization
4594 5032 6521

Debt to Total Capitalization
33% 33% 49%

Debt to Adjusted EBITDA 1.3x 1.2x 2.3x

Production Bcfe
229 275 319

Proved Reserves Bcfe
3031 3614 3936

%Reserve Liquids

14% 24% 33%

Adjusted
EBITDA isa non-GAAP financial measure Refer to Item of Part II of the Form 10-K included in this Annual Report 2012 for managements definition and

reconciliation to net income of this non-GAAP financial measure

QEP Resources Inc pl2
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31 2012

001-34778

Commission File No Received SEC

APR 162013

Washington DC 20549

QEP RESOURCES INC
Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter

STATE OF DELAWARE 87-0287750

State or other jurisdiction of incorporation I.R.S Employer Identification No

1050 17th Street Suite 500 Denver Colorado 80265

Address of principal executive offices

Registrants telephone number including area code 303-672-6900

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

Common stock $0.01 par value New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Act None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act

Yes NoD
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursUant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the

Act Yes No EI

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to

file such reports and has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes l1 No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate website if any every

Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T Section 232.405 of this

chapter during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such

files Yes No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and

will not be contained to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by
reference in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K lJ

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or

smaller reporting company See defmitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in

Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer Do not check if smaller reporting company Smaller reporting company

QEP Resources Inc

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule l2b-2 of the Exchange Act Yes No fI



State the aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed by reference to

the price at which the common equity was last sold or the average bid and asked price of such common equity as of the last

business day of the registrants most recently completed second fiscal quarter June 30 2012 $5327744063

At January 31 2013 there were 178551744 shares of the registrants $0.01 par value common stock outstanding

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Part III is incorporated by reference from the registrants Defmitive Proxy Statement for its 2013 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A no later than 120 days after the close of the registrants fiscal year
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Where You Can Find More Information

QEP Resources Inc QEP or the Company files annual quarterly and current reports with the Securities and Exchange

Commission SEC Prior to QEPs Spin-off from Questar Corporation described in more detail in Item of Part of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K QEPs predecessor Questar Market Resources Inc filed annual quarterly and current reports

with the SEC QEP also regularly files proxy statements and other documents with the SEC These reports and other

information can be read and copied at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 StreetN.E Washington D.C 20549-0213

Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the Public Reference Room The SEC also

maintains an Intemet site at http/Iwww.sec.gov that contains reports proxy and information statements and other information

regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC including QEP

Investors can also access fmancial and other information via QEPs website at www.qepres.com QEP makes available free of

charge through the website copies of Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form l0-Q Current Reports on

Form 8-K and any amendments to such reports and all reports filed by executive officers and directors under Section 16 of the

Exchange Act reporting transactions in QEP securities Access to these reports is provided as soon as reasonably practical after

such reports are electronically filed with the SEC Information contained on or connected to QEPs website which is not

directly incorporated by reference into the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K should not be considered part of this report

or any other filing made with the SEC

QEPs website also contains copies of charters for various board committees including the Audit Committee Corporate

Governance Guidelines and QEPs Business Ethics and Compliance Policy

Finally you may request copy of filings other than an exhibit to filing unless that exhibit is specifically incorporated by

reference into that filing at no cost by writing or calling QEP 1050 17th Street Suite 500 Denver CO 80265 telephone

number 1-303-672-6900

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains or incorporates by reference information that includes or is based upon forward-

looking statements withm the meaning of Section 27A of the Secunties Act of 1933 as amended and Section 1E of the

Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Forward-looking statements give expectations or forecasts of future events You

can identifS these statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts We use words such as

anticipate estimate expect project intend plan believe and other words and terms of similarmeaning in

connection witha discussion of future operating or financial performance Forward-looking statements include statements

relating to among other things

QEPs growth strategies

natural gas oil and NGL prices and factors affecting the volatility of such prices

plans to drill or participate in wells and to defer completion of wells

results from planned drilling operations and production operations

amount and allocation of forecasted capital expenditures and plans for funding capital expenditures and operating

expenses

plans to divest of assets including plans to separate portions of gathering assets into master limited

partnership

estimated reserves

estimated accruals for loss contingencies and other items

impact of lower commodity prices

effect of recession

plans to enter into derivative contracts for portion of forecasted production

future expenses and operating costs

the ability to secure long-term gathering processing and treating contracts from third parties as required to fully

utilize the Companys midstream assets

operation of the Companys Blacks Fork II and other processing plants at assumed capacities

the amount and timing of the settlement of derivative contracts

incurrence of unrealized derivative gains and losses

the ability of QEP to use derivative instruments to manage commodity price risk and the availability to the Company

of the end-user exemption under Title VII of the Dodd-Frank Act

impact of nonperformance by trade creditors or joint venture partners



the outcome of contingencies such as legal proceedings

impact on earnings from discontinuing hedge accounting

expected contributions to the Companys pension plans

impact of recently issued accounting pronouncements

QEPs ability to develop reserves and grow production as necessary to satisfy delivery commitments and our ability

to purchase natural gas crude oil and NGL in the market to cover any shortfalls

conversion of proved undeveloped reserves to proved developed reserves

the significance of Adjusted EBITDA as measure of cash flow and liquidity

payment of dividends

potential for future asset impairments

estimated future purchase accounting adjustments

maintaining an appropriate debt rating and

future activist efforts

Any or all forward-looking statements may turn out to be incorrect They can be affected by inaccurate assumptions or by

known or unknown risks and uncertainties Many such factors will be important in determining actual future results These

statements are based on current expectations and the current economic environment They involve number of risks and

uncertainties that are difficult to predict These statements are not guarantees of future performance Actualresults could differ

materially from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements Factors that could cause actual results to differ

materially include but are not limited to the following

the risk factors discussed in Part Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

changes in natural gas oil and NGL prices

general economic conditions including the performance of financial markets and interest rates

drilling results

shortages of oilfield equipment services and personnel

lack of available pipeline capacity

QEPs inability to successfully integrate acquired assets or dispose of non-core assets

the outcome of contingencies such as legal proceedings

permitting delays

operating risks such as unexpected drilling conditions

weather conditions

changes in maintenance and construction costs including possible inflationary pressures

the availability and cost of debt and equity financing

changes in laws or regulations including the implementation of theDodd-Frank Act

climate change and other initiatives related to drilling and completion techniques including hydraulic fracturing

derivative activities

substantial liabilities from legal proceedings and environmental claims

failure of internal controls and procedures

elimination of federal income tax deductions for oil and gas exploration and development costs

future opportunities that QEPs board of directors may determine present greater potential value to stockholders than

planned divestiture of assets

regulatory approvals and compliance with contractual obligations

failure to obtain court approval or class member acceptances of settlement agreement for the Companys class action

lawsuit

actions or inaction by federal state local or tribal governments and

other factors most of which are beyond the Companys control

QEP undertakes no obligation to publicly correct or update the forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-

in other documents or on the website to reflect future events or circumstances All such statements are expressly qualified

by this cautionary statement



Glossary of Terms

Adjusted EBITDA Adjusted EBITDA is non-GAAP financial measure Management defmes Adjusted EBJTDA as net

income before the following items separation costs accrued litigation loss contingency depreciation depletion and

amortization exploration expense abandonment and impainnent gains and losses from asset sales unrealized gains and losses

on derivative contracts interest and other income loss on early extinguishment of debt interest expense income taxes and

discontinued operations

Billion

bbl Barrel which is equal to 42 U.S gallons liquid volume and is common measure of volumeof crude oil and other liquid

hydrocarbons

basis The difference between reference or benchmark commodity price and the corresponding sales price at various regional

sales points

basis-only swap derivative that swaps the basis defmed above between two sales points from floating price to fixed

price for specified commodity volume over specified time period Typically used to fix the price relationship between

geographic sales point and NYMEX reference price

Btu One British thermal unit measure of the amount of
energy required to raise the temperature of one-pound mass of

water one degree Fahrenheit at sea level

cf Cubic foot or feet is common unit of gas measurement One standard cubic foot equals the volume of gas
in one cubic foot

measured at standard conditions temperature of 60 degrees Fahrenheit and
pressure

of 30 inches of mercury

approximately 14.7 pounds per square inch

cfe Cubic foot or feet of natural gas equivalents

cryogenic processing Utilizes refrigeration by reducing gas pressure across turbo expander that reduces the gas temperature

to 100 degrees below zero Fahrenheit

cushion gas Volume of gas that must remain in natural
gas storage facility to provide the required pressure to extract the

stored or working gas volumes

developed reserves Reserves of any category that can be expected to be recovered through existing wells with existing

equipment and operating methods or in which the costoftherequired equipment is relatively minor compared to the cost of

new well See 17 C.F.R Section 4-l0a6

development well well drilled within the proved area of an oil or gas reservoir to the depth of horizon known to be

productive

dry hole well drilled and abandoned and found to be incapable of producing hydrocarbons in sufficient quantities such that

proceeds from the sale of production exceed expenses and taxes

exploratory well An exploratory well is well drilled to find new field or to fmd new reservoir in field previously found

to be productive of oil or gas in another reservoir

frac spread The difference between the market value for natural gas liquids NGL extracted from the natural gas stream and

the market value of the Btu-equivalent volume of natural
gas required to replace the extracted liquids

gas All references to gas in this report refer to natural gas

gross Gross natural gas and crude oil wells or gross acres are the total number of wells or acres in which the Company has

working interest

IFNPCR Inside the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission FERC monthly settlement index for the Northwest Pipeline

Corporation Rocky Mountains



IFPEPL Inside FERC monthly settlement index for the Panhandle Eastern Pipeline Company

keep-whole processing Processing contracts where the Company retains and sells NGL extracted at its processing plants and

keeps the customer whole by buying and delivering Btu-equivalent amount of natural gas tothe customer

LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR is the interest rate that banks charge each other for one-month three-month

six-month and one-year loans

Thousand

MM Million

Midstream Gas gathering compression treating processing and transmission assets and activities that are non-jurisdictional

Also includes certain crude oil and produced water gathering systems and related commercial activities

natural gas equivalents Oil and NUL volumes are converted to natural gas equivalents using the ratio of one barrel of crude

oil condensate or NGL to 6000 cubic feet of natural gas

natural gas liquids NGL Liquid hydrocarbons that are extracted from the natural gas stream NGL products include ethane

propane butane natural gasoline and heavier hydrocarbons

net Net gas and oil wells or net acres are determined by the sum of the fractional ownership working interest the Company

has in the gross
wells or acres

NYMEX The New York Mercantile Exchange

NYMEX WTI The price of West Texas Intermediate crude oil on the New York Mercantile Exchange

possible reserves Possible reserves are those additional reserves that are less certain to be recovered than probable reserves

probable reserves Probable reserves are those additional reserves that are less certain to be recovered than proved reserves but

which together with proved reserves are as likely as not to be recovered

proved properties Properties with proved reserves

proved reserves Proved oil and gas reserves are those quantities of oil and gas which by analysis of geoscience and

engineering data can be estimated with reasonable certainty to be economically producible from given date forward from

known reservoirs and under existing economic conditions operating methods and government regulations See 17 C.F.R

Section 4- 10a22

reserves Estimated remaining quantities of natural gas crude oil and related substances anticipated to be economically

producible by application of development projects to known accumulations In addition there must exist or there must be

reasonable expectation that there will exist the legal right to produce See 17 C.F.R Section 4-1Qa26

reservoir porous and permeable underground formation containing natural accumulation of producible natural gas and/or

oil that is confmed by impermeable rock or water bathers and is individual and separate from other reservoirs

resource play Refers to regionally distributed oil and natural gas accumulation as opposed to conventional plays which are more

limited in their area extent Resource plays are characterized by continuous aerially extensive hydrocarbon accumulations in tight

sand shale and coal reservoirs

royalty An interest in gas and oil lease that gives the owner the right to receive portion of the production from the leased

acreage or of the proceeds of the sale thereof but generally does not require the owner to pay any portion of the costs of

drilling or operating the wells on the leased acreage Royalties may be either landowners royalties which are reserved by the

owner of the minerals at the time the lease is granted or overriding royalties which are usually reserved by an owner of the

leasehold in connection with transfer to subsequent owner



seismic data An
exploration method of

sending energy waves or sound waves into the earth and
recording the wave reflections

to indicate the type size shape and depth of subsurface rock formation 2-D seismic
provides two-dimensional information

and 3-D seismic provides three-dimensional views

Trillion

undeveloped reserves Reserves of any category that are expected to be recovered from new wells on undrifled acreage or
from

existing wells where
relatively major expenditure is required for

recompletion See 17 C.F.R Section 4-lOa3
working interest An interest in gas and oil lease that gives the owner the right to drill produce and conduct

operating
activities on the leased

acreage and receive share of any production subject to all
royalties other burdens and to all capital

costs and
operating expenses
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Nature of Business

QEP Resources Inc QEP or the Company is holding company with three major lines of business natural gas and crude oil

exploration and production midstream field services and energy marketing These businesses are conducted through the

Companys three prmcipal subsidiaries

QEP Energy Company QEP Energy acquires explores for develops and produces natural gas crude oil and natural

gas liquids NGL
QEP Field Services Company QEP Field Services provides

midstream field services including natural gas

gathering processing compression and treating services for affiliates and third partfes and

QEP Marketmg Company QEP Marketmg markets affiliate and third party natural gas
and crude oil and owns and

operates an underground natural gas storage reservoir

QEP operates in the Northern and Southern Regions of the Umted States and is headquartered Denver Colorado Prmcipal

offices are located in Denver Colorado Salt Lake City Utah and Tulsa Oklahoma

Remcorporation Merger and Spm-off from Questar

Effective May 18 2010 Questar Market Resources Inc Market Resources then wholly owned public subsidiary of Questar

Corporation Questar merged with and into newly formed wholly owned subsidiary QEP Resources Inc Delaware

corporation in order to reincorporate in the State of Delaware Reincorporation Merger The Reincorporation Merger was

effected pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger entered into between Market Resources and QEP On June 30 2010

Questar distributed all of the shares of common stock of QEP held by Questar to Questar shareholders in tax-free pro rata

dividend the Spin-off Each Questar shareholder received one share of QEP common stock for each share of Questar common

stock held at the close of business on the record date In connection with the Spin-off QEP distributed Wexpro Company

Wexpro wholly owned subsidiary of QEP at the time to Questar In addition Questar contributed $250.0 million of equity

to QEP prior to the Spin-off

In connection with the reorganization QEP renamed its subsidiaries as follows

QEP Energy Company formerly Questar Exploration and Production Company

QEP Field Services Company formerly Questar Gas Management Company and

QEP Marketmg Company formerly Questar Energy Tradmg Company

The financial mformation presented this Annual Report on Form 10 presents QEPs fmancial results as an mdependent

company separate from Questar and reflects Wexpros fmancial condition and operatmg results as discontmued operations for

all penods presented summary of discontinued operations can be found in Note 13 Discontinued Operations to the

consolidated financial statements Item of Part II this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Fmancial and Operatmg Highlights

Our fmancial and operatmg highlights for 2012 mclude

Generated net mcome of $128 million or $0 72 per diluted share decrease of 52% due primarily to the accrual of

litigation loss contmgency of $115 million

Generated Adjusted EBITDA non-GAAP financial measure defmed and reconciled Item of Part II of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K of $1415 million up from $1386 million in 2011

Increased total production by 16% to 319 Bcfe and liquids oil and NGL production by 80% to 69 Bcfe

Increased total proved reserves 9% to 3.9 Tcfe and increased liquid oil and NGL proved reserves by 52% to 1.3 Tcfe

Added 572.5 Bcfe of proved reserves from extensions and discoveries

Acquired $1.4 billion of assets in QEPs existing core acreage in the Williston Basin North Dakota

Increased Field Services gathering throughput volumes NGL sales volumes and fee-based processing volumes by 2%

3% and 4% respectively and



Issued $1.15 billion of senior notes and entered into $300 million five-year term loan

Strategies

We create value for our shareholders through returns-focused growth superior execution and low cost structure To achieve
these objectives we will strive to

operate in safe and environmentally responsible manner
allocate capital to those projects that generate optimal returns

acquire businesses and assets that complement or expand our current business

maintain sustainable diverse inventory of low cost high-margin resource plays
be in the highest-potential areas of the resource plays in which we operate
build contiguous acreage positions that drive operating efficiencies

be the operator of our assets whenever possible

be the low-cost driller and producer in each area where we operate

own controlling interest in and operate midstream infrastructure in our core producing areas to capture value

downstream of the welihead

build gas processing plants to extract liquids from our natural
gas streams

gather compress and treat our production to drive down costs

support the growth of our midstream business with the intention of forming Master Limited Partnership

actively market our QEP Energy production to maximize value
utilize derivative contracts to mitigate the impact of natural gas crude oil or NGL price volatility while locking in

acceptable cash flows required to support future capital expenditures

attract and retain the best people and

maintain capital structure that allows us the necessary fmancial flexibility with which to invest in organic growth and

potential acquisition opportunities as they may arise

Exploration and Production QEP Energy Company

QEP Energy is actively involved in several of North Americas most important hydrocarbon resource plays QEP Energy has

large inventory of identified development drilling locations primarily on the Pinedale Anticline in western Wyoming the

Williston Basin in North Dakota the Haynesville/Cotton Valley in northwestern Louisiana the Uinta Basin in eastern Utah
Anadarko Basin in Oklahoma and Texas and other proven properties in Wyoming Colorado and Utah For 2013 QEP plans to

allocate approximately 91% of its capital budget to QEP Energy The following map illustrates the location of the Companys
significant exploration and production activities our Northern and Southern Regions described elsewhere in this report and
related reserve and production data as of December 31 2012

Southern 1080 Bcfe

Northern 158 Bcfe

Southern 161 Bcfe



QEPs exploration and production activities are conducted through QEP Energy which generated approximately 80% 76%

and 81% of the Companys Adjusted EBITDA refer to Item of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for managements

definition and reconciliation to net income of this non-GAAP financial measure during the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively QEP Energy operates in two core regions the Northern Region including the states of Wyoming

Utah Colorado New Mexico and North Dakota and the Southem Regioi including the states of Oklahoma Texas and

Louisiana The Northern Region contributed 49% of 2012 production while the Southern Region contributed 51% QEP

Energy reported 3936 Bcfe of estimated proved reserveS as of December 31 2012 up from 3614 Bcfe at the end of 2011 Of

those estimated proved reserves approximately 74% or 2876 Bcfe were located in the Northern Region at December 31

2012 compared to 64% or 2312 Bcfe at December 31 2011 The remaining 26% or 1061 Bcfe were located in the Southern

Region at December 31 2012 compared to 36% or 1302 Bcfe at December 31 2011 .Approximately 54% of the proved

reserves reported by QEP Energy at year end 2012 were developed Approximately 33% of the total proved reserves at

December 31 2012 were comprised of crude oil and NGL up frbm 24% at December 31 2011

During the third quarter of 2012 QEP Energy acquired oil and gas properties in the Williston Basin for an aggregate purchase

price of $1.4 billion subject to post-closing adjustments the 2012.Acquisition The acquired properties consist of

approximately 27600 net acres of producing
and undeveloped oil and gas properties in the active play area for the Bakken and

Three Forks Formations within the Williston Basin The acquired properties
added 313.8 Bcfe of proved reserves during 2012

QEP Energy faces competition in every part of its business including the acquisition of producing leaseholds and wells and

undeveloped leaseholds the marketing of natural gas
and oil and the procurement of goods services and labor Its longer-term

growth strategy depends in part on its ability to acquire reasonably-priced acreage containing undeveloped reserves and

identify and develop them in low-cost and efficient manner

The Company seeks to acquire develop and produce natural gas and oil from resource plays in its core areas Since the

existence and distribution of hydrocarbons in resource plays is well understood development of these accumulations has lower

risk than conventional discrete hydrocarbon accumulations Resource plays typically require many wells drilled at high

density to fully develop and produce the hydrocarbon accumulations Development of QEP Energys resource play

accumulations requires expertise
in drilling large numbers of complex highly deviated or horizontal wells to vertical depths

that generally range between 10000 and 14000 feet and the application of advanced well completion techniques including

hydraulic fracture stimulation to achieve economic production rates QEP Energy also continues to conduct some exploratory

drilling to determine the commerciality of its inventory of unproven leaseholds QEP Energy seeks to maintain geographical

and geological diversity with its two core regions The Company has in the past and may in the future pursue acquisition of

producing properties through the purchase of assets or corporate
entities in order to expand its presence

in its core areas or to

create new core areas

QEP Energy both directly and through QEP Marketing sells its natural gas crude oil and NGL production to variety of

customers including gas-marketing firms industrial users local-distribution companies crude oil refmers and remarketers

QEP Energy regularly evaluates counterparty credit and may require financial guarantees or prepayments from parties that fail

to meet its credit criteria

Midstream Field Services QEP Field Services Company

QEP owns midstream gathering processing
and treating systems to complement its exploration and production operations

in

most of the regions where QEP Energy has production Through ownership and operation of these facilities QEP is able to

better manage the timing and costs associated with bringing on new production and enhance the value received for its products

by gathering processing and treating the Companys production In addition QEPs midstream business also provides

midstream services to third-party customers including major and independent producers QEP generates revenues from its

midstream activities through variety of agreements including fee-based gathering processing and keep-whole processing

agreements For 2013 QEP plans to allocate approximately 7% if its capital budget to QEP Field Services to grow its

midstream business including completing the construction of its gathering system in the Uinta Basin as well as the 10000 BblI

expansion of the NGL fractionator located at the Blacks Fork processing complex expected to be completed in the second

half of 2013

The following map illustrates QEP Field Services areas of operations and the locations corresponding with QEP Energys

operating areas



QEP Field Services generated approximately 20% 23% and 18% of the Companys Adjusted EBITDA refer to Item of Part
II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for managements definition and reconciliation to net income of this non-GAAP
financial measure in the

years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively QEP Field Services owns various
natural

gas gathering treating and processing facilities in the Northern and Southern Regions as well as 78% of Rendezvous
Gas Services LLC RGS partnership that operates gas gathering facilities in western Wyoming RGS gathers natural gas for

the Pinedale Anticline and the Jonah Field producers for delivery to various interstate pipelines QEP Field Services also owns
38% of Uintah Basin Field Services LLC UBFS and 50% of Three Rivers Gathering LLC Three Rivers These two
partnerships operate natural

gas gathering facilities in eastern Utah The Rendezvous Pipeline Co LLC Rendezvous Pipeline
wholly owned subsidiary of QEP Field Services operates Federal Energy Regulatory Commission FERC regulated 21-

mile 20-inch-diameter gas transmission pipeline between QEP Field Services Blacks Fork gas processing plant and the Muddy
Creek compressor station owned by Kern River Gas Transmission Co Kern River Pipeline

Fee-based gathering and processing revenues represented 77% 70% and 78% of QEP Field Services net operating revenues

revenues less plant shrink and transportation costs during the
years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Approximately 41% 35% and 36% of QEP Field Services2012 2011 and 2010 net gas processing revenues processing
revenues less plant shrink were derived from fee-based processing agreements The

remaining revenues were derived from
keep-whole processing agreements keep-whole contract exposes QEP Field Services to frac-spread risk while fee-based
contract eliminates direct commodity price exposure To further reduce volatility associated with keep-whole contracts QEP
Field Services may enter into forward-sales contracts for NGL or NGL price derivatives and equivalent gas volume derivatives
with the intent to lock in processing margin

QEP Field Services faces regional competition with varying competitive factors each basin QEP Field Services gathering
and processing business competes with interstate and intrastate pipelines producers and independent gatherers and processors
Numerous factors impact customers choice of gathering or processing service provider mcludmg rate location term
pressure obligations timelmess of services and contract structure QEP Field Services provides natural gas gathenng
processing and treating services to affiliates and third-party producers who own producing natural gas fields in the Rocky
Mountain region the Williston Basin and in northwest Louisiana In addition to its natural

gas operations QEP Field Services
also provides crude oil and water gathering and handling to affiliates and third-party producers in the Rocky Mountain region
and the Williston Basin QEP Field Services

gas gathering processing and treating services are generally provided under long-
term agreements

QEP Energy

QEP Field Services
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Energy MarketingQEP Marketing Company

QEP Marketing provides wholesale marketing and sales of affiliate and third-party natural gas oil and NGL and generated less

than 1% of the Companys Adjusted EBITDA refer to Item of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for managements

defmition and reconciliation to net income of this non-GAAP financial measure in all of the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 As wholesale marketing entity QEP Marketing concentrateson markets in the Rocky Mountains and

Midcontinent that are either close to affiliate reserves and production or accessible by major pipelines QEP Marketing

contracts for firm-transportation capacity on pipelines and finn-storage capacity at Clay Basin large storage facility in

northeast Utah

QEP Marketing through its wholly owned subsidiary Clear Creek Storage Company LLC Clear Creek owns and operates an

underground gas-storage reservoir in southwestern Wyoming QEP Marketing uses owned and leased storage capacity together

with firm-transportation capacity to manage seasonal swings in prices in the Rocky Mountain region

QEP Marketing competes directly with large independent energy marketers marketing affiliates of regulated pipelines and

utilities and natural gas producers QEP Marketing also competes with brokerage houses energy hedge funds and other energy-

based companies offering similarservices QEP Marketing sells QEP Energys natural gas and volumes purchased from third

parties to wholesale marketers industrial end-users and utilities QEP Marketing sells QEP Energys crude oil volume to

refmers remarketers and other companies including some with pipeline facilities near company producing properties QEP

Marketing sells NGL volumes from its Clear Creek storage facility to refiner In the event pipeline facilities are not available

QEP Marketing arranges transportation of crude oil by truck or rail to storage refining or pipeline facilities

Government Regulation

QEPs business operations are subject to regulation under wide range of local state tribal and federal statutes rules orders

and regulations The regulatory burden on the oil and gas industry increases the cost of doing business and consequently affects

its profitability While QEP believes that it is in substantial compliance with currently applicable laws and regulations and has

not experienced any material adverse effect arising from these requirements there is no assurance that this trend will continue

in the future Due to the myriad of complex federal state tribal and local regulations that may affect the Company directly or

indirectly the following discussion of certain laws and regulations should not be considered an exhaustive review of all

regulatory considerations affecting QEPs operations See additional discussion of regulations under Item 1A Risk Factors in

this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Regulation of Exploration Production Gathering and Processing Activities

The regulation of oil and gas exploration and production is broad and increasingly complex area notably including laws and

regulations governing the discharge or release of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to environmental

protection These laws and regulations include the following

Clean AirAct The Clean Air Act and similar state laws regulate the emission of air pollutants from equipment and facilities

employed by QEP Energy in its business including but not limited to engines tanks dehydrators and gas processing plant

components

Greenhouse Gases Regulations and Climate Change Legislation The Environmental Protection Agency EPA published its

fmdings that emissions of carbon dioxide methane and other greenhouse gases GHG present an endangerment to public

health and the environment because such emissions are according to the EPA contributing to the warming of the earths

atmosphere and other climate changes Based on these findings the EPA adopted regulations for the measurement and reporting

of GHG emitted from certain large facilities In November 2010 the EPA expanded its GHG Reporting Rule to include onshore

oil and natural
gas production processing transmission storage and distribution facilities This rule requires reporting of GHG

emissions from such facilities on an annual basis In addition both housesof Congress have considered legislation in recent

years to reduce emissions of GHG and number of states have already taken legal measures to reduce emissions of GHG
primarily through the development of GHG inventories greenhouse gas permitting and/or regional GHG cap and trade

programs

Clean Water Act and Saft Drinking Water AcL The Clean Water Act and similar state laws regulate discharges of wastewater

oil and other pollutants to surface water bodies such as lakes rivers wetlands and streams as well as discharges to storm

water These laws also require the preparation and implementation of Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasure Plans in

connection with on-site storage of significant quantities of oil The Safe Drinking Water Act SDWA and comparable state

statutes restrict the disposal treatment or release of water produced or used during oil and gas development
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Oil Pollution Act of 1990 The Oil Pollution Act of 1990 OPA and regulations issued under OPA impose strict joint and

several liability on responsible parties for removal costs and damages resulting from oil spills into or upon navigable waters

adjoining shorelines or in the exclusive economic zone of the United States

Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 The Comprehensive Environmental

Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 CERCLA or Superfund and comparable state laws impose liability

without regard to fault or the legality of the original conduct on certain classes of persons that contributed to the release of

hazardous substance into the environment

Resource Conservation andRecoveryAct The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act RCRA is the principal federal statute

governing the treatment storage and disposal of hazardous wastes RCRA imposes stringent operating requirements and liability

for failure to meet such requirements on person
who is either generator or transporter of hazardous waste or on an owner

or operator of hazardous waste treatment storage or disposal facility RCRA and many state counterparts specifically exclude

from the defmition of hazardous waste drilling fluids produced waters and other wastes associated with the exploration

development or production of crude oil natural gas or geothermal energy It is possible however that certain exploration and

production wastes now classified as non-hazardous could be classified as hazardous waste in the future Any repeal or modification

of the oil and gas exploration and production exemption would increasethe voluhie of hazardous waste QEP is required to manage

and dispose of and would cause QEP as well as its competitors to incur increased operating expenses

Hydraulic Fracturing Regulations All wells drilled in tight sand and shale reservoirs require hydraulic fracture stimulation to

achieve economic production rates and recoverable reserves The majority of the Companys current and future production and

oil and gas reserves are derived from reservoirs that require hydraulic fracture stimulation to be commercially viable Hydraulic

fracture stimulation involves pumping fluid at high pressure into tight sand or shale reservoirs to artificially induce fractures

The artificially induced fractures allow better connection between the welibore and the surrounding reservoir rock thereby

enhancing the productive capacity and ultimate hydrocarbon recovery of each well The fracture stimulation fluid is typically

comprised of over 99% water and sand with the remaining constituents consisting of chemical additives designed to optimize

the fracture stimulation treatment and production from the reservoir The Company does not use diesel fuel in any of its

fracturing operations The Company supports disclosure of the contents of hydraulic fracturing fluids and submits information

regarding its wells and the fluids used in them to the national online disclosure registry FracFocus www.fracfocus.org

The Company obtains water for fracture stimulations from variety of sources including industrial waterwells and surface

water sources When technically and economically feasible the Company recycles flow-back and produced water which

reduces water consumption from surface and groundwater sources and reduces produced water disposal volumes The

Company believes that the employment of fracture stimulation technology does not present any significant additional risks

other than the risks generally associated with natural gas and oil drilling and production operations such as the risk of spills

releases discharges accidents and injuries to persons and property

Currently all well construction activities including hydraulic fracture stimulation are regulated by state agencies that review

and
approve

all aspects of natural
gas

and oil well design and operation Additionally the Bureau of Land Management BLM
proposed in May 2012 new regulations regarding chemical disclosure requirements and other regulations specific to well

stimulation activities including hydraulic fracturing on federal and tribal land There has been heightened debate recently

over whether the fluids used in hydraulic fracturing may contaminate drinking water supplies and proposals have been made to

revisit the environmental exemption for hydraulic fracturing under the SDWA or to enact separate federal legislation or

legislation at the state and local government levels that would regulate hydraulic fracturing

The White House Council on Environmental Quality is coordinating an administration-wide review of hydraulic fracturing

practices and variety of environmental issues associated with hydraulic fracturing The EPA has commenced study of the

potential environmental effects of hydraulic fracturing on drinking water and groundwater with fmal results expected to be

available by 2014 Moreover the EPA announced in October 2011 that it is also launching study regarding wastewater

resulting from hydraulic fracturing activities and currently plans to propose standards by 2014 that such wastewater must meet

before being transported to publicly owned treatment plant In addition the Department of Energy is conducting an

investigation of practices the agency could recommend to better protect the environment from drilling employing hydraulic

fracture stimulation

Additionally committee of the United States House of Representatives has conducted an investigation of hydraulic fracturing

practices and recent Congressional legislative efforts seek to regulate hydraulic fracturing under theSD WAs Underground

Injection Control program which would significantly increase well capital costs Certain members of Congress have also called

upon the Government Accountability Office to investigate howhythaulic fracturing might adversely affect water resources

the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC to investigate the natural
gas industry and any possible misleading of
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investors or the public regarding the economic feasibility of pursuing natural gas deposits in shales by means of hydraulic

fracturing and the Energy Information Administration to provide better understanding of that agencys estimates

regarding natural gas reserves including reserves from shale formations as well as uncertainties associated with those

estimates Air quality impacts from hydraulic fracturing practices are also being studied currently by various federal and state

agencies These various ongoing or proposed studies and investigations depending on their degree of pursuit and any

meaningful results obtained could spur
initiatives to further regulate hydraulic fracturing under the SDWA the Clean AirAct

or other statutes and regulatory programs The Company supports disclosure of the contents of hydraulic fracturing fluids and

submits information regarding its wells to the national online disclosure registry FracFocus www.fracfocus.org

Tribal Lands and Minerals Various federal agencies within the U.S Department of the Interior particularly the BLM and the

Bureau of Indian Affairs along with certain Native American tribes promulgate and enforce regulations pertaining to natural

gas and oil operations on Native American tribal lands on which QEP Energy operates These regulations include such matters

as lease provisions drilling and production requirements environmental standards and royalty considerations

Endangered Species Act National Environmental Policy Act The Endangered Species Act restricts activities that may affect

federally identified endangered and threatened species or their habitats through the implementation of operating restrictions or

temporary seasonal or permanent ban in affected areas Many of QEPs operations are subject to the requirements of the

National Environmental Policy Act NEPA and are therefore evaluated under NEPA for their direct indirect and cumulative

environmental impacts This is done in Environmental Assessments or Environmental Impact Statements prepared for lead

agency under the Council on Environmental Quality and other agency regulations usually for the BLM in the areas where QEP

operates currently

Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act and Occupational Safety and Health Act The Emergency Planning

and Community Right-to-Know Act EPCRA requires facilities to disseminate information on chemical inventories to

employees as well as local emergency planning committees and emergency response departments The Non-Government

Organization Environmental Integrity Project has filed petition for rulemaking with the EPA under the EPCRA and the federal

Administrative Procedure Act to add the Oil and Gas Extraction Industry to the list of mdustries required to report releases of

certain toxic chemicals under EPCRAs Toxics Release Inventory TRI program The federal Occupational Safety and

Health Act establishes workplace standards for the protection of the health and safety of employees including the

implementation of hazard communication programs designed to inform employees about hazardous substances in the

workplace potential harmful effects of these substances and appropriate control measures

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer

Protection Act Dodd-Frank Act was passed by Congress and signed into law in July 2010 The Dodd-Frank Act is designed to

provide comprehensive framework for the regulation of the over-the-counter derivatives market with the intent to provide

greater transparency and reduction of nsk between counterparties The Dodd-Frank Act subjects swap dealers and major swap

participants to capital and margm requirements and requires many denvative transactions to be cleared on exchanges The

Dodd-Frank Act provides for potential exemption from these clearing and cash collateral requirements for commercial end

users In addition in August 2012 the SEC issued final rule under Section 1504 of the Dodd-Frank Act Disclosure of

Payments by Resource Extraction Issuers which requires resource extraction issuers such as QEP to file annual reports that

provide information about the type and total amount of payments made for each project related to the commercial development

of oil natural gas or minerals to each foreign government and the federal government

Regulation of Transportation and Sales of Natural Gas

Natural Gas Act of 1938 Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 and Energy Policy Act of 2005 The FERC regulates the

transportation and sale for resale of natural gas
in interstate commerce pursuant to the Natural Gas Act of 1938 and the Natural

Gas Policy Act of 1978 and regulations issued under those Acts

Other Regulations QEP Field Services construction and operation activities are subject to various local state federal and

tribal rules and regulations Most of these rules and regulations are administered by the Department of Transportation the

Occupational Safety and Health Administration and the EPA

Regulation of Transportation of Crude Oil by Pipeline

The Interstate Commerce Act ICA as applied to liquids pipelines requires that rates and terms of service be just and

reasonable and non-discriminatory Under the ICA FERC regulates the rates and terms and conditions of service for interstate

movements of crude oil natural gas liquids and refined petroleum products
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Regulation of Underground Storage

QEP through Clear Creek Storage Company LLC operates an underground gas-storage facility under the jurisdiction of the

FERC The FERC establishes rates for the storage of natural gas The FERC also regulates among other things the extension

and enlargement or abandonment ofjurisdictional natural gas facilities Regulation is intended to permit the recovery through

rates of the cost of service including return on investment

Significant Customers

The Companys five largest customers accounted for 37% 32% and 27% in aggregate of QEP revenues during the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively During the year ended December 31 2012 Chevron U.S.A Inc and

Enterprise Products Operating L.P accounted for 13% and 10% respectively of the Companys total revenues Management

believes that the loss of either customer or any other customer would not have material effect on the fmancial position or

results of operations of QEP since there are numerous potential purchasers of its production During the years ended December

31 2011 and 2010 each of the five largest customers sales were below 10% of QEPs total revenues

Employees

At December 31 2012 QEP Resources Inc had 936 employees compared to 876 employees at December 31 2011 None of

QEPs employees are represented by unions or covered by collective bargaining agreements

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The name age period of service title and business experience of each of QEPs executive officers as of February 19 2013 are

listed below

Senior Vice President Land and Business Development 2012 to present Vice

President Land and Business Development 2010 2012 Previous titles with

Questar Vice President Land and Business Development 2006 2010 Director of

Business Development 2004 to 2006

Perry Richards 52 Senior Vice President Field Services 2010 to present Previous title with Questar

Vice President Questar Gas Management 2005 to 2010

Jim Torgerson 49 Senior Vice President Operations 2012 to present Previous title with QEP Senior

Vice President Drilling and Completions 2011 to 2012 Previous titles with Questar
Vice President Drilling and Completions 2009 to 2010 Vice President Rockies

Drilling and Completions 2005 to 2008

Abigail Jones 52 Vice President Compliance and Corporate Secretary QEP 2010 to present Previous

titles with Questar Vice President Compliance 2007 to 2010 Corporate Secretary

2005 to 2010 Assistant Secretary 2004 to 2005

Christopher 43 Vice President and General Counsel 2012 to present Previous title with QEP Senior

Woosley Attorney 2010 to 2012 Prior to joining QEP Mr Woosley was partner in the law

firm Cooper Newsome Woosley PLLP 2003 to 2010

Lhard Doleshek Executive Vice President uitf Financial Officer and Treasurer QEP 2010 to

present Previous titles with Questar Executive Vice President and ChiefFinancial

Officer 2009 to 2010 Prior to joining Questar Mr Doleshek was Executive Vice

President and ChiefFinancial Officer Hilcorp Energy Company 2001 to 2009
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There is no family relationship between any of the listed officers or between any of them and the Companys directors The

executive officers serve at the pleasure of the Companys Board of Directors There is no arrangement or understanding under

which the officers were selected

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Investors should read carefully the followmg factors as well as the cautionary statements referred to Forward-Looking

Statements herein If any of the risks and uncertainties described below or elsewhere in this Annual Report actually occur the

Companys business financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected

The prices for natural gas oil andNGL are volatile and decline in such prices could adversely affect QEPs results stock

price and growth plans Historicallynatural gas oil and NGL prices have been volatile and will likely continue to be volatile

in the future U.S natural gas prices in particular are significantly influenced by weather and weather forecasts Any significant

or extended decline in commodity prices would impact the Companys future financial condition revenue operating results

cash flow return on invested capital and rate of growth In addition significant and extended declines in commodity prices

could limit QEPs access to sources of capital or cause QEP to delay or postpone some of its capital projects Because

significant portion of QEP Energys future production is natural gas the Companys fmancial results are substantially morç

sensitive to changes in natural gas prices than to changes in oil prices

QEP cannot predict the future price of natural gas oil and NGL because of factors beyond its control including but not limited

to

changes in domestic and foreign supply of natural gas oil and NGL
changes in local regional national and global demand for natural gas oil NGL and related commodities

the activities of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries

domestic and global economic conditions

regional price differences resulting from available pipeline transportation capacity or local demand

terrorist attacks on production or transportation assets

the level of imports of and the price of foreign natural gas oil and NGL
the potential long-term impact of an abundance of natural gas oil and NGL from unconventional sources on the

global and local energy supply

domestic political developments and actions

weather conditions and weather forecasts

domestic government regulations and taxes including regulatjons or legislation relating to climate change or natural

gas and oil exploration and production activities

technological advances affecting energy consumption and energy supply

conservation efforts

the price availability and acceptance of alternative fuels including coal nuclear energy and biofuels

demand for electricity as well as natural gas used for fuel for electricity generation

storage levels of natural gas oil and NGL and

the quality of natural gas and oil produced

In addition lower commodity prices may result in asset impairment charges from reductions in the carrying values of QEPs
natural gas and oil properties or reduction in the carrying value of goodwill During the years ended December 31 2012 and

2011 QEP recorded impairment charges of $107.6 million and $195.5 million respectively on its proven properties and $23.7

million and $20.3 million respectively on its unproven properties See Part Item Note Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information

Slower economic growth rates in the U.S may materially adversely impact QEPs operating results The U.S and other

economies are recovering from global fmancial crisis and recession that began in 2008 Growth has resumed but has been

modest and at an unsteady rate There could be significant long-term effects resulting from the financial crisis and recession

including future global economic growth rate that is slower than that experienced in the years leading up to the crisis and

more volatility may occur before sustainable yet lower growth rate is achieved In addition the Organization for Economic

Cooperation and Development has encouraged countries with large federal budget deficits such as the to initiate deficit

reduction measures Such measures if they are undertaken too rapidly could further undermine economic recovery and slow

growth by reducing demand Global economic growth drives demand for energy from all sources including fossil fuels

lower future economic growth rate is likely to result in decreased demand growth for QEPs natural gas oil and NGL
production decrease demand excludmg changes other factors could potentially result lower commodity prices

which would reduce QEPs cash flows from operations and its profitability
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The Company may not be able to economically find and develop new reserves The Companys profitability depends not only

on prevailing prices for natural gas oil and NGL but also its ability to find develop and acquire gas and oil reserves that are

economically recoverable Producing natural gas and oil reservoirs are generally characterized by declining production rates

that vary depending on reservoir characteristics Because natural gas and oil production volumes from QEP wells typically

experience relatively steep declines in the first
year

of operation and continue to decline over the economic life of the well

QEP must continue to invest significant capital to find develop and acquire gas and oil reserves to replace those depleted by

production

Gas and oil reserve estimates are imprecise and subject to revision QEPs proved natural
gas

and oil reserve estimates are

prepared annually by independent reservoir engineering consultants Gas and oil reserve estimates are subject to numerous

uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves projecting future rates of production and timing of

development expenditures The accuracy of these estimates depends on the quality of available data and on engineering and

geological interpretation and judgment Reserve estimates are imprecise and will change as additional infonnation becomes

available Estimates of economically recoverable reserves and future net cash flows prepared by different engineers or by the

same engineers at different times may vary significantly Results of subsequent drilling testing and production may cause

either upward or downward revisions of previous estimates In addition the estimation process also involves economic

assumptions relating to commodity prices operating costs severance and other taxes capital expenditures and remediation

costs Actual results most likely will vary from the estimates Any significant variance from these assumptions could affect the

recoverable quantities of reserves attributable to any particular properties the classifications of reserves the estimated future

net cash flows from proved reserves and the present value of those reserves

Investors should not assume that QEPs presentation of the Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows

Relating to Proved Reserves in this Annual Report is reflective of the current market value of the estimated natural gas and oil

reserves In accordance with SEC disclosure rules the estimated discounted future net cash flows from QEPs proved reserves

are based on the first-of-the-month prior 12-month average prices and current costs on the date of the estimate holding the

prices and costs constant throughout the life of the properties and using discount factor of 10 percent per year Actual future

production prices and costs may differ materially from those used in the current estimate and future determinations of the

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows using similarly determined prices and costs may be significantly

different from the current estimate

Shortages of and increasing prices for oilfield equipment services and qualified personnel could impact results of

operations The demand for and availability of qualified and experienced personnel to drill wells and conduct field operations

in addition to geologists geophysicists engineers landmen and other professionals in the oil and gas industry can fluctuate

significantly often in correlation with natural gas
and oil prices causing periodic shortages There have also been regional

shortages of drilling rigs and other equipment as demand for specialized rigs and equipment has increased along with the

number of wells being drilled These factors also cause increases in costs for equipment services and personnel These cost

increases could impact profit margin cash flow and operating results or restrict the ability to drill wells and conduct operations

especially during periods of lower natural
gas

and oil prices

QEPs operations involve numerous risks that might result in accidents and other operating risks and costs Drilling of

natural gas and oil wells is potentially high-risk activity Risks include

injuries and/or deaths of employees supplier personnel or other individuals

fire explosions and blow-outs

unexpected drilling conditions such as abnormally pressured formations

pipe cement or casing failures

title disputes

equipment malfunctions and/or mechanical failure on high-volume wells

security breaches cyber attacks piracy or terroristic acts

theft or vandalism of oilfield equipment and supplies especially in areas of increased activity

severe weather that could affect our operations

plant pipeline and other facility accidents and failures and

enviromnental accidents such as oil spills natural gas leaks ruptures or discharges of air pollutants bnne water or

well fluids into the environment including from hydraulic fracturing activities

The Company could incur substantial losses as result of injury or loss of life pollution or other environmental damage

damage to or destruction of property and equipment regulatory compliance investigations fmes or curtailment of operations
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or attorneys fees and other expenses
incurred in the prosecution or-defense of litigation As working interest owner in wells

operated by other companies the Company may also be exposed to the risks enumerated above from operations that are not

within its care custody or control

There are also inherent operating risks and hazards in the Companys gas
and oil production and gas gathering processing -and

treating operations that could cause substantial fmancial losses These risks could result in personal injury or loss of human life

significant damage to property environmental pollution impairment of operations and substantial losses The location of

pipelines near populated-areas including residential areas commercial business centers and industrial-sites could increase the

level of damages resulting from these risks Certain-segments of the Companys pipelines run through such areas In spite of the

Companys precautions an accident-or other event could cause- considerable harm to people or property and could have-a

material adverse effect on the- financial position and results of operations particularly
if the event is not fully covered by

insurance Accidents or other operatingrisks once realized could further result in -lost business activity Such circumstances

could adversely impact the Companys ability to meet contractual obligations
-- --

As is customary with industry practice operators generally indemnifi drilling contractors -and oilfield service companies --

collectively contractors against certain-losses suffered-by the operator and third parties resulting from well blowout or fire

or other uncontrolled flow of hydrocarbons regardless of the relative-fault of the contractor Therefore be liable

regardless of the fault Of the contractor for -some or all of the costs of controlling blowout drilling relief andlor replacement

well and the cleanup of any pollution or contamination resulting from blowout as well as for claims -for personal injuryor

death suffered by QEPs employees and others Q-EPs drilling contracts and oilfleld service agreements however generally

provide that the contractor will indenmif QEP for claims related to injury and death of employees of the contractor and its

subcontractors and for property damage suffered by the contractor and its contractors

As is also customary in the gas and oil industry the Company maintains insurance against some but not -all of these potential

risks and losses Although QEP believes the-coverage and-amounts of insurance that it carries are consistent with industry

practice QEP does not have--insurance protection against all risksthat it faces because QEP chooses not to insure certain risks

insurance is not available at level that balances the costs of insurance and QEPs desired rates of return or actual losses may

exceed coverage limits --

--

--

Certain of QEPs undeveloped leasehold assets are subject to lease agreements that will expire over the next several years

unless production is established on-units containingthe acreage

Leases on natural gas and oil properties typically have term of.three to five years after which they expire unless prior to

expiration well is drilled and production of hydrocarbons in paying quantities is established If QEPs leases expire and QEP

is unable to renew the leases QEP will lose its right to develop the related reserves While QEP seeks to actively manage its

leasehold inventory -by drilling sufficient wells to hold the leases that it believes are material to its operations QEPs drilling

plans are subject to change based upon-various factors including drilling results natural gas
and oil prices the availability and

cost of capital drilling and production costs availability of drilling services and-equipment gathering system and pipeline

transportation constraints and regulatory approvals

Lack of availability ofpipeline and other transportation capacity could impact results of operations The lack of availability

of satisfactory oil natural gas and NGL transportation facilities may hinder QEPs access to oil NGL and natural gas markets

or delay production from its wells -QEPs ability to market -its production depends in substantial part on-the availability- and

capacity of pipelines owned and operated by third parties Although QEP has some contractual control-over the transportation

of its production through firm transportation arrangements third-party systems may be temporarily unavailable due to market

conditions mechanical failures or other reasons If pipelines do not exist near producing wells if pipeline capacity is limited or

if pipeline capacity is unexpectedly disrupted sales could-be reduced or production shut in reducing profitability Furthermore

if QEP were required to shut in wells it might also be obligated to pay- shut-in royalties to certain mineral interest owners in

order to maintain its leases or depending on the -specific lease provisions some leases could terminate If pipeline quality

requirements change QEP might be required to install or contract for additional treating or processing equipment which could

also increase costs Federal and state regulation of oil and natural gas production and transportation tax -and energy policies

changes in supply and demand pipeline pressures damage to or destruction of pipelines and general economic conditions

could also adversely affect QEPs ability to transport natural gas
and oil --

The fees charged by QEP to third parties under its gathering and processing agreements may not escalate sufficiently to

cover increases-in costs or the -agreements -may-- not be renewed or may be suspended in some--circumstances.- QEPs costs

may increase at rate greater than the feesit charges to third parties for- gathering treating and processing services

Furthermore third parties may nOt -renew their contracts with QEP Additionally some third parties obligations under their

agreements
with QEP may be permanently or temporarily reduced due to certain events some of which are beyond QEPs

control including force majeure events wherein the supply of either natural gas oil or NGL are curtailed or cut off Force
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majeure events include but are not limited to revolutions wars acts of enemies embargoes import or export restrictions

strikes lockouts fires storms floods earthquakes acts of God explosions and mechanical or physical failures of equipment

affecting QEPs facilities or facilities of third parties If the escalation of fees is insufficient to cover increased costs if third

parties do not renew or extend their contracts with QEP or if third parties suspend or terminate their contracts with QEP the

Companys fmancial results would suffer

QEP is dependent on its revolving credit facility and continued access to capital markets to successfully execute its operating

strategies If QEP is unable to obtain needed capital or financing on satisfactory turms QEP may experience decline in its

natural gas and oil production rates and reserves QEP is partially dependent on external capital sources to provide financing for

certain projects The availability and cost of these capital sources is cyclical and these capital sources may not remain

available or the Company may not be able to obtain financing at reasonable cost in the future Over the last few years
conditions in the global capital markets have been volatile making terms for certain types of financings difficult to predict and

in certain cases resulting in certain types of financing being unavailable If QEPs revenues decline asa result of lower natural

gas oil or NGL prices operating difficulties declines in production or for any other reason QEP may have limited ability to

obtain the capital necessary to sustain its operations at current levels The Company utilizes its revolving credit facility

provided by group of fmancial institutions to meet short-term funding needs All of QEPs debt under its revolving credit

facility is floating-rate debt From time to time the Company may use interestrate derivatives to manage the interest rate on

portion of its floating-rate debt The interest rates for the Companys revolving credit facility are tied to QEPs ratio of

indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDAX as defined in the credit agreement QEPs failure to obtain additional fmancing could

result in curtailment of its operations relating to exploration and development of its prospects or construction of new oil and

gas processing facilities which in turn could lead to possible reduction in QEPs natural gas or oil production reserves and its

revenues and could negatively impact its results of operations

downgrade in QEPs credit rating could negatively impact QEPs cost of and ability to access capitaL Although QEP is not

aware of any current plans of credit rating agencies to lower their ratings on QEPs debt QEPs credit ratings may be subject to

future downgrades downgrade of credit ratings may make it more difficult or expensive to raise capital from financial

institutions or other sources downgrade in QEPs credit rating below certain level could limit the amount of debt that QEP
may incur In addition downgrade could affect QEPs requirements to provide financial assurance of its performance under

certain contractual arrangements and derivative agreements

QEPS debt and other financial commitments may limit its financial and operating flexibility QEPs total debt was

approximately $3.2 billion at December 31 2012 QEP also has various commitments forleases drilling contracts derivative

contracts firm transportation and purchase obligations for services and products QEPs fmancial commitments could have

important consequences to its business including but not limited to limiting QEPs ability to fund future working capital and

capital expenditures to engage in futureacquisitions or development activities to pay dividends to shareholders or to

otherwise realize the value of its assets and opportunities fully because of the need to dedicate substantial portion of its cash

flows from operations to payments on its debt or to comply with any restrictive terms of its debt Additionally the credit

agreements governing QEPs revolving credit facility and term loan facility contain number of covenants that impose
constraints on the Company including restrictions on QEPs ability to dispose of assets make certain investments and incur

liens

QEP is exposed to counterparty credit risk as result of QEPs receivables and commodity derivative transactions QEP has

significant credit exposure to outstanding accounts receivable from purchasers of its production joint interest and working
interest owners as well as customers in all segments of its business Because QEP is the operator of majority of its production

and major development projects QEP pays joint venture expenses and in some cases makes cash calls on its non-operating

partners for their respective shares ofjoint venture costs These projects are capital intensive and in some cases non-

operating partner may experience delay in obtaining fmancing for its share of the joint venture costs Counterparty liquidity

problems could result in delay in QEP receiving proceeds from commodity sales or reimbursement ofjoint venture costs

Credit enhancements such as fmancial guarantees or prepaymentshave been obtained from some but not all

parties Nonperformance by trade creditor or joint venture partner could result in financial losses In addition QEPs
commodity derivative transactions expose it to risk of financial loss if the counterparty fails to perform under contract

During periods of falling commodity prices QEPs commodity derivative receivable positions increase which increases its

counterparty credit exposure

QEP faces various risks associated with the trend toward increased activism against oil andgas exploration and

development activities Opposition to oil and gas drilling and development activity has been growing globally and is

particularly pronounced in the U.S Companies in the oil and
gas industry such as QEP are often the target of activist efforts

from both individuals and non-governmental organizations regarding safety environmental compliance and business practices

Anti-development activists are working to among other things reduce access to federal and state government lands and delay
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or cancel certain projects such as the development of oil or gas shale plays For example environmental activists continue to

advocate for increased regulations on shale drilling in the U.S even in jurisdictions that are among the most stringent in their

regulation of the industry Future activist efforts could result in the following

delay or denial of drilling and other necessary pennits

shortening of lease terms or reduction in lease size

restrictions on installation or operation of production gathering or processing facilities

setback requirements from houses schools and businesses

towns cities states and counties considering bans on certain activities including hydraulic fracturing

restrictions on the use of certain operating practices such as hydraulic fracturing or the disposition of related waste

materials such as hydraulic fracturing fluids and produced water

increased severance and/or other taxes

cyber attacks

legal challenges or lawsuits

negative publicity about QEP
incEeased costs of doing business

reduction in demand for QEPs products and

other adverse effects on QEPs ability to develop its properties and increase production

QEPs need to incur costs associated with responding to these initiatives or complying with any resulting additional legal or

regulatory requirements that are substantial and not adequately provided for could have material adverse effect on its

business fmancial condition and results of operations

QEPs use of derivative instruments to manage exposure to uncertain prices could result in financial losses or reduce its

income QEP uses commodity-price derivative arrangements to reduce
exposure to the volatility of natural gas oil and NGL

prices and to protect cash flow and returns on capital from downward commodity price movements To the extent the

Company enters into commodity derivative transactions it may forgo some or all of the benefits of commodity price increases

Additional fmancial regulations may change QEPs reporting and margining requirements relating to such instruments

Furthermore QEPs use of derivative instruments through which it ttempts to reduce the economic risk of its participation in

commodity markets could result in increased volatility of QEPs reported results Changes in the fair values gains and losses

of derivatives are recorded into QEPs income This creates the risk of volatility in earnings even if no economic impact to QEP
has occurred during the applicable period QEP has incurred significant unrealized gains and losses in prior periods and may
continue to incur these types of gains and losses in the future

QEP enters into commodity-price derivative arrangements with creditworthy counterparties banks and energy-trading firms

that do not require collateral deposits QEP is exposed to the risk of counterparties not performing The amount of credit

available may vary depending on QEPs counterpartys assessment of QEPs credit risk

Relative changes in NGL and natural gas prices may adversely impact QEFs results due to changes in the frac spread

Approximately 23% 30% and 22% of QEP Field Services net operating revenues for the years ended December 31 2012
2011 and 2010 respectively were derived from keep-whole processing agreements Under QEPs keep-whole processing

contracts QEP is exposed to the frac spread and transportation and fractionation exposure from fin transportation constraints

Generally the frac spread and consequently the net operating margins are positive under these contracts In the event natural

gas becomes more expensive on Btti equivalent basis thanNGL products QEPs cost of keeping the producer whole would

result in operating losses Due to timing of gas purchases and liquid sales direct exposure to changes in market prices of either

gas or liquids can be created because there is an offsetting purchase or sale that remains exposed to market pricing Through

QEPs marketing and derivatives activity direct exposure may occur naturally or QEP may choose direct price exposure to

either gas or liquids when QEP favors that exposure over frac spread risk Given that QEP has derivative positions adverse

movement in prices to the positions QEP has taken will negatively impact results

QEP has made significant investments in new cryogenic gas processing plants in its Northern Region Rockies in recent years
The expected returns on these investments depend in large part on the future ethane price and margin which historically have

been more volatile than the price of other NGL products including propane butane and gasoline QEPs competitors have also

made significant investments in gas processing plants that recover significant volumes of ethane The U.S ethane market is

currently oversupplied and probably will remain oversupplied in the foreseeable future resulting in lower ethane prices

QEPs plans to grow its midstream business by constructing new processing and treating facilities subjects the Càmpany to

construction risks and the risk that the Company will not be able to secure long-term contracts from third parties required to

earn acceptable returns on these investments One of the ways QEP has grown its business is through the construction of new
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gathering treating and processing facilities The construction of gathering treating and processing facilities requires the

expenditure of significant amounts of capital and involves numerous regulatory environmental political legal and inflationary

uncertainties If QEP undertakes these projects QEP may not be able to complete them on schedule or at all or at the budgeted

cost While QEP may commit natural gas supplies from its production such supplies may not be sufficient to fill available

capacity at these facilities leaving QEP with limited natural gas supplies committed to these facilities prior to and after their

construction Moreover QEP may construct facilities to capture anticipated future growth in production in region in which

anticipated production growth does not materialize QEP may also rely on estimates of proved reserves in its decision to

construct new facilities which may prove to be inaccurate because there are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating

quantities of proved reserves As result new facilities may not be able to process or treat enough natural gas to achieve QEPs

expected investment return which could adversely affect QEPs operations and cash flows

IfQEPs plan to separate majority of its gathering assets in Wyoming and North Dakota into new publicly traded master

limited partnership is delayed or not completed QEPs stock price may decline and its growth potential may not be

enhanced In January 2013 QEP announced plan to separate majority of its gathering assets in Wyoming and North Dakota

into new publicly traded master limited partnership MLP and to file an initial registration statement in connection with

this planned initial public offering in the second quarter of 2013 Completion of this plan is subject to market conditions and

numerous other risks beyond QEPs control including but not limited to the general economy credit markets equity markets

energy prices regulatory approvals compliance with contractual obligations and future opportunities that QEPs board of

directors may determine present greater potential value to stockholders than the planned MLP Therefore it is possible that

QEP will not file registration statement for an initial public offering that the MLP will not complete an offering of securities

and that QEP will not be able to complete its proposed actions on the desired timetable If the transaction is not completed or

delayed QEPs stock price may decline and its growth potential may not be enhanced If completed QEPs plan to separate

portions of gathering assets may not achieve its intended results QEPs announcement of this plan did not and this risk factor

does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities and shall not constitute an offer

solicitation or sale in any jurisdiction in which such offer solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or

qualification under the securities laws of that jurisdiction

QEP faces sign jficant competition and certain of its competitors have resources in excess of QEPs available resources QEP

operates in the highly competitive areas of natural gas and oil exploration exploitation acquisition and production QEP faces

competition from

large multi-national integrated oil companies

U.S independent oil and gas companies

service companies engaging in oil and gas exploration and production activities and

private equity funds investing in oil and gas assets

QEP faces competition in number of areas such as

acquiring desirable producing properties or new leases for future exploration

marketing its natural gas oil and NGL production

obtaining the equipment and expertise necessary to operate and develop properties and

attracting and retaining employees with certain critical skills

Certain of QEPs competitors have fmancial and other resources in excess of those available to QEP Such companies may be

able to pay more for natural gas and crude oil properties and exploratory prospects and to define evaluate bid for and purchase

greater number of properties and prospects than QEPs financial or human resources permit This highly competitive

environment could have an adverse impact on QEPs business

QEP may be unable to make acquisitions successfully integrate acquired businesses and/or assets or adjust to the effrcts of

divestitures causing disruption to its business One aspect of QEPs business strategy calls for acquisitions of businesses and

assets that complement or expand QEPs current business such as QEPs 2012 Acquisition in the Williston Basin This may

present greater risks for QEP than those faced by peer companies that do not consider acquisitions as part of their business

strategy QEP cannot provide assurance that it will be able to identify acquisition opportunities Evenif QEP does identify

acquisition opportunities it may not be able to complete the acquisitions due to capital constraints Any acquisition of

business or assets involves potential risks including among others

difficulty integrating the operations systems management and other personnel and technology of the acquired

business with QEPs own
the assumption of unidentified or unforeseeable liabilities resulting in loss of value
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the inability to hire train or retain qualified personnel to manage and operate QEPs growing business and assets or

decrease in QEPs liquidity to the extent ituses significant portion of its available cash or borrowing capacity to

finance acquisitions or operations of the acquired properties

Organizational modifications due to acquisitions divestitures or other strategic changes can alter the risk and control

environments disrupt ongoing business distract management and employeesincrease expenses and adversely affect results of

operations Even if these challenges can be dealt with successfully the anticipated benefits of any acquisition divestiture or

other strategic change may not be realized

QEF may be unable to dispose of non-core non-sfrategic assets on financially attractive terms resulting in reduced cash

proceeds and/or losses QEPs business strategy also includes sales of non-core non-strategic assets QEP continually evaluates

its portfolio of assets related to capital investments divestitures and joint venture opportunities Various factors can materially

affect QEPs ability to dispose of assets on terms acceptable to QEP Such factors include current commodity prices laws

regulations and the permitting process impacting oil and gas operations in the areas where the assets are located willingness of

the purchaser to assume certain liabilities such as asset retirement obligations QEPs willingness to indemnifr buyers for

certain matters and other factors Inability to achieve desiredprice for the assets or underestimation of amounts of retained

liabilities or indenmification obligations can result in reduction of cash proceeds loss on sale due to an excess of the assets

net book value over proceeds or liabilities that must be settled in the future at amounts that are higher than QEP had expected

QEF is involved in legal proceedings that may result in substantial liabilities Like many oil and
gas companies QEP is

involved in various legal proceedings such as title royalty and contractual disputes in the ordinary course of its business The

cost to settle legal proceedings orany resulting judgment against QEP in such proceedings could result in substantial liability

which could materially and adversely impact QEPs cash flows and operating results for particular period Current accruals

for such liability may be insufflcient Judgments and estimates to determine accruals orrange of losses related to legal

proceedings could change from one period to the next and such changes could be material

Failure of the Companys controls andprocedures to detect errors or fraud could seriously harm its business and results of

operations QEPs management including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer does not expect that the

Companys internal controls and disclosure controls will prevent all possible errors and all fraud control systemno matter

how well conceived and operated can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that the objectives of the control system

are being met In addition the design of control system mustreflect the fact that there are resource constraints and the benefit

of controls must be relative to their costs Because of the inherentlimitations in all control systems no evaluation of QEPs
controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud if any in the Company have been

detected The design of any system of controls is based in part upon the likelihood of future events and there can be no

assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its intended goals under all potential future conditions Over time control

may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or the degree of compliance with its policies or procedures may
deteriorate Because of inherent limitations in cost-effective control system misstatements due to error or fraud may occur

without detection

QEP is subject to complex federal state tribal local and other laws and regulations that could adversely affect its cost of

doing business and recording ofproved reserves QEPs operations are subject to extensive federal state tribal and local tax

energy environmental health and safety laws and regulations The failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations can

result in substantial penalties and may threaten the Companys authorization to operate

Environmental laws and regulations are complex change frequently and have tended to become more onerous overtime The

regulatory burden on the Companys operations increases its cost of doing business and consequently affects its profitability

In addition to the costs of compliance substantial costs may be incurred to take corrective actions at both owned and previously
owned facilities Accidental spills and leaks requiring cleanup may occur in the ordinary course of QEPs business As
standards change the Company may incur significant costs in cases where past operations followed practices that were
considered acceptable at the time but now require remedial work to meet current standards Failure to comply with these laws

and regulations may result in fines significant costs for remedial activities or injunctions that could limit the
scope of QEPs

planned operations

Current federal regulations restrict activities during certain times of the year on significant portions of QEP Energy leasehold

due to wildlife activity and/or habitat QEP Energy has worked with federal and state officials in Wyoming to obtain

authorization for limited winter-drillingactivities on the Pinedale Anticline and has developed measures such as drilling

multiple wells from single pad location to minimize the impact of its activities on wildlife and wildlife habitat in its

operations on federal lands Various wildlife species inhabit QEP Energys leaseholds at Pinedale and in other areas The

presence of wildlife or plants including species that areprotected under the federal Endangered Species Act could limit access
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to leases held by QEP Energy on public and other lands Many of QEPs operations are subject to the requirements of the

National Environmental Policy Act NEPA and are therefore evaluated under NEPA for their direct indirect and cumulative

environmental impacts This is done in Environmental Assessments or Environmental Impact Statements prepared for lead

agency under Council on Environmental Quality and other agency regulations usually for the BLM in the areas where QEP

operates currently In September 2008 the BLM issued Record of Decision ROD on the Final Supplemental Environmental

Impact Statement SETS for long-term development of natural
gas resources in the Pinedale Anticline Project Area PAPA

Under the ROD QEP Energy is allowed to drill and complete wells year-round in one of five Concentrated Development Areas

defined in the PAPA The ROD contains additional requirements and restrictions on development of the PAPA to which QEP

Energy is subject

Several of QEP Field Services transportation facilitiesare subject to FERC jurisdiction and as such are subject to specific

regulations regarding interstate transmission facilities and activities including but not limited to rates charged for transmission

open access/non-discrimination and public daily capacity and flow reporting requirements Additionally FERC has jurisdiction

over the operation of QEP Marketings Clear Creek storage facility by virtue of the facility being connected to interstate

pipelines also subject to FERC jurisdiction at both its inlet and outlet Clear Creek is subject to specific FERC regulations

governing interstate transmission facilities and activities including but not limited to rates charges for transmission open

access/non-discrimination and public disclosure via an electronic bulletin board of daily capacity and flows

Section 1b of the Natural Gas Act exempts gathering activities from regulation or jurisdiction by the FERC QEP owns or

holds interests in number of pipelines thatit believes meet the tests FERC has used to determine pipeline systems status as

non-jurisdictional gatherer There is however no bright-line test for determining jurisdictional status of QEP Field Services

gathering systems so the distinction between non-jurisdictional gathering and FERC-regulated transmission pipelines may

from time-to-time be the subject of disputes and litigation QEP Field Services therefore cannot guarantee that the jurisdictional

status of its gathering systems will remain unchanged QEPs gas gathering systems are not currently subject to state utility

regulations The FERC has jurisdiction under the Energy Policy Act of 2005 to impose rules and regulations applicable to all

natural gas
market participants to ensure market transparency

Certain U.S federal income tax deductions currently available with respect to oil and gas exploration and development may

be eliminated as result offuture legislation The U.S Presidents Fiscal Year 2013 Budget Proposal includes provisions

that if enacted into law would eliminate certain key U.S federal income tax incentives currently available to oil and natural

gas exploration and production companies These changes include the repeal of the percentage depletion allowance for oil

and natural gas wells ii the elimination of current deductions for intangible drilling and development costs iiithe

elimination of the deduction for certain domestic production activities and iv .an extension of the amortization period for

certain geological and geophysical expenditures It is unclear whether these or similar changes will be enacted and if enacted

how soon any such changes could become effective The passage of this legislation or any similar changes in U.S federal

income tax laws could eliminate or postpone
certain tax deductions that arecurrently available with respect to oil and natural

gas exploration and development and increase the cost of exploration and development of natural gas and oil resources

Environmental laws are complex and potentially burdensome for QEFs operations QEP must comply with numerous and

complex federal state and tribal regulations governing activities on federal state and tribal lands notably including the Clean

Air Act the Clean Water Act the SDWA OPA CERCLA RCRA NEPA the Endangered Species Act the National Historic

Preservation Act and similar state laws and tribal codes Federal state and tribal regulatory agencies frequently impose

conditions on the Companys activities under these laws These restrictions have become more stringent over time and can limit

or prevent exploration and production on significant portions of the Companys leasehold These laws also allow certain

environmental groups to oppose drilling on some of QEPs federal and state leases These groups sometimes sue federal and

state regulatory agencies and/or the Company under these laws for alleged procedural violations in an attempt to stop limit or

delay natural
gas

and oil development on public and other lands

QEP may not be able to obtain the permits and approvals necessary to continue and expand its operations Regulatory

authorities exercise considerable discretion in the timing and scope of permit issuance Requirements imposed by these

authorities may be costly and time consuming and may result in delays in the commencement or continuation of the Companys

exploration and production and midstream field services operations For example QEPs drilling operations in the Powder

River Basin in Wyoming continue to be delayed due to an over two-year backlog of permit applications Further the public

may comment on and otherwise seek to influence the permitting process including through intervention in the courts

Accordingly necessary permits may not be issued or if issued may not be issued in timely fashion or may involve

requirements that restrict QEPs ability to conduct its operations or to do so profitably

Federal and state hydraulic fracturing legislation or regulatory initiatives could increase QEPs costs and restrict its access

to natural gas and oil reserves Currently all well construction activities including hydraulic fracture stimulation are
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regulated by state agencies that review and approve all aspects of natural gas and oil well design and operation The EPA

recently asserted federal regulatory authority over certain hydraulic fracturing activities involving diesel under the federal

SDWA and has begun the process of drafting guidance documents related to this newly asserted regulatory authority The EPA

appears to be considering its existing regulatory authorities for possible avenues to further regulate hydraulic fracturing fluids

and/or the components of those fluids Additionally the Bureau of Land Management proposed in May 2012 new regulations

regarding chemical disclosure requirements and other regulations specific to well stimulation activities including hydraulic

fracturing on federal and tribal lands Legislation has also been introduced before Congress to provide for federal regulation of

hydraulic fracturing and to require disclosure of the chemicals used in the hydraulic fracturing process notwithstanding the

proposed and ongoing rulemaking proceedings noted above At the state level some states have adopted and other states are

considering adopting regulations that could restrict hydraulic fracturing in certain circumstances In the event that new or more

stringent federal state or local regulationsrestrictions or moratoria are adoptedin areas where QEP operates QEP could incur

potentially significant added costs to comply with such requirements experience delays or curtailment in the pursuit of

exploration development or production activities and perhaps even be precluded from drilling or stimulating wells in some

areas

QEPs abiit to produce natural gas and oil economically and in commercial quantities could be impaired Vit is unable to

acquire adequate supplies of water for its drilling and completion operations or is unable to dispose of or recycle the water it

uses at reasonable cost and in accordance with applicable environmental rules The hydraulic fracture stimulation process

on which QEP depends to produce commercial quantities of natural gas and oil requires the use and disposal of significant

quantities of water QEPs inability to secure sufficient amounts of water or to dispose of or recycle the water used in its

operations could adversely impact its operations As noted above the imposition of new enviromnental initiatives and

regulations could include restrictions on QEPs ability to conduct certain operations such as hydraulic fracturing or disposal of

waste including but not limited to produced water drilling fluids and other wastes associated with the exploration

development or production of natural gas Compliance with environmental regulations and permit requirements governing the

withdrawal storage and use of surface water or groundwater necessary for hydraulic fracturing of wells may increase QEPs

operating costs and cause delays interruptions or termination of its operations the extent of which cannot be predicted

The adoption of greenhouse gas GHG emission or other environmental legislation could result in increased operating

costs delays in obtaining air pollution permits for new or modfiedfadiities and reduced demand for the natural gas oil

andNGL Ihat QEP produces Federal and state courts and administrative agencies are considering the
scope

and scale of

climate-change regulation under various laws pertaining to the environment energy use and development Federal state and

local governments may also pass laws mandating the use of alternative energy sources such as wind power and solar energy
which may reduce demand for natural gas and crude oil QEPs ability to access and develop new natural gas and crude oil

reserves may be restricted by climate-change regulation including GHG reporting and regulation Legislative bills have been

proposed in Congress that would regulate GHG emissions through cap-and-trade system under which emitters would be

required to buy allowances for offsets of emissions of GHG The EPA has adopted fmal regulations for the measurement and

reporting of GHG emitted from certain large facilities Additionally the EPA and authorized states have begun the permitting of

major sources of GHG under the Clean Air Act pursuant to the EPAs GHG Tailoring Rule whereby new and existing sources of

GHG emitting above major source thresholds are required to obtain major source permits In addition several of the states in

which QEP operates are considering various GHG registration and reduction programs While additional climate-change

regulation is possible at the federal level it is too early to predict how such regulation would affect QEPs business operations

or fmancial results It is uncertain whether QEPs operations and properties located in the Northern and Southern Regions of

the United States are exposed to possible physical risks such as severe weather patterns due to climate change that may or

may not be the result of anthropogenic emissions of GHG Management does not however believe such physical risks are

reasonably likely to have material effect on the Companys financial condition or results of operations

The adoption and implementation of new statutoly and regulatory requirements for swap fransactions could have an

adverse impact on QEPs ability to mitigate risks associated with its business and increase the working capital requirements

to conduct these activities The Dodd-Frank Act which was passed by Congress and signed into law in July 2010 contains

significant derivatives regulation QEP is currently evaluating the fmal rules of the Commodity Futures Trading Commission

and assessing the impact on the Companys risk management program QEP believes it will meet the requirements for the

commercial end-user clearing exception and be able to continue to execute derivative transactions and not be required to meet

the mandated clearing requirements

QEP will need to expend significant resources complying with and adapting to the new regulatory regime including significant

reporting and record keeping requirements as well as otherwise ensuring that QEP continues to be able to rely on certain

exemptions from mandatory clearing requirements In addition the changes to the swap market as result of the

implementation of the Dodd-Frank Act could significantly increase the cost of entering into new swaps or maintaining existing
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swaps materially alter the terms of new or existing swap transactions impose additional documentation requirements and/or

reduce the availability of new or existing swaps

Depending on the final form of the margin rules for uncleared swaps and whether swap dealers elect to collect margin from

end-user clients even if there is no requirement to do so under the Dodd-Frank Act QEP might in the future be required to

provide cash collateral for its commodity derivative transactions under circumstances in which it does not currently post cash

collateral Requirements to post cash collateral could not only cause significant liquidity issues by reducing QEPs flexibility in

using its cash and other sources of funds such as its revolving credit facility but could also cause QEP to incur additional

debt In addition requirement for QEPs counterparties to post cash collateral would likely result in additional costs being

passed on to QEP thereby decreasing the effectiveness of its commodity derivatives and its profitability If the costs of

complying with the clearing and margin requirements and business conduct rules under the Dodd-Frank Act significantly

increase the costs of entering into commodity derivative transactions QEP may reduce its commodity derivative program

which could increase its exposure to fluctuating commodity prices increase the volatility of QEPs results of operations and

reduce the predictability of the Companys cash flows which in turn could adversely affect QEPs ability to plan for and fund

capital expenditures Finally the Dodd-Frank Act was intended in part to reduce the volatility of oil and natural gas prices

QEPs revenues could be adversely affected if consequence of the legislation and regulations is to lower commodity prices

Any of these consequences could have material adverse effect on QEPs consolidatedfmancial positionresults of operations

or cash flows

General economic and other conditions impact QEPs results QEPs results may also be negatively affected by changes in

global economic conditions availability and economic viability of gas and oil properties for sale or exploration rate of

inflation and interest rates assumptions used in business combinations weather and natural disasters changes in customers

credit ratings competition from other forms of energy other pipelines and storage facilities effects of accounting policies

issued periodically by accounting standard-setting bodies and terrorist attacks or acts of war

The Companys pension plans are currently underfunded and may require large contributions which may divert funds from

other uses QEP has closed defined benefit pension plan that covers 145 or 16% of QEPs active employees and 70

participants that are retired terminated and vested or suspended Over time periods of declines in interest rates and pension

asset values may result in reduction in the funded status of the Companys pension plans As of December 31 2012 and 2011

QEPs pension plans were underfunded by $74.4 million and $59.9.million respectively The underfunded status of QEPs

pension plans may require that the Company make large contributions to such plans QEP made cash contributions of $6.9

million and $14.8 million during the years ended December 2012 and 2011 respectively to its defined benefit pension plans

and expects to make contributions of approximately $11.3 million to its pension plans in 2013 QEP cannot however predict

whether changing economic conditions the future performance of assets in the plans or other factors will require the Company

to make contributions in excess of its current expectations diverting funds QEP would otherwise apply to other uses

QEP is subject to cyber security risks cyber incident could occur and result in information theft data corruption

operational disruption and/or financial loss The oil and gas industry has become increasingly dependent on digital

technologies to conduct certain exploration development production and processing activities For example QEP depends on

digital technologies to interpret seismic data manage drilling rigs production equipment and gathering and processing systems

conduct reservoir modeling and reserves estimation and process and record financial and operating data Pipelines refineries

power stations and distribution points for both fuels and electricity are becoming more interconnected by computer systems At

the same time cyber incidents including deliberate attacks or unintentional events have increased QEPs technologies

systems networks and those of its vendors suppliers and other business partners may become the targetof cyber attacks or

information security breaches that could result in the unauthorized release gathering monitoring misuse loss or destruction of

proprietary and other information or other disruption of its business operations In addition certain cyber incidents such as

surveillance may remain undetected for an extended period QEPs systems and insurance coverage for protecting against

cyber security risks may not be sufficient

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None
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ITEM PROPERTIES

Exploration and Production QEP Energy

QEPs exploration and production business is conducted through QEP Energy in two core regions the Northern Region

including the states of Wyoming Utah Colorado New Mexico and North Dakota and the Southern Region including the

states of Oklahoma Texas and Louisiana

Northern Region

Pinedale

In 2005 the Wyoming Oil and Gas Conservation Commission WOGCC approved 10-acre density drilling for Lance Pool

wells on about 12700 gross acres 8091 net acres of QEP Energys 17115 gross acres 11601 net acres Pinedale leasehold

In January 2008 the WOGCC approved five-acre density drilling for Lance Pool wells on about 4200 gross acres 2677 net

acres of QEP Energys Pinedale leasehold On March 13 2012 the WOGCC approved five-acre density drilling for Lance

Pool wells on approximately 7200 additional gross acres 4317 net acres The area approved for increased density

corresponds to the currently estimated economic productive limits of QEP Energy core acreage in the field The top of the

Lance Pool tight gas sand reservoir interval ranges from 8500 to 9500 feet across QEP Energys acreage The Company

currently estimates that more than 900 additional wells will be required to fully develop its Pinedale acreage on to 10-acre

density At December 31 2012 QEP Energy had four operated rigs drilling in the Pinedale Anticline In addition to QEP
Energys 715 gross producing wells QEP Energy has an overriding royalty interest only in an additional 21 wells at Pinedale

Williston Basin

QEP has approximately 117000 net acres of leaseholds in the Williston Basin in western North Dakota where the Company is

targeting the Bakken and Three Forks formations During the third quarter of 2012 QEP Energy closed the 2012 Acquisition

which added 27600 net acres of producing leasehold in the Williston Basin As result of the 2012 Acquisition and

development drilling on existing acreage Williston Basin reserves represent 16% of the Companys total reserves Accordingly
Williston Basin reserves and production are shown separately from Legacys results in the

years presented The top of the

Bakken Formation
ranges

from approximately 9500 feet to 10000 feet across QEP Energys leasehold The Three Forks

Formation lies approximately 60 to 70 feet below the Middle Bakken Formation and is also target for horizontal dnllmg As
of December 31 2012 QEP Energy had five operated rigs drillmg the Wilhston Basm

Uinta Basin

The majority of Uinta Basin proved reserves are found in series of vertically stacked laterally discontinuous reservoirs at

depths of 4500 feet to deeper than 18000 feet QEP Energy owns working interests in approximately 257000 net leasehold

acres in the Uinta Basin QEP Energy had three operated rigs drilling in the Uinta Basin at December 31 2012 two of which

were targeting the Lower Mesaverde Formation productive fairway in the Red Wash Unit in which QEP holds 32300 net

acres and the other drilling various vertical and horizontal oil targets

Legacy

The remamder of QEP Energy Northern Region leasehold mterests productive wells and proved reserves are distributed over

number of fields and properties managed as Legacy Exploration and development activity in 2012 included wells in the Powder

River and Greater Green River Basins in Wyoming

Southern Region

Haynesvile/Cotton Valley

QEP Energy has approximately 50700 net acres of Haynesville Shale leaseholds in northwest Louisiana and additional lease

rights that cover the Hosston and Cotton Valley formations The top of the Haynesville Shale ranges from approximately

10500 feet to 12500 feet across QEP Energys leasehold and is below the Hosston and Cotton Valley formations that QEP
Energy has been developing in northwest Louisiana since the 1990s As of December31 2012 due to depressed natural gas

prices QEP Energy did not have any operated rigs drilling in the Haynesville/Cotton Valley area

Midcontinent

QEP Energys Midcontinent operations cover all properties in the Southern Region except the Haynesville/Cotton Valley area

of northwest Louisiana and are distributed over large area including the Anadarko Basin of Oklahoma and the Texas

Panhandle
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QEP Energy has approximately 76000 net acres of Woodford Cana Shale leaseholds in western Oklahoma The top of the

Woodford Shale ranges from approximately 10500 feet to 14500 feet across QEP Energys leasehold As of December 31

2012 QEP Energy had two operated rigs drilling in the WoodfordlCana play

QEP Energy has approximately 35000 net acres of Granite Wash/Atoka Wash leaseholds in the Texas Panhandle and western

Oklahoma and has been drilling vertical Granite Wash/Atoka Wash wells for over decade The top of the Granite Wash/Atoka

Wash interval ranges from approximately 11100 feet to 15900 feet across QEP Energys leasehold In the past few years QEP

and other operators have drilled number of successful horizontal wells in the Granite Wash/Atoka Wash play but have also

drilled some uneconomic wells As of December 31 2012 QEP Energy had one rig drilling in oil and liquids-rich gas playsin

the Texas Panhandle

Reserves QEP Energy

At both December 31 2012 and 2011 approximately 91% of QEP Energys estimated proved reserves were Company operated

Proved developed reserves represented 54% of the Companys total proved reserves at both December 31 2012 and 2011

while the remaining 46% of reserves were classified as proved undeveloped at both December 31 2012 and 2011 All reported

reserves are located in the U.S QEP Energy does not have any long-term supply contracts with foreign governments reserves

of equity investees or reserves of subsidiaries with significant minority interest QEP Energys estimated proved reserves are

summarized as follows

December 31 2012 December31 2011

Oil and NGL are converted to natural
gas equivalents at the ratio of one bbl of crude oil condensate or NGL to six

Mcf of equivalent natural gas

QEP Energys reserve productioti and production life index for each of the years ended December 31 2010 through December

31 2012 is summarized below

2011 3613.8 275.2 13.1

312

Reserve life index is calculated by dividing year-end proved reserves by production for that year

Proved Reserves

Reserve and related information is presented consistent with the requirements of the SECs rules for the Modernization of Oil

and Gas Reporting These rules expand the use of reliable technologies to estimate and categorize reserves and require the use

of the average of the first-of-the-month commodity prices adjusted for location and quality differentials for the prior 12

months unless contractual arrangements designate the price used to calculate economic producibility of reserves and the

discounted cash flows reported as the Standardized Measure of Future Net Cash Flows Relating to Proved Reserves Refer to

Note 17 Supplemental Gas and Oil Information unaudited of in Item of Part II of this Annual Report for additional

information regarding estimates of proved reserves and the preparation of such estimates

Natural

Gas

Bcf

Proved undeveloped

reserves

Natural Gas Natural Natural Gas

Oil NGL Equivalents Gas Oil NGL Equivalents

Mivibbi MilvLbbl Befe Bcf MMbbl MIvIbbl Bcfe

Year ended

December 31

Year End

Reserves Bcfe

Natural Gas Oil

and NGL Production Bcfe

Reserve Life

Index Years
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QEP Energys proved reserves in major operating areas are summarized below

December 31

2012 2011

Northern Region Bcfe of total Bcfe of total

in4a1 30S 131 t1 42%

Williston Basin 614.7 16% 259.0 7%

Uintaasm 6119 16% 393$

Legacy 112.2 3% 128.6 4%444 444 44 /t4j444
Southern Regioii

Haynesville/Cotton Valley 530.5 13% 782.9 22%

Midcpptiiit
__________

13% 187 44
Total QEP Energy 3936.1 100% 3613.8 100%

Estimates of the quantity of proved reserves increased during 2012 primarily related to reserve additions in the Williston and

Uinta Basins offset by decreases in estimated Haynesville/Cotton Valley proved reserves The increase in Williston Basin

reserves was primarily the result of the 2012 Acquisition while increases in the Uinta Basin were attributable to extensions and

additions from the recognition of additional proved undeveloped locatiotu due to QEPs increased drilling program The

Haynesville/Cotton Valley decrease was primarily related to downward pricing related revisions resulting from lower natural

gas prices mostly related to proved undeveloped reserves

Proved Undeveloped Reserves

Significant changes to proved undeveloped reserves PUDs occurring during 2012 are summarized in the table below

2012

Bcfe

Proved utidvke4 reserves t7arSf1 164
Transferred to proved developed reserves 255.6

Purchase

Revisions to previous estimates 283.5

Exnó4ses 49Q

Proved undeveloped reserves at December 31 1824.2

The decrease was primarily related to downward pricing related revisions for Haynesville/Cotton Valley resulting

from lower natural gas prices

All of QEP Energys PUDs at December 31 2012 are scheduled to be developed within five
years from the date such

locations were initially disclosed as PUDs except for 200 Bcfe of reserves located within the northern portion of the

Companys Pinedale Anticline leasehold in western Wyoming Long-term development of natural gas reserves in

Pinedale is governed by the BLMs September 2008 ROD on the FSEIS Under the ROD QEP Energy is allowed to

drill and complete wells year-round in designated concentrated development areas The ROD contains additional

requirements and restrictions on the sequence of development which require the Company to develop its leasehold

from the south to the north These restrictions result in protracted phased development that is beyond the control of

the Company The Company has an ongoing development plan and the financial capability to continue development
in the manner estimated

The costs incurred to continue the development of PUDs were approximately $513.0 million $533.6 million and $434.2

million for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The costs incurred in 2012 related to the drilling

of PUDs in QEPs development projects This investment resulted in the transfer in 2012 of 255.6 Bcfe of reserves from proved
undeveloped to proved developed representing 16% of the Companys total proved undeveloped reserves as of December 31
2011

Estimated future development costs relating to the development of PUDs are projected to be approximately $1042.5 million in

2013 $871.1 million in 2014 and $814.5 million in 2015 Estimated future development costs include capital spending on

major development projects some of which will take several years to complete PUDs related to major development projects
will be reclassified to proved developed reserves when production commences
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Internal Controls Over Proved Reserve Estimates Technical Qualjfications and Technologies Used

Estimates of proved gas and oil reserves have been completed in accordance with professional engineering standards and the

Companys established intemal controls which includes the compliance oversight of multi-functional reserves review

committee reporting to the Companys Board of Directors We retained Ryder Scott Company independent oil and gas reserve

evaluation engineering consultants Ryder Scott to prepare the estimates of 100% of our proved reserves as of December

31 2012 2011 and 2010 The individual at Ryder Scott who was responsible for overseeing the preparation of our reserve

estimates as of December 31 2012 is registered Professional Engineer in the State of Colorado and graduated with Masters

of Science degree in Geological Engineering from the University of Missouri at Rolla in 1976 The individual has over thirty

years experience in the Petroleum Industry including experience estimating and evaluating petroleum reserves more detailed

letter of the individuals professional qualifications has been filed as part of Exhibit 99.1 to this report

The individual at QEP Resources responsible for insuring the accuracy of the reserve estimate preparation material provided to

Ryder Scott and reviewmg the estimates of reserves received from Ryder Scott is our Chief Engineer This individual is

member of the Society of Petroleum Engineers and graduated with Bachelors of Science degree in Geological Engineering

from South Dakota School of Mines and Technology in 1979 He is registered Professional Petroleum Engineer in the state of

Colorado This individual has over 30 years experience in the Petroleum Industry including more than 20 years reservoir

engineering experience in most of the active domestic basins in the U.S

To establish reserves the SEC allows company to use technologies that have been proved effective by actual production from

projects in the same reservoir or an analogous reservoir or by other evidence using reliable technology that establishes

reasonable certainty Reliable technology is grouping of one or more technologies irkiuding computational methods that

have been field tested and have been demonstrated to provide reasonably certain results with consistency and repeatability in

the formation being evaluated or in an analogous formation variety of methodologies were used to determine our proved

reserve estimates The principal methodologies employed are performance analogy volumetric methods or combination of

methods

All of the proved producing reserves attributable to producing wells and/or reservoirs were estimated by performance methods

Performance methods include but may not be limited to decline curve analysis which utilized extrapolations of historical

production data available through December 2012 in those cases where such data were considered to be definitive For wells

currently on production forecasts of future production rates are based on historical performance data If no production decline

trend has been established future production rates were held constant or adjusted for the effects of curtailment where

appropriate until decline in ability to produce was anticipated An estimated rate of decline was then applied to depletion of

the reserves If decline trend has been established this trend was used as the basis for estimating future production rates

Approximately 99% of QEPs proved developed non-producing and undeveloped reserves included in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K were estimated by analogy The remaining one percent of such reserves were estimated by the volumetric method

The volumetric analysis utilized pertinent well data furnished to Ryder Scott by QEP or obtained from available public data

sources through December 2012 Test data and other related information were used to estimate the anticipated initial production

rates for those wells or locations that are not currently producmg For reserves not yet on production sales were estimated to

commence at an anticipated date furnished by QEP Wells or locations that are not currently producing may start producing

earlier or later than anticipated these estimates due to unforeseen factors causing change in the timmg to initiate

production Such factors may include delays due to weather the availability of ngs the sequence of dnllmg completing and/or

recompleting wells and/or constraints set by regulatory bodies The future production rates from wells currently on production

or wells or locations that are not currently producing may be more or less than estimated because of changes including but not

limited to reservoir performance operating conditions related to surface facilities compression and artificial lift pipeline

capacity and/or operating conditions producing market demand and/or allowables or other constraints set by regulatory bodies

Some combination of these methods is used to determine reserve estimates in substantially all of QEPs fields

Refer to Note 17 Supplemental Gas and Oil Information Unaudited of the consolidated financial statements included in

Item of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information pertaining to QEP Energys proved reserves as

of the end of each of the last three years

In addition to this filing QEP Energy will file reserves estimates as of December 31 2012 with the Energy Information

Administration of the Department of Energy on Form EL-23 Although QEP uses the same technical and economic

assumptions when it prepares the EIA23 as used to estimate reserves for this Annual Report on Form 10-K it is obligated to

report reserves for only wells it operates not for all of the wells in which it has an interest and to include the reserves

attributable to other owners in such wells
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Production Production Prices and Production Costs

The following table sets forth the net production volumes the field-level prices per Mcf of natural gas per
bbl of oil and per

bbl of NGL produced and the operating expenses jer Mcfe for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

QEP Energy

Volumes produced and sold

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Oil MMbbl 6306.9 3741.3 2979.8

Total equivalent production Bcfe 319.2 275.2 229.0

Natural
gas per Mcf 2.68 3.95 4.18

NGL per bbl 34.43 47.76 39.04

Lease operating expense 0.55 0.54 0.56

Total lifting costs 0.85 0.90 0.90

The average field-level price does not include the impact of settled commodity price derivatives

summary of natural gas production by major geographical area is shown in the following table

Year ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.20l0

QEP Energy Natural gas BcJ
Northern Re2ion

4448
Williston Basin 0.9 0.1 0.8 0.1

itlt 44
44 44

Legacy 11.4 12.1 13.7 0.7 1.6

Haynesville/Cotton Valley 112.0 107.1 79.3 4.9 27.8

4rts4 çci
Total production 249.3 236.4 203.8 12.9 32.6
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summary of oil production by major geographical area is shown in the following table

QEP Energy Oil MUd
Northern Re2ion

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

fjflflj /4 L4 S3c
Williston Basin 3029.5 1133.5 478.7 1896.0 654.8

StaSa1tL %% io
Legacy

297.6 271.0 269.5 26.6 1.5

ftn fl fl 4u flfl Ut

Haynesville/Cotton Valley
43.4 51.0 78.4 7.6 27.4

$L4contuzent4 1IJfr4fl 443
44

Total production 6306.9 3741.3 2979.8 2565.6 761.5

summary of NOL production by major geographical area is shown in the following table

Year ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

QEP Energy NGL Mbbl
Northern Re2ion

ftked1t 44flfl b44tos

Williston Basin 197.1 29.5 3.9 167.6 25.6

IjiutaBasin 4494 444

Legacy
100.1 100.5 97.9 0.4 2.6

Soutliernite2ou Utfl flu 4fl4 Uju4 uu 944

Raynesville/Cotton Valley
8.5 8.4 5.5 0.1 2.9

M4qontto 444 494 Ufl2 4444 467 444
44 742

Total production 5349.0 2715.6 1225.8 2633.4 1489.8

summary of natural gas equivalent total production by major geographical area is shown in the following table

Year ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

QEP Energy Total Production Bcfe

Northern Reion

tPjnedale n494 7444

Williston Basin 20.3 7.1 2.9 13.2 4.2

thntaBd$4 i$P ZOt 2L 31 44fl t6

Legacy 13.7 14.2 15.8 0.5 1.6

SoutbernR.egto 44 444% 444% 44 44 fl 4444 44

444
4444 44

Haynesville/Cotton Valley
112.3 107.5 79.8 4.8 27.7

Pinedale

Net production from the Pinedale Anticline located in westem Wyoming grew 26% to 99.7 Bcfe during 2012 compared to the

year
earlier Net production

from Pinedale grew 16% to 79.4 Bcfe during 2011 compared to year earlier Pinedale production

growth in 2012 and 2011 was driven by increased drilling activity over that period and the fee-based processing agreement at

Blacks Fork II entered into in the third quarter of 2011 between QEP Energy and QEP Field Services As result of the

processing agreement QEP Energys NGL production at Pinedale during 2012 was 3054.3 Mbbl contrasted with 1099.6

Year ended December 31 Change

Total production
319.2 275.2 229.0 44.0 46.2

Northern Region
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Mbbl in the comparable 2011 period During the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 Pinedales production

represented 31% 29% and 30% of QEP Energys total production respectively

Willis/on Basin

In the Williston Basin production mcreased 186% to 20 Bcfe during 2012 from the year earlier and increased 145% during

2011 compared to 2010 due to mcreased oil-directed drilling activity in the basin In addition the 2012 Acquisition

contributed 5.2 Bcfe of increased production in the fourth quarter 2012 During the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and

2010 Williston Basin production represented 6% 3% and 1% of QEP Energys total production respectively

Uinta Basin

In the Uinta Basin which is located in eastern Utah production increased 15% to 23.9 Bcfe during 2012 due to increase4

drilling activity in the Lower Mesaverde formation in the Red Wash Unit NGL production increased 264.7 Mbbl during 2012

compared to 2011 primarily as result of QEP Energy executing cryogenic fee-based processing agreement with QEP Field

Services for portion of the Red Wash Units natural
gas production in mid-2012 During 2011 production decreased 3% from

decreased drilling activity despite first quarter 2Q11 prior-period adjustment of QEPs ownership interest within federal unit

participating area which resulted in positive adjustment to reported volumes of 1.6 Bcfe During the years ended December

31 2012 2011 and 2010 Uinta Basin production represented 7% 8% and 9% respectively of QEP Energys total production

Legacy

QEP Energys Legacy properties include all Northern Region Rockies properties except those at Pinedale the Williston Basin

and the Uinta Basin Legacys net production during 2012 decreased 4% to 13.7 Bcfe and decreased 10% during the year ended

December 31 2011 The decreased production was primarily due to declining production on older wells partially offset by

drilling activity in the Powder River Basin During both the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 Legacys production

represented 4% of QEP Energys total production and 7% during the year ended December 31 2010

Southern Re2ion

Haynesvile/Cotton Valley

Net production from the Haynesville Shale and Cotton Valleys tight sand gas plays in northwest Louisiana increased 4% to

112.3 Bcfe during 2012 when compared to 2011 The increase in 2012 was due to the completion of several high-rate wells in

early 2012 that were drilled during the latter half of 2011 QEP Energy has discontinued operated development drilling in the

Haynesville Shale and Cotton Valleys tight sand
gas plays in response to depressed natural gas prices QEP Energy expects

production from the Haynesville/Cotton Valley to continue to decline from its peak in the second quarter of 2012 as the last

operated rig was released in July 2012 In addition the completion of five wells that were drilled and cased in 2012 were

completed in January 2013 Net production in the Haynesville/Cotton Valley area grew 35% to 107.5 Bcfe during 2011

compared to 2010 due to the Companys active drilling in the play in 2011 During the
years ended December 31 2012 2011

and 2010 Haynesville/Cotton Valleys production comprised 35% 39% and 35% of QEP Energys total production

respectively

Midcontinen/

Net production in the Midcontinent grew 7% to 49.3 Bcfe during 2012 compared to 2011 driven by 65% increase in crude oil

production and an 18% increase in NGL production Net production in the Midcontinent grew 14% to 46.2 Bcfe during 2011

compared to 2010 Midcontinent production growth in 2012 and 2011 was driven by the continued development of the Granite

Wash Marmaton and Tonkawa plays in Texas and western Oklahoma and the Woodford Cana Shale liquids-rich gas play in

the Anadarko Basin of western Oklahoma During the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 Midcontinents

production represented 15% 17% and 18% of QEP Energys total production respectively
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Productive Wells

The following table summarizes the Companys productive wells as of December 31 2012 all of which are located in the U.S

Natural
gas

Oil

Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

Northern Region

Pmedale 47L3 4O 71 4Q

Williston Basin 263 108 263 108

Uhitasni
55 SSS/S S44//// /55/ /$S44fl5555 55555 5/55//S/5

Legacy 787 248 381 133 1168 381

SSS594/44 54s5fls SSS /5/

SoutheinRa1çu

Haynesville/Cotton Valley 815 469 816 469

Iidbntmdiit if 44s 861

Total productive wells 5524 2427 2845 548 8369 2975

The term gross refers to all wells or acreage
inwhich QEP has at least partial working interest and the term net refers to

QEPs ownership represented by that working interest Although many wells produce both natural gas
and oil and many natural

gas wells also have allocated NGL volumes from processing well is categorized as either natural gas or an oil well based

upon the ratio of gas to oil produced at the weithead Each gross well completed in more than one producing zone is counted as

single well At December 31 2012 the Company had 77 gross wells with completions in more than one reservoir

The Company also holds numerous overriding royalty interests in oil and gas wells portion of which are convertible to

working interests after recovery of certain costs by third parties Once the overriding royalty interest are converted to working

interests these wells are included in the Companys gross and net well count

Total
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Leasehold Acreage

The following table summarizes developed and undeveloped leasehold acreage in which the Company owns working interest

or mineral interest as of December 31 2012 Undeveloped Acreage includes leasehold interests that already may have been

classified as containing proved undeveloped reserves and unleased mineral interest
acreage

owned by the Company Excluded

from the table is acreage in which the Companys interest is limited to royalty ovemdmg royalty and other similar interests All

leasehold acres are located in the U.S

Developed Acres Undeveloped Acres Total Acres

Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

Northern Re2ion

lOXQ

Montana 33245 10776 343606 62764 376851 73540

NewMaea 94$6n /\

NorthDakota 97222 42523 214232 85834 311454 128357
//%44/4

South Dakota fl4t 40 1Pi
Wyoming 272964 159598 351361 247842 624325 407440

4tah 4n riatMP
Other 13986 3723 157059 42129 171045 45852

////

SotheiteiOu.4 4$t/fl
Arkansas 40423 11352 2940 1884 43363 13236

2z4 tsaMcU atmIjnswt tsoi iSafft

Louisiana 79652 65103 2205 2165 81857 67268

Oklahoma 59$$f44 sW 1Mn6t
Texas 130241 42744 45893 45091 176134 87835

Total 1743832 946258 2184891 929653 3928723 1875911

Developed acreage is leased acreage assigned to productive wells

Undeveloped acreage is leased acreage on which wells have not been drilled or completed to point that would permit

the production of commercial quantities of natural gas and oil regardless of whether such acreage contains proved

reserves

Expiring Leaseholds

portion of.the leases summarized in the preceding table will expire at the end of their respective primary terms unless the

leases are renewed or drilling or production has occurred on the acreage subject to the lease prior to that date Leases held by

production remain in effect until production ceases The following table sets forth the gross and net undeveloped acres subject

to leases summarized in the preceding table that will expire during the periods indicated

Undeveloped Acres Expiring

Gross Net

Year ending December 31

2013 107088 62324

2014 59538 43584

2015 90924 72145

2016 35496 32921

2017 andlater 116851 112614

Total 409897 323588
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Drilling Activity

The following table summarizes the number of development and exploratory wells drilled during the years indicated

Developmental Wells Exploratory Wells

Productive Dry Productive Dry

Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

Year Ended December 31 2012

Northern Re2ion

iO2O
Williston Basin 88.0 28.0

1ifl 55 55
55

Legacy 31.0 6.6

5555 545

Haynesville/Cotton Valley 35.0 15.7 2.0 1.6

M4çntinent i5
Total 667.0 200.9 3.0 2.2

555 5454555ss55ss5455ss s5ssYeEia 11
4554

Northern Region

niMe 7165

Uinta Basin 176.0 6.345S t5Ss555
55545 444 2z

Southern Region

91 67 2t

Midcontinent 221.0 39.6 4.0 1.9

ti
55 55

Year Ended December 31 2010

55
sss

Pinedale

Legacy

Haynesville/Cotton Valley

Mdit
Total

103.0 72.5

88.0 3.9

42.0 7.7 1.0 0.9

85.0 44.0 33.0 16.2 1.0 1.0

980 224

516.0 170.5 33.0 16.2 2.0 1.9

Due to the 2012 Acquisition the Company began breaking out the results of Williston Basin from Legacy in 2012

The Legacy well totals for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 include the total development and

exploratory wells drilled in the Williston Basin

5454 44254
4$4
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The following table presents operated and non-operated well completions for the year ended December 31 2012

Operated Completions Non-operated Completions

Gross Net Gross Net

4. .4

Pinedale 102 73.3

Uinta Basin 48 45.2 207 0.5

Haynesville/Cotton Valley 29 16.5 0.8

4449499 99
4.1s

The following table presents operated and non-operated wells drilling and waiting on completion at December 31 2012

Operated Non-operated

Waiting on Waiting on

Drilling completion Drilling completion

Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

Northern Region

WillistonBasin 11 9.4 8.0 16 1.1 23 0.8

TintaB.sl_t..Ytttt 99944 9449 tMZtfl.a...49449tttU ...n..

Legacy 0.2

99449 4449 444 4444 44494 949 4449444%4 44 4444%
__________________ 444wl 99494 444

Haynesville/Cotton Valley 2.4

QEP suspends Pinedale completion operations during the coldest months of the winter generally from December to

mid-March

Leliveiy Commitments

The Company sells NGL under term sales agreement that contains delivery commitment for 8500 barrels per day of NGL
extracted at several of QEP Field Services gas processing facilities in the Northern Region The agreement which was

effective May 2010 extends for period of seven years and contains terms and conditions customary for an agreement of

this type in the oil and gas industry The Company believes that the reserves dedicated to its gas processing facilities and

projected processing volumes are adequate to satisfr its delivery commitments under this agreement

The Company is party to various long-term sales commitments for physical delivery of natural gas with future firm delivery

commitments as follows

Delivery

Commitments

Period millions of MMBtubEt .44.4444.4
2014 54.8

9444449444444 944.4444k44 4944492984

These commitments are physical delivery obligations with prices related to the prevailing index prices for natural gas at the

time of delivery None of these commitments require the Company to deliver natural gas produced specifically from any of the

Companys properties The Company believes that its production and reserves are adequate to meet these term sales

commitments If for some reason the Companys natural gas productionis not sufficient to satisfy its term sales commitments

the Company believes it can purchase sufficient volumes of natural gas in the market at index-related prices to satisfy its
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commitments See also Item Contractual Cash Obligations and Other Commitments for discussion of firm transportation

and storage commitments related to natural gas deliveries

In addition none of the Companys production from QEP Energys owned properties is subject to any priorities proration or

third-party imposed curtailments that may affect quantities delivered to its customers any priority allocations or price

limitations imposed by federal or state regulatory agencies or any other factors beyond the Companys control that may affect

its ability to meet its contractual obligations other than those discussed in Item 1A Risk Factors in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

Midstream Field Services QEP Field Services

QEP Field Services owns 1950 miles of gathering lines in Utah Wyoming Colorado Louisiana and North Dakota At

December 31 2012 QEP Field Services owns six processing plants which extract NGL from the natural gas stream and have

an aggregate capacity of 1.37 Bcf per day of unprocessed natural gas In addition QEP Field Services owns treating facilities in

northwest Louisiana which remove impurities from the natural gas stream and have an aggregate capacity of 600 MMcf per day

of untreated natural gas QEP Field Services also owns compression facilities and field dehydration and measurement systems

The 21-mile 20-inch diameter pipeline owned by Rendezvous Pipeline can deliver up to 300 MMcf of natural gas per day to

the Kern River Pipeline QEP Field Services partnership facilities include the RGS system consisting of 300 miles of gathering

lines and associated field equipment the UBFS system which consists of 78 miles of gathering lines and associated field

equipment and the Three Rivers system which consists of 52 miles of gathering lines and associated field equipment QEP

Field Services Company owns 60 mile crude oil pipeline regulated by FERC under the ICA

In February 2013 QEP Field Services put into service the 150 MlvIcf per day cryogenic hon Horse II processing plant an

expansion of its Stagecoach and Iron Horse processing complex in the Uinta Basin of eastern Utah The plant predominantly

provides fee-based processing services to third parties and affiliates

Energy Marketing QEP Marketing

QEP Marketing owns and operates an underground gas storage reservoir in southwestern Wyoming The reservoir has gas

storage capacity of approximately Bcf comprised of an inventory of approximately Bcf of QEP Marketing-owned cushion

gas and working gas storage capacity of about Bcf

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

QEP is defendant in number of lawsuits and is involved in governmental proceedings and regulatory controls arising in the

ordinary course of business QEP is also subject to various environmental-remediation and reclamation obligations arising from

federal state and local laws and regulations While the ultimate outcome and impact on QEP cannot be predicted with

certamty except as discussed below management does not believe that the resolution of pendmg proceedmgs will matenally

affect the Companys consolidated fmancial position results of operations or cash flows

Chieftain Royalty Company QEP Energy Company Case No CJ2O1 1-1 District Court for the Western District of

Oklahoma This statewide class action was filed on January 20 2011 on behalf of QEPs Oklahoma royalty owners asserting

various claims for damages related to royalty valuation on all of QEPs Oklahoma wells operated by QEP or from which QEP

marketed gas Claims included breach of contract breach of fiduciary duty fraud unjust enrichment tortious breach of

contract conspiracy and conversion based generally on asserted improper deduction of post-production costs The Court

certified the class as to the breach of contract breach of fiduciary duty and unjust enrichment claims The parties successfully

mediated the case in January 2013 On February 13 2013 the parties executed Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement the

Chieftain Settlement Agreement providing for cash payment from QEP to the class in the amount of $115.0 million payable

into an escrow account within five business days following the Courts preliminary approval of the settlement In consideration

for the settlement payment QEP will receive full release of all claims regarding the calculation reporting and payment of

royalties from the sale of natural gas and its constituents for all periods prior to February 28 2013 and all class members are

enjoined from asserting claims related to such royalties As part of the Chieftain Settlement Agreement the parties also agreed

on the methodology for the calculation and payment of future royalties payable by QEP or its successors and assigns under all

class leases for the life of such leases The Court has entered Preliminary Order Approving Class Action Settlement

Questar Gas Company QEP Field Services Company Civil No 120902969 Third Judicial District Court State of Utah QEP

Field Services former affiliate Questar Gas Company QOC filed this complaint in state court in Utah on May 2012

asserting claims for breach .of contract and breach of implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing for an accounting and

declaratory judgment related to 1993 gathering agreement 1993 Agreement entered into when the parties were affiliates
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Under the 1993 Agreement QEP Field Services provides gathering services for producing properties developed by former

affiliate Wexpro Company on behalf of QGCs utility ratepayers The core dispute pertains to the annual calculation of the

gathering rate which is based on cost of service concept expressed the 1993 Agreement and 1998 amendment The

annual gathering rate has been calculated in the same manner under the contract since it was amended in 1998 without any

prior objection or challenge by QGC Specific monetary damages are not asserted Also on May 2012 QEP Field Services

Company filed legal action against QGC entitled QEP Field Services Company Questar Gas Company in the Second

District Court in Denver County Colorado seeking declaratory judgment relating to its gathering service and charges under the

same agreement

In October 2009 the Company received cease and desist order from the U.S Army Corps of Engineers COE to refrain from

unpermitted work resulting in the discharge of dredged and/or fill material into waters of the United States at three sites located

in Caddo and Red River Parishôs Louisiana EPA Region has assumed lead responsibility for enforcement of the cease and

desist order and any possible future orders for the removal of unauthorized fills and/or civil penalties under the Clean Water

Act In 2012 the Company completed field audit which identified 112 additional instances affecting approximately 90 acres

where work may have been conducted in violation of the Clean Water Act The Company has disclosed each of these instances

to the EPA under the EPAs Audit Policy to reduce penalties and to the COE The Company is working with the EPA and the

COE to resolve thŁsematers which will require the Company to undertake certain mitigation and permitting activities and

may require the Company to pay monetary penalty At this time QEP is unable to estimate the potential loss related to this

matter but believes it exceeds the $100000 threshold for disclosure of environmental matters

Se.e also Note Commitments and Contingencies to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this Annual

Report

ITEM MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PARTII

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AN
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

QEPs common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange NYSE QEP As of January 31 2013 QEP had

7260 shareholders of record The declaration and payment of dividends are at the discretion of QEPs Board of Directors -and

the amount thereof will depend on QEPs results of operations financial condition contractual restrictions cash requirements

future prospects and other factors deemed relevant by the Companys Board of Directors The Company expects that cash

dividends will continue to be paid in the future

The following table is summary of the high and low sales- price per share of QEPs common stock on the NYSE and quarterly

dividends paid per share

High pnce Low pnce Dividend

per share

2012

Thrst3uarter
24 9$

Second quarter
32.03 24.35 0.02

Tfrdquartt 4-44
Fourth quarter 32.92 25.99 0.02

1-- 11i-4 94444
4- 941 44 4-1

2011

Fkt
qiarter

1- 11 11
11$ 15.78I $4-

Second quarter
43.70 37.11 0.02

lhird quaiter 4199 4-j- 49 sz

Fourth quarter
38.44 23.56 0.02

Stock Performance Graph

The following stock performance information in this Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is not deemed to be soliciting

material or to be filed with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or to the

liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into

any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 except to the extent QEP specifically

incorporate it by reference into such filing

The perfonnance presentation shown below is being furnished as required by applicable rules of the SEC and was prepared

using the following assumptions

$100 investment was made in QEPs common stock the SP 500 Index and the Companys peer group as of

July 2010 which is the date when QEPs common stock began trading on the NYSE
Investment in the Companys peer group was weighted based on the stock market capitalization of each individual

company within the peer group at the beginning of each period for which return is indicated and

Dividends were reinvested on the relevant payment dates

QEPs peer group as defined consists of the following companies Cabot Oil Gas Corporation Cimarex Energy Company

Denbury Resources Inc EOG Resources Inc Forest Oil Corporation Newfield Exploration Company Noble Energy Inc

Pioneer Natural Resources Company Plains Exploration Production Company Quicksilver Resources Inc Range

Resources Corporation Southwestern Energy Company Ultra Petroleum Corporation and Whiting Petroleum Corporation

Management believes this peer group provides meaningful comparison based upon the Companys review of asset size

geographic location of assets market capitalization revenues culture and performance among other things
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Cômpeoion of Comulative Returu Since Jneption

Aonmtm Initiai hweatment of SIlO

December2012

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities Purchases of Equity Securities by QEP and Affihated Purchasers

QEP had no unregistered sales of securities or purchases of equity securities by QEP or affiliated purchasers during the fourth

quarter of 2012
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected financial data for the five years ended December 31 2012 is provided in the table below Refer to Item and Item

in Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-k for discussion of facts affecting the comparability of the Companys financial

data

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

in millions except per share information

Results of Operations

Revenues 2349.8 3159.2 2300.6 2011.2 2360.9

Operating loss income 133.3 505.9 545.3 585.5 933.2

Income from continuing operations 132.0 270.4 285.9 215.4 520.6

Discontinued operations net of income tax 43.2 80.7 73.9

Net income attributable to QEP 1283 2672 326.2 293.5 585.5

Earnings per common share attributable to QEP

Basic from continuing operations 0.72 1.51 1.61 1.23 2.96

Basic from discontinued operations 0.25 0.46 0.43

Basictotal 0.72 131 1.86 1.69 3.39

Diluted from continuing operations 0.72 1.50 1.60 1.21 2.90

Diluted from discontinued operations 0.24 0.46 0.42

Dilutedtotal 0.72 1.50 1.84 1.67 3.32

Dividends per share 0.08 0.08 0.04

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Used in basic calculation 177.8 176.5 1753 174.1 172.8

Used in diluted calculation 178.7 178.4 177.3 176.3 176.1

Financial Position

Total Assets at December 31 9108.5 7442.7 6785.3 6481.4 6342.7

Capitalization at December 31

Long-term debt 3206.9 1679.4 1530.8 1348.7 1299.1

Total equity 3313.7 3352.1 3063.1 2808.7 2779.4

Total Capitalization 6520.6 5031.5 4593.9 4157.4 4078.5

Cash Flow From Continuing Operations

Net cash provided by operating activities 1296.0 1292.6 997.5 1149.4 1224.7

Capital expenditures 2799.7 1431.1 1469.0 1196.9 2136.7

Net cash used in investing activities 2794.5 1422.9 1.390.5 1146.4 2021.0

Net cash provided by used in fmancing activities 1498.5 130.3 373.7 8.8 818.7

TSTon-GAAP Measures

Adjusted EBITDA 141S.5 1386.6 1140.5 1165.5 1310.7

QEP completed Spin-off from Questar in June 2010 as discussed in more detail in Item of Part of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K As result of the Spin-off Wexpros fmancial results have been reflected as discontinued

operations and all priorperiods have been recast

Revenue for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 reflect the impact of QEPs settled derivative contracts

which during the year ended December 31 2012 are reflected below operating loss income See Note Derivative

Contracts in Part II Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for detailed information on derivative contract

settlements in the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010
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Adjusted EBITDA is non-GAAP financial measure Management defines Adjusted EBITDA as net income before

the following items separation costs accrued litigation loss contingency depreciation depletion and amortization

exploration expense abandonment and impairment gains and losses from asset sales unrealized gains and losses on

derivative contracts interest and other income loss on early extinguishment of debt interest expense income taxes

and discontinued operations Management focuses on Adjusted EBITDA to assess the Companys operating results

Management believes Adjusted EBITDA is an important measure of the Companys cash flow and liquidity and its

ability to incur and service debt fund capital expenditures and make distributions to shareholders and an important

measure for comparing the Companys financial performance to other gas and oil producing companies

The following table reconciles QEP Resources net income to Adjusted EBITDA

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

in millions except per share information

Adjusted EBITDA

Net1ntomeat11%4ath$4kF J4 JNt$4 4z 6gs
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 3.7 3.2 2.9 2.6 9.0

Netmocine $945

Discontinued operations net of tax 43.2 80.7 73.9

414flj0
Unrealized gains losses on derivative contracts 63.2 117.7 121.7 164.0 79.2

Netgamsfrorqetj1s4nn24 4nn Ct2Ji P4
Interest and other income 6.6 4.1 2.3 4.5 10.2

Intaxes 4ZSLI 4C4 1174

Interest expense 122.9 90.0 84.4 70.1 61.7

Accrued4Ibganottlos1otitsnencyVl4 __ 4.4

Separation costs 13.5

904.9 765.4 643.4 559.1

ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations MIDA is intended to provide

reader of the financial statements with narrative from the perspective of management on the financial condition results of

operations liquidity and certain other factors that may affect the Companys operating results MDA should be read in

conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes included in Item of Part II of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

The following information updates the discussion of QEPs financial condition provided its 2011 Annual Report on Form 10

filing and analyzes the changes in the results of operations between the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 and

between the
years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

OVERVIEW

QEP Resources Inc QEP or the Company is holding company with three major lines of business natural gas and crude oil

exploration and production QEP Energy midstream field servicesQEP Field Services and
energy marketing QEP

Marketing

Depreciation depletion and amortization 361.5

See Note Commitments and Contingencies to the consolidated financial statements Item of Part II of this

Annual Report
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Outlook

The Company has substantial acreage positions and operations in some of the most prolific hydrocarbon resource plays in the

continental United States including the Williston Basin Pinedale Anticline Uinta Basin Woodford Cana and Haynesville

Shale These resource plays are characterized by unconventional oil or natural gas accumulations in continuous tight sands or

shales that underlie broad geographic areas The lateral continuity of such resource plays means that aside from wells

abandoned due to mechanical issues the Company does not expect to drill many unsuccessful wells as it develops these

resource plays Resource plays allow the Company the opportunity to gain considerable operational efficiencies through high-

density repeatable drilling and completion operations The Company has large inventory of lower-risk predictable

development drilling locations across its acreage holdings in the onshore United States that provide solid base for consistent

growth in organic production and reserves QEP believes that it has one of the lowest cash operating structures among its

exploration and production company peers However in certain of its resource plays QEP along with its peers has

experienced increased drilling and completion costs which could impact future drilling plans

While predominantly natural gas producer the Company has increased its focus on growing the relative proportion of crude

oil and NGL production in its exploration and production business As part of the Companys liquids growth strategy QEP

Energy completed the 2012 Acquisition during the third quarter of 2012 and acquired oil and gas properties in the Williston

Basin

During the year ended December 31 2012 QEP Energy increased its crude oil and NUL production by 80% compared with

2011 During 2012 crude oil and NGL revenue accounted for approximately 52% of QEP Energys field-level production

revenues

While QEP believes that it can grow production and reserves from its extensive inventory of identified drilling locations the

Company continues to evaluate acquisition opportunities that might create significant long-term value QEP believes that its

experience expertise and substantial presence in its core operating areas combined with its low-cost operating model and

financial strength enhance its ability to pursue acquisition opportunities In addition the Company is seeking to divest select

non-core portfolio assets to redirect capital towards higher-return projects

QEP owns and operates gathering and transmission pipelines and natural gas processing and treatment facilities in many of its

core producing areas These assets enable the Company to promptly connect its wells better control its costs and generate

significant consistent revenue stream by providing gathering and processing services to third parties In early January 2013

QEP announced that its Board of Directors had authorized the formation of Master Limited Partnership MLP to support the

growth of QEPs midstream business QEP expects to file registration statement with the SEC in the second quarter
of 2013

for an initial public offering of common units of the MLP QEP plans to contribute majority of its gathering assets in

Wyoming and North Dakota to the MLP QEP expects to sell minority interest in the MLP and raise $300 million to $400

million in gross proceeds QEP plans to use the proceeds from such offering to fund ongoing operations to repay debt under

the Companys revolving credit facility and for general corporate purposes QEPs announcement of this plan did not and this

disclosure does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities and shall not constitute an

offer solicitation or sale in any jurisdiction in which such offer solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or

qualification under the securities laws of that jurisdiction

Financial and Operating Results

During the year ended December 31 2012 QEP Energy experienced substantial production growth while QEP Field Services

increased system throughput For the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 QEP Energy reported total equivalent

production of 319.2 Bcfe and 275.2 Bcfe increases of 16% and 20% from the 2011 and 2010 comparable prior periods

respectively QEP Field Services gathering throughput volumes during the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 were 2%

and 4% higher respectively than the 2011 and 2010 comparable periods During the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

QEP Field Services reported 3% and 42% increases in NGL sales volumes respectively QEPField Services fee-based

processing volumes were 4% and 6% higher during the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively when

compared to the prior year periods

The increases in production at QEP Energy and system throughput at QEP Field Services were offset by declining commodity

prices at both QEP Energy and QEP Field Services For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 QEP Energys

average net realized equivalent prices including realized commodity derivative impact were $5.48 per Mcfe $5.72 per Mcfe

and $5.81 per Mcfe respectively In addition atQEP Field Services the increase in NGL sales volumes during 2012 was

offset by decrease in average net realized NGL sales prices Specifically during 2012 21% decrease in the average net
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realized NGL sales price occurred resulting in 35% decrease to the keep-whole processing margin During 2011 QEP Field

Services average net realized sales prices were 34% higher than 2010

At the end of the third quarter of 2012 QEP Energy acquired oil and gas properties in the Williston Basin for approximately

$1.4 billion The properties are located in Williams and McKenzie counties of North Dakota approximately 12 miles west of

QEPs existing core acreage in the Williston Basin The 2012 Acquisition added revenues of $63.7 million and net income of

$14.9 million to QEPs fourth quarter results

In the first quarter of 2012 QEP completed public offering for $500.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.375% senior

notes due in October 2022 2022 Senior Notes The 2022 Senior Notes were issued at par The net proceeds of $493.1 million

were used to repay indebtedness under .QEPsrevolving creditfacility

During the second quarter of 2012 QEP entered into $300.0 million senior unsecured term loan agreement Term Loan with

group of financial institutions The Term Loan provides for borrowings at short-term interest rates and contains covenants

restrictions and interest rates that are substantially the same as the Companys existing revolving credit agreement The Term

Loan matures in April 2017 and the maturity date may be extended one year with the agreement of the lenders In conjunction

with the Term Loan QEP entered into interest rate swap contracts with an aggregate notional amount of $300.0 million that

effectively lock in fixed rate of 1.07% that QEP will pay over the duration of the Term Loan

QEP completed public offering for $650.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.25% senior notes due in May 2023

2023 Senior Notes inthethird quarter of 2012 The 2023 Senior Notes wete issued at par The estimated net proceeds of

approximately $641 million were used to fund portion of the 2012 Acquisition

Factors Affecting Results of Operations

OilNatural Gas and NGL Prices

Historically field-level prices received for QEPs natural gas NGL and crude oil production have been volatile and

unpredictable and that volatility is expected to continue In recent years domestic ilatural gas supply has grown faster than

natural gas demand driven by advances in drilling and completion technologiesincluding horizontal drilling and multi-stage

hydraulic fracturing These changes have allowed producers to extract increased quantities of natural gas from shale tight sand

formations and other unconventional reservoirs Increased natural gas supplies have resulted in downward pressure on natural

gas prices while concern about the global economy and other factors has created volatility in the price of crude oil Changes in

the market prices for natural gas crude oil and NGL directly impact many aspects of QEPs business including its fmancial

condition revenues results of operations planned drilling activity and related capital expenditures liquidity rate of growth

and costs of goods and services required to drill and complete wells and may impact the carrying value of its oil andnatural

gas properties

QEP uses commodity derivatives to reduce the volatility of the prices QEP receives for portion of its production and to

protect cash flow and returns on invested capital from drop in commodity prices Generally QEP intends to enter into

commodity derivative contracts for approximately 50% of its forecasted annual production by the end .of the first quarter of

each fiscal year Assuming 2013 annual production of 327.5 Bcfe QEP Energy had approximately 44% of its forecasted natural

gas oil and NGL equivalent production covered with fixed-price swaps or costless collars including 51% of its forecasted

natural gas production covered with fixed-price swaps See Item 7A of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further

details concerning QEPs commodity derivatives transactions In addition as result of.the continued relative price relationship
between crude oil NGL and natural gas prices QEP Energy has allocated approximately 98% of its 2013 total forecasted

capital expenditure budget to crude oil and liquids-rich natural gas plays.

Unrealized Derivative Gains and Losses

The Company elected to discontinue hedge accounting beginning January 2012 and unrealized gains and losses from mark-

to-market valuations of all derivative positions are reflected as unrealized derivative gains or losses in the Companys
Consolidated Statement of Operations See Note Derivative Contracts to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item

Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information regarding the discontinuance of hedge accounting The

payments due to or from counterparties on these derivatives will typically be offset by corresponding changes in prices

ultimately received from the sale of QEPs production QEP has incurred significant unrealized gains and losses in 2012 and in

prior penods and may continue to incur these types of gams and losses in the future
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Global Geopolitical and Macroeconomic Factors

QEP continues to monitor the outlook of the global economy including the European debt crisis and its potential impact on

global economic growth and the banldng and financial sectors political unrest in the Middle East slowing of growth in Asia

particularly China the United States federal budget deficit changes in regulatory oversight policy and commodity price

volatility dramatic decline in regional or global economic conditions major recession or depression regional political

instability economic sanctions war or other factors beyond the control of QEP could have significant impact on natural gas

NGL and crude oil supply demand and prices and could materially impact the Companys financial position results of

operations and cash flow from operations and operating activities

Supply Demand and Other Market Risk Factors

U.S natural gas
directed drilling rig count decreased throughout 2012 as producers reduced drilling for natural gas in response

to low natural gas prices reduction in natural gas production has lagged the downturn in the natural gas rig count because

natural gas producers have significant inventory of drilled wells waiting on completion and new high-rate horizontal wells

continue to be completed As result of the lag U.S natural gas production did not decline in 2012 The U.S natural gas

market entered the storage injection season with record high inventory levels However strong natural gas demand from

electric power generation has resulted in general firming of natural gas prices during the last half of 2012 Despite increased

stability in natural
gas prices during the second half of 2012 QEP expects U.S natural gas prices to remain volatile and below

the five year average price over the near term Continued low natural gas prices have caused U.S EP companies including

QEP to shift capital investments away from predominantly dry gas areas toward plays that are known to have liquids-rich

natural gas
and crude oil This.shift in focus has caused domestic NGL production to increase dramatically Increased NGL

products warmer-than-average wintersand price dislocations from infrastructure bottlenecks in certainregions have all

contributed to weakening in domestic NGL prices particularly ethane QEP expects NGL prices to remain volatile for the

foreseeable future QEP anticipates global crude oil prices to remain near current levels assuming the global economy and

socio-political backdrops remain relatively stable Disruption to the global oil supply system political and/or economic

instability and/or other factors could trigger additional volatility in crude oil prices In addition transportation refining or

other infrastructure constraints could introduce significant price differentials between regional markets where QEP sells its

crude oil production and national NYMEX or Cushing and global Brent or U.S Gulf Coast markets Because of the global

and regional price volatility and the uncertainty around the commodity price environment QEP continues to manage its capital

spending program and financial flexibility accordingly

Potential for Future Asset Impairments

In 2012 U.S natural gas prices were lower than in 2011 and 2010 The carrying value of the Companys properties is sensitive

to declines in natural gas crude oil and NGL prices These assets are at risk of impairment if future prices for natural gas crude

oil or NGL prices decline The cash flow model that the Company uses to assess proved properties for impairment includes

numerous assumptions such as managements estimates of future oil gas and NGL production market outlook on forward

commodity prices operating and development costs and discount rates All inputs to the cash flow model must be evaluated at

each date of estimate However decrease in forward natural gas crude oil and NGL prices alone could result in an

impairment of properties For additional information see Item lA- Risk Factors of Part and see Item of Partil Note

Significant Accounting Policies of this Annual Report on Form 10-K During the year ended December 31 2012 QEP

recorded abandonment and impairment charges of $133.4 million on some of its oil and gas properties The impairment

charges related to the reduced value of certain fields resulting frOm lower natural gas crude oil and NGL prices and

impairments of unproven leaseholdcosts Proved impainnents were primarily the result of lower natural gas and NGL prices

that impacted the carrying value of proved reserves in several Midcontinent Oklahoma and Texas and one Uinta Basin

successful efforts pools Of the $133.4 million abandonment and impairment charge during 2012 $107.6 million related to the

impairment chargeon proved properties and $23.7 million related to impairment on unproved properties Oil and gas properties

and leaseholds in the Southern Region accounted for $104.8 million of the $133.4 million abandonment and impairment

charges during 2012 and $28.6 million related to oil and gas properties and leaseholds in the Northern Region

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Income

QEP Resources net income attributable to QEP during the year ended December 31 2012 was $128.3 million or $0.72 per

diluted share compared to $267.2 million or $1.50 per diluted share in 2011 The decrease in net income during 2012 was

due to an 101% decrease in QEP Energys net income 17% decrease in QEP Field Services net income and an 100%

decrease in QEP Marketing and other net income QEP Energys net income decreased during 2012 due to the accrual of

$115.0 million litigation loss contingency 4% lower net realized equivalent commodity prices and 18% increase in DDA
partially offset by $68.4 million unrealized gain on commodity derivative contracts $87.9 million lower proved property

impairment charges and production volumes that increased 16% QEP Field Services decrease in net income during 2012 was
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driven by 35% decrease in the keep-whole processing margin and 7% lower gathering margins QEP Resources net income

from continuing operations attributable to QEP in 2011 was $267.2 miffion or $1.50 per diluted share compared to $283.0

million or $1.60 per diluted share in 2010 The decrease in 2011 was due to $99.2 million or 49% decline in QEP Energys

net income partially offset by $63 million or 70% increase QEP Field Services net income QEP Energy net income

declined in 2011 because of price
related impairment charge of $195 million during 2011 on some of its mature dry gas

and higher cost properties in both the Northern and Southern Regions Offsetting the decline at QEP Energy QEP Field

Services increase in net income was driven by higher gathering and processing margins and increased throughput volumes

The following table provides summary of net income from continuing operations attributable to QEP by line of business

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs 2011 2Ollvs 2010

in miffions

QEfl1j1
QEP Field Services

//

129.0 154.5 91.1 25.5 63.4

QEPMarketln$dtntótkt 444 flj44ZB $r4u
Net income from continuing operations 128.3 267.2 283.0 138.9 15.8

UaSgper4ildtdbr 4.4 40Pi 44 1.6G4tu kt78tS$U%bl
Average diluted shares 178.7 178.4 177.3 0.3 1.1

Adjusted EEITDA

Management beheves Adjusted EB1TDA non GAAP financial measure is an important measure of the Companys cash

flow liquidity and ability to incur and service debt fund capitaLexpenditures and make distributions to shareholders The use

of this measure allows investors to understand how management evaluates financial performance to make operating decisions

and allocate resources It is also an important measure for comparing the Companys financial performance to other
gas

and oil

producing companies

Management delines Adjusted EBITLA as net income before the following items separation costs accrued litigation loss

contingency depreciation depletion and amortii.ation exploration expense abandonment and impairment gains and losses

from asset sales unrealized gains and losses on derivative contracts interest and other income loss on early extinguishment of

debt interest expense income taxes and discontinued operations

The Mlowing table provides summary of Adjusted EBITDA by line of business

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs2011 2011 vs 2010

in millions

QEP Energy 1133.6 1057.5 926.2 76.1 131.3

QEP Field Services 281.1 320.3 203.9 39.2 116.4

QEP Marketing and other 0.8 8.8 10.4 1.6

Adjusted EBITDA 1415.5 I.3S6.6 1140.5 28.9 246.1

AdjustedEBlTDAincreasedto Sl.415.5 million during the yearended December 31 2012 comparedto $1386.6 million in

2011 During 2012 QEP Energys Adjusted EBITDA increased 7Q despite SQ lower net realized natural gas prices and 24Q

lower net realized NGL prices The impact of lower net realized prices during 2012 was offset by 16% increase in total

production at QEP Energy QEP Field Services Adjusted EB1TDA decreased 2Y due to decrease in the keep-whole

processing margin and lower gathering margins Adjusted EB1TDA increased 22% to $1386.6 million for 2011 compared to

$1140.5 miffion in the 2010 period despite an 11% decrease in net realized natural gas prices The impact of lower net realized

natural gas prices during 2011 was offset by 20% increase in total production 30% higher net realized crude oil prices and

22% higher net realized NGL prices in QEP Energy along with increased gathering margins that were 22% higher and

processing margins that were 93% higher in QEP Field Services
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The following table is reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to QEP Resources net income the most comparable GAAP

financial measure

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

in millions

NetiueSafr$f3tflMUrcei SItWDL
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 3.7 3.2 2.9 0.5

Netinconlt

Discontinued operations net of tax 43.2

0.3

58.7

43.2

15.5

4.0

0.7

1.8

.2.6

5.6

Unrealized gains on derivative contracts 63.2 117.7 121.7 54.5

44s4flflM4fl44Ia 41st4444 44

Interest and other income 6.6 4.1 2.3 2.5

Interest expense
122.9 90.0 84.4 32.9

444

Separation costs 13.5 13.5

Lossencar1yagm4kor4ebt 132 WI
Depreciation depletion and amortization 904.9 765.4 643.4 139.5 122.0

Abandonrnentandimpauuxs
4444 za in

Exploration expenses
11.2 10.5 23.0 0.7 12.5

44jfledEj1TbAsssse 45544444 44 act

The following table is reconciliation of QEP Energy Adjusted EBITDA to net income

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.20l0

in millions

NetiieictcmflmuinppStkflstdWtXc
44 444445

teQEEnetgy 45 44 saA4ssi$Iot
Unrealized gains on derivative contracts 68.4 117.7 121.7 49.3 4.0

113

Interest and other income 6.2 4.0 2.1 2.2 1.9
5/444 54/Z /4

comtatibnQproviston 44 579 Si 22 t41S

Interest expense
116.8 81.9 78.5 34.9 3.4

Depreciation depletion and amortization 838.0 707.2 592.5 130.8 114.7

/4

4t44 171.3

Exploration expenses
11.2 10.5 23.0 0.7 12.5

Mjte.dE1TDk tL $tt4924LIn Y$Z %$
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The following table is reconciliation of QEP Field Services Adjusted EB1TDA to net income

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2011vs.2010

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 3.7 3.2 2.9 0.5 0.3

Net income 1327 l577 940

Net gain from asset sales 1.6 1.6

Interestnd othrincome

Income tax provision
71.8 93.4 51.9 21.6 41.5

literstepnse 13 13

Depreciation depletion and amortization 63.2 55.7 48.9 7.5 6.8

The following table is reconciliation of QEP Marketing and other Adjusted EBITDA to net income

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

in miffions

Discontinued operations net of tax 43.2 43.2

Incotne frnnLcorthnrnag opeations 80 120 8OJ

Unrealized loss on derivative contracts 5.2 5.2

Qtier mcme 02
Income tax benefit provision 1.0 4.6 4.1 7.7

liitest mcon net interest expense

Separation costs 13.5
13.5

Lo early extmgiæhment of debt 17 133

Depreciation depletion and amortization 3.7 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.5

Production

QEP Energy reported production of 319.2 Bcfe during the year ended December 31 2012 16% increase over the 275.2 Bcfe

year earlier During the year ended December 31 2011 QEP Energy reported 20% increase in production from 2010 On an

energy-equivalent basis crude oil and NGL comprised approximately 22% of QEP Energys production for 2012 up from 14%

and 11% during 2011 and 2010 respectively

summary of QEP Energy production is shown in the following table

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

QEP Energy Production Volumes

Natural aS Bct 243 2364 2038 12
Oil Mbbl 6306.9 3741.3 2979.8 2565.6 761.5

NOL Mbbl 349 Z715 12258 Z634 489C
Total production Bcfe 319.2 275.2 229.0 44.0 46.2

Average daily production MMcfe 8721 7539 62 11L
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Pricing

regional comparison of average field-level prices is shown in the following table

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

QEP Energy verage field-level natural gas price per Mc
Northern Region 2.64 3.87 4.11 1.23 0.24

Southern Region 2.70 4.00 4.24 1.30 0.24

Average field-level natural gas price 2.68 3.95 4.18 1.27 0.23

QEP Energy lerage field-level oil price per bbO

Northern Region 83.03 84.88 67.62 1.85 17.26

Southern Region 89.32 90.45 74.93 1.13 15.52

Average field-level oil price 84.45 86.20 69.39 1.75 16.81

QEP Energy Average field-level NGL price per bbl

Northern Region 36.17 52.00 54.62 15.83 2.62

Southern Region 30.44 43.66 35.57 13.22 8.09

Average field-level NOL price 34.43 47.76 39.04 13.33 8.72

comparison of net realized average natural gas oil and NGL prices including the realized gains and losses on commodity

derivative contracts is shown in the following table

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 20112 20102 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

Natural gas per McJ

Average field-level price 2.68 3.95 4.18 1.27 0.23

Commodity derivative impact 1.37 0.79 1.14 0.58 0.35

Netrealizedprice 4.05 4.74 5.32 0.69 0.58

Oil per bbl

Average field-level price 84.45 86.20 69.39 1.75 16.81

Commodity derivative impact 2.28 0.43 2.91 1.85 3.34

Net realized price 86.73 86.63 66.48 0.10 20.15

NGL per bbl

Average field-level price 34.43 47.76 39.04 13.33 8.72

Commodity derivative impact 1.90 1.90

Netrealizedprice 36.33 47.76 39.04 11.43 8.72

Average net equivalent price per Mcfe

Average field-level price 4.34 5.04 4.83 0.70 0.21

Commodity derivative impact 1.14 0.68 0.98 0.46 0.30

Net realized price 5.48 5.72 5.81 0.24 0.09

The impact from commodity derivatives is reported below operating loss income in Realized and unrealized gains

on derivative contracts beginning January 2012 in the Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 the impact of settled commodity derivatives that qualified for

hedge accounting was reported in Revenues in the Consolidated Statement of Operations The impact of the

commodity derivatives that did not qualify for hedge accounting was reported below operating loss income in

Realized and unrealized gains on derivative contracts
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Gathering

During the year ended December 31 2012 QEP Field Services gathering margins declined 7% primarily due to decrease in

other gathering revenue and the related margin from the elimination of third-party interruptible processing agreement

Partially offsetting the decline in gathering margin was 2% increase in gathering system throughput volume and 3%
increase in avetage gas gathering revenueper MMBtuduring 2012 Gathering system throughput average volume was L4

million IvilvIBtu per day for the year ended December 31 2012 The 11.1 million MMIBtu increase in gathering volumes were

mainly related to increased gathering volumes at the Blacks Fork hub in southwest Wyoming and the northwest Louisiana

gathering system which were 2% higher and 12% higher respectivelydUring 2012 During 2012 the gathering volume

increase at the Blacks Fork hub was driven by 17.5 million IvifriBtu increase in affiliated production at Pinedale Offset by

9.9 million MMBtu decrease in deliveries from unaffiliated customers The Blacks Fork hub and the Hall Summit hub

accounted for 51% and 23% respectively of the total gathering system throughput during 2012 QEP Field Services posted

22% increase in gathering margin during 2011 primarily due to an increase in the NGL value received from short-term third-

party processing arrangement for certain volumes in the Northem Region and 3% increase in the average gathering rate

Gathering system throughput volume was 1.4 million MMBtu per thy for 2011 up from the 1.3 million IvilvIBtu per thy during

2010 The increased volumes in 2011 were mainly related to the northwest Louisiana gathering system as described above

which accounted for 21% and 16% of the total throughput during the years ended December 31 2011 and.20 10 respectively

During the year ended December 31 2011 QEP Field Services reported other gathering revenues and related gathering expense

related to short-term interruptible gas processing contract with athird-party processor
The short-term processing arrangement

was in effect prior to the startup of QEP Field Services Blacks Fork II processing plant The $31.9 million decrease in other

gathering revenues in 2012 was primarily related to the termination of this contract In addition gathering expenses
related to

the termination of this contract were $10.7 million lowerduring 2012

The following tables are summary of QEP Field Services financial and operating results from gathering activities

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

Gathering Margin in millions

3aherii2gwàitiS.4 45 172iS 44l3 44j 41n
Other gathering revenues 36.6 68.5 36.7 31.9 31.8

G4thihgeq$$e9 444 44t flU
Gathering margin 172.1 185.0 151.6 12.9 33.4

4peradu4JaÆtkfl$ 4J44ffPYr9 9cflTT4r4444 ai 4fl a$
Natural gas gathering volumes in millions of MMBtu

P9 42TU
For affiliated customers 266.5 234.2 198.9 32.3 35.3

fle$ AThtn 444941St xr3u$7
Average gas gathering revenue per MIvIBtu 0.34 0.33 0.32 0.01 0.01

Processing

Although significant portion of the QEP Field Services
gas processing services are performed for volumetric-based fee

QEP Field Services also provides keep-whole processing services for certain customers which exposes the Company to the frac

spread

QEP Field Services processing margin decreased 14% during the
year ended December 31 2012 due to 35% decline in

keep-whole processing margins partially offset by 40% increase in fee-based processing revenues Processing margin

increased 93% during 2011 compared to 2010 due to increased keep-whole processing margins and fee-based processing

volumes and lower natural gas prices

During the year ended December 31 2012 the keep-whole processing margin per
NGL barrel was $22.88 compared to $35.99

during the year ended December 31 2011 The keep-whole processing margins decreased in 2012 due to decrease in the net

realized NGL sales price per bbl partially offset by increased NGL sales volumes Including the impact of gains on derivative

contract settlements NGL prices decreased 21% in 2012 which caused corresponding decrease in the keep-whole processing

margin per NGL bbl NGL sales volumes increased 3% in 2012 primarily the result of the Blacks Fork II plant which

49



commenced operations in July 2011 partially offset by the execution in the second quarter of 2012 of fee-based processing

agreement with QEP Energy in the Uinta Basin that effectively transferred NGL bbls from QEP Field Services to QEP Energy

The increased keep-whole processing margin in 2011 was the result of increased NGL prices and volume compared to 2010

NOL prices increased 34% and NGL volumes increased 42% during 2011 from 2010

Fee-based processing revenues increased during the year ended December 31 2012 due to 27% increase in average fee-based

processingrevenue to $0.28 per MMBtu and 4% increase in fee-based processing volumes to 25 1.3 million MMBtu Fee-

based processing revenues increased 53% during 2011 compared to 2010 due to 6% increase in fee-based processing

volumes to 240.7 million MMBtu and 38% increase in the processing fee rate The increased processing volume during the

years ended December31 2012 and 2011 was primarily the result of the start-up of the 150 MMcfperday hon Horse

cryogenic processing plant in the Uinta Basin of eastern Utah during the first quarter of 2011 and the start-up of the Blacks

Fork II plant in the third quarter of 2011 Approximately 77% 70% and 78% of QEP Field Services net operating revenue was

derived from fee-based gathering and processing agreements in the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively

Keep-whole processing margin as reflected in the table below is defined as the market value for NGL extracted from the

natural gas stream less the market value of the Btu-equivalent volume of natural gas required to replace the extracted liquids

and the related transportation and handling including fractionation costs and less plant fuel and shrink Transportation and

handling costs were $24.3 million and $9.3 million higher during the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

The increase in these costs was primarily the result of additional transportation costs relating to NGL sale agreements that

provide for transportation and fractionation of NGL at Mont Belvieu Texas and the full year operation of the Blacks Fork II

plant which was put into service in July of 2011

The following tables are summary of QEP Field Services processing financial and operating results

Years ended December 31 change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

in millionsProcessing Margin

i2
Realized gains from commodity derivative

contract settlements 8.4 8.4

Other processing revenues 8.9 2.2 6.7 2.2

Processing plant fuel and shrink expense 33.3 49.2 32.6 15.9 16.6

__________________________________________________ ______________

Processing margin 141.8 165.2 85.5 23.4 79.7
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Years ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

Operating Statistics

Natural gas processing volumes

Average net realized NGL sales price per bbl2 42.18 53.33 39.73 11.15 13.60

For unaffiliated customers 108.2 122.9 116.8 14.7 6.1

______________

Total fee-based processing volumes 251.3 240.7 226.2 10.6 14.5

Revenues for the years
ended December 31 2011 and 2010 reflect the impact of QEPs settled derivative contracts

which during the
year

ended December 31 2012 are reflected below operating loss income See Note Derivative

Contracts in Part II Item of this Annual Report on Fonn 10-K for detailed information on derivative contract

settlements in the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Average net realized NGL sales price per
bbl is calculated as NGL sales including realized gains from commodity

derivative contracts settlements divided by NGL sales volumes

Revenue Volume and Price Variance Analysis

On January 2012 QEP discontinued hedge accounting During the year ended December 31 2012 commodity derivative

realized gains and losses from derivative contract settlements are included below operating loss income in Realized and

unrealized gains on derivative contracts on the Consolidated Statement of Operations Conversely during the years ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 the commodity derivative realized gains and losses on settlements were included in each

respective revenue category in conjunction with hedge accounting and the realization of the underlying contract For additional

information regarding the discontinuance of hedge accounting and impact on the Consolidated Statement of Operations see

Note Derivative Contracts in Part II Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The following table is summary of QEPs total revenues

Years ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

in millions

QEP Resources Revenues

4f2opa

Oil sales 532.6 324.2 198.1 208.4 126.1

672

Gathering processing and other 181.6 200.8 156.6 19.2 44.2

18$ _________ 43Z
Total Revenues 2349.8 3159.2 2300.6 809.4 858.6
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QEP Energys price and volume related revenue variances are depicted in the following table

Natural

Gas Oil NGL Total

in millions

QEP Energy Production Revenues

$iQ3 31 4t9J4i3
Changes associated with volumes 193.2 50.7 58.1 302.0

wr HnT4
Year ended December 31 2011 Revenues 1239.1 324.2 129.7 1693.0

22T
Changes associated with prices 316.9 11.0 71.3 399.2

sp 4__________ ________________________________
Year ended December 31 2012 Revenues 667.4 532.6 184.2 1384.2

The revenue variance attributed to the change in volume is calculated by multiplying the change in volumes from the

years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 to the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 by the average field-level

price for the
years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010

The revenue variance attributed to the change in price is calculated by multiplying the change in field-level prices or

fee from the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 to the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 by volume

for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 Pricing changes are driven by changes in the commodity field-level

prices excluding impact from commodity derivatives

During the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 realized gains and losses on commodity derivative contract

settlements were included in natural gas revenues on the Consolidated Statement of Operations Conversely during

the year ended December 31 2012 the realized gains and losses on commodity derivative contract settlements are

recognized below operating loss income on the Consolidated Statement of Operations
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The following table presents changes in QEP Field Services major revenue categories and the related volume and pricing

impact

NGL Processing Gathering Total

in millions

QEP Field Services

Changes associated with volumes 39.3 2.5 6.6 48.4

Changes associated with other factors 2.2 31.8 34.0

Changes associdted with volumes 5.0 2.4 3.6 11.0

Changes associated with discontinuance of hedge accounting 0.2 0.2

Year ended December 31 2012 Revenues 137.9 78.5 209.5 425.9

The revenue variance attributed to the change in volume is calculated by multiplying the change in volumes from the

years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 to the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 by the
average price or

fee for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

The revenue variance attributed to the change in fees is calculated by mtiltiplying the change in prices or fees from the

years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 to the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 by volume for the year
ended December 31 2012 and 2011

The revenue variance attributed to the change associated with other factors represents the changes in other gathering

revenues and changes in other processing revenues These other revenues are not included in average gathering

revenue per MJvlBtu or average fee-based processing revenue per MIviBtu in QEP Field Services operating statistics

and thus have not been included in the price and volume variance analysis presented above

During the
years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 realized gains and losses on commodity derivative contract

settlements were included in natural gas revenues on the Consolidated Statement of Operations Conversely during

the year ended December 31 2012 the realized gains and losses on commodity derivative contract settlements are

recognized below operating loss income on the Consolidated Statement of Operations

Purchased gas oil and NGL sales decreasedby $439.2 million or 40%during the year ended December 31 2012 from the

year ended December 31 2011 The decrease in 2012 was due to decreased resale natural gas volumes and prices Resale

natural gas volumes were 33% lower during 2012 and resale natural gas priceswere 39% lower during 2012 Purchased
gas

and oil sales increased by $487.3 million or 81% during 201 from 2010 The increase in 201 was primarily due to QEP
Energys additional revenues of $509.8.million related to gas purchases made in northwest Louisiana to utilize firm

transportation capacity and the subsequent sale of those gas purchases

Operating Expenses

The following table presents QEP Resources total operating expenses and the changes from the
years ended December 31

2012 and 2011 to the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 The narrative following the table explains the significant

vanances between the comparable penods
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Years ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

in millions

PurbasedgandLexpnse 47
Lease operating expense

172.3 145.2 125.0 27.1 20.2

Gathering processing and other 88.0 107.3 a3.2 24.1

GçraTu4 23V ZJJ Rt44i nrJ4
Separation costs 13.5 13.5

1O34 4S4S

Depreciation depletion and amortization 904.9 765.4 643.4 139.5 122.0

xpkation pe1te

Abandonment and impairment
133.4 218.4 46.1 85.0 172.3

Purchased gas oil and NGL expense decreased 39% in 2012 The decrease during 2012 was due to 39% lower natural gas

purchase prices and 28% lower natural gas purchased volumes Purchased gas oil and NGL expense
increased in 2011 due to

increased purchased gas expense at QEP Energy of $506.4 million The increased purchased gas expense at QEP Energy relates

to gas purchases made in northwest Louisiana to utilize finn transportation capacity

Lease operating expense
increased 19% during the year ended December 31 2012 due to higher production volumes

increased water disposal costs higher trucking chemical labor and pumper costs and increases in workover costs well

maintenance and repair expenses Water disposal costs increased $9.3 million during 2012 primarily in the Northern Region

due to increased drilling activity and related water disposal constraints in the Williston Basin During 2012 produced water

trucking chemical labor and pumper costs increased $9.8 million respectively primarily in the Northern Region due to

increased drilling activity and liquids production in the Williston Basin Workover costs and maintenance and repair expenses

increased $3.8 million primarily related to the increased number of pumping oil wells located in the Northern Region Lease

operating expense increased $20.2 million or 16% to $145.2 million during 2011 compared to 2010 driven by 20% increase

in production of natural gas
and oil and NGL equivalents during the period

During the year ended December 31 2012 natural gas oil and NGL transportation and other handling costs increased $46.7

million when compared to the corresponding period in 2011 and increased $48.0 million during 2011 compared to the

corresponding period in 2010 The increases during the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 are primarily due to higher

production volumes increased transportation costs relating to agreements that provide for transportation and fractionation of

NGL at Mont Belvieu Texas and the 2012 operation of the Blacks Fork II plant which was put into service in the third quarter

of 2011

Gathering processing and other expense decreased by $19.3 million for the year
ended December 31 2012 primarily due to

32% reduction in the cost to purchase natural gas to replace the shrink caused by extracting natural gas liquids from the gas

stream under QEP Field Services keep-whole processing activity The decrease in shrink gas purchases was mainly due to

QEPs processing plants running in ethane rejection where instead of recovery
the ethane is left in the production stream and

sold as natural gas mode during the fourth quarter of 2012 In addition gathering expenses were 16% lower from the

elimination of short-term interruptible processing agreement QEP Field Services entered into to process gas during the first

half of 2011 before the expansion of the Blacks Fork processing plant that was put into service during the third quarter of 2011

Gathering processing and other expense increased by $24.1 million in 2011 when compared to the 2010 period due to higher

gathering and processing volumes and the effect from the short-tenn third-party interruptible processing agreement in place

during the first half of 2011

During the year ended December 31 2012 general and administrative GA expense
increased by $143.4 million or 116%

compared to 2011 The largest portion of the increase in GA during 2012 was due to the accrual of $115 million litigation

loss contingency see Note Commitments and Contingencies to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K Additional factors contributing to the 2012 increase were $7.0 million in restructuring costs $2.2

million pension curtailment related to the Companys restructuring efforts see Note Restructuring Costs to the

Consolidated Financial Statements of this Annual Report on Form 10-K $4.7 million in higher compensation costs due to

increased number of employees and the annual compensation program $2.5 million increase in pension and post-retirement
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mediôal expenses $3.6million increase in stock-based compensation-expense $1.4 million increase from the mark-to-market

of the deferred compensation wrap plan $7.1 million increase in professional and contract services with the remaining

increases related to various immaterial items Total QEP GA expense
increased to $123.2 million for 2011 compared with

$107.2 million for 2010 The increase in 2011 resulted from an increase in the number of employees increased employee

benefit plan and stock-based compensation related expenses increased legal and outside professional services and higher

insurance costs

Production and propertytaxes decreased 2% during the year ended December 31 2012 The decrease in 2012 was due to 14%

decrease in field-level equivalent sales prices which are used as the basis for production taxes in most states where QEP

operates Higher field-level oil and NGL prices resulted in higher production taxes during 2011 partially offset by lower field-

level sales prices for natural gas during the same period

During the year ended December 31 2012 QEPs total depreciation depletion and amortization DDA expense increased

$139.5 million or 18% as compared to 2011 The 2012 increase in DDA expense was the result of increased production and

increased DDA rates at QEP Energy Also contributing to the increase in DDA expense during 2012 was the completion of

the Blacks Fork II plant duringthe third quarter of 2011 at QEP Field Services QEPs total DDA expense grew $122.0

million or 19% in 2011 from the 2010 comparable period as result of increased production at QEP Energy combined with

plant additions at QEP Field Services

Exploration expenses increased $0.7 million or 7% during the year ended December 31 2012 compared with the 2011 period

The 2012 increase primarily related to an increase in seismic studies of $1.8 million partially offset by $0.7 million decrease

in exploration related labor and benefits costs as well as $0.4 million decrease in exploration contract and consulting services

Exploration expenses were $10.5 million in 20 compared to $23.0 million in 2010 due to decrease in dry hole costs of $9.3

million and reduced seismic acquisition costs of $2.5 million

Abandonment andimpairment expenses decreased $85 million to $133.4 million during the year ended December 2012

The decrease was primarily due to $195.5 million compared to $107.6 million of impairments recognized on proved properties

in 2011 and 2012 respectively The Companys proved properties have significant reserves and are sensitive to declines in

natural gas crude oil and NGL prices These assets are at risk of impairment if future natural gas crude oil or NGL prices

experience significant declines Abandonment and impairment expenses increased to $218.4 million during 2011 compared

with $46.1 million during the 2010 period The 2011 increase was primarily due to the recognition of price-related

impairment charge of $195.5 million in the fourth quarter of 2011 on some of the Companys mature dry gas and higher cost

properties in both the Northern and Southern Regions

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS BELOW OPERATING LOSS INCOME

Realized and unrealized gains on derivative contracts

Effective January 2012 QEP discontinued hedge accounting thus changes during the year ended December31 2012 and all

changes in the mark-to-market value are recognized in current period earnings Gains and losses on derivative instruments

during 2012 are comprised of both realized and unrealized gains and losses on QEPs commodity derivative contracts and

interest rate swaps During 2012 gains on commodity derivative instruments were $449.3 million of which $380.0 million was

realized and $69.3 million was unrealized Additionally during 2012 losses from interest rate swaps were $7.4 million of

which $1.3 million was realized and $6.1 million was unrealized During the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 QEP

used hedge accounting and changes in the mark-to-market value of the commodity derivative contracts were reflected in

accumulated other comprehensive income AOCI and ultimately revenues when the commodity derivatives were settled As

result of discontinuing hedge accounting the mark-to-market values at December 31 2011 were fixed in AOCI as of the de

designation date and are being reclassified into the Consolidated Statement of Operations as the transactions settle and affect

earnings At December 31 2012 AOCI consisted of $123.5 million $77.6 million after tax of unrealized gains During 2012

$171.1 million unrealized gains after tax were reclassified from AOCI into the Consolidated Statement of Operations as the

transactions settled QEP expects to reclassify into earnings from AOCI the remaining fixed value related to de-designated

natural gas oil and NGL hedges during 2013

Interest and other income

Interest and other income are comprised primarily of interest earned on investments gains and losses on warehouse inventory

and other miscellaneous income During 2012 interest and other income increased $2.5 million The increase was primarily

due to $1.4 million increase in interest income and variances in warehouse inventory valuations of $0.8 million for 2012
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During 2011 interest and other income increased by $1.8 million primarily due to the variance in.inventory valuations offset

by lower gains on warehouse inventory sales

Loss from early extinguishment of debt

During the year ended December 31 2012 QEP recorded loss from early extinguishment of debt of $0.6 million from the

retirement of portion of QEPs senior notes During 2011 QEP recorded loss from early extinguishment of debt of $0.7

million due to replacing the previous $1.0 billion revolving credit facility with new $1.5 billion revolving credit facility in

August 2011 The loss of $13.3 million during 20 10 was the result of the repurchase of $638.0 million principal amount of

senior notes and the termination of $500 million term loan related to the Spin-off from Quetar both occurring in.the third

quarter of 2010

Interest expense

Interest expense increased $32.9 million or 37% during the year ended December 31 2012 compared to 2011 The increase in

interest expense during 2012 was due to average debt levels that were approximately $856.5 million higher than average debt

levels during 2011 The increase in average debt levels is related to QEP issuing 2022 Senior Notes and 2023 Senior Notes and

entering into the Term Loan Interest expense increased 7% to $90.0 million in 2011 compared to 2010 due to December 31

2011 average debt levels that were approximately $165 million higher than average debt levels in the comparable prior period

Income taxes

QEPs effective combined federal and state income tax rate was 33.5% during the year ended December 31 2012 compared to

6.3% during 2011 The 2012 combined rate was lower due to state income tax adjustments to prior year provisions based on

tax returns filed The effective combined federal and state income tax rate was 36.3% for 2011 slightly lower than the 36.9%

effective combined rate in 2010 The decrease in the combined rate during 2011 was primarily due to the Spin-off which

increased the 2010 rate
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DISCUSSION BY LINE OF BUSINESS

QEP Energy

QEP Energy reported net loss of $0.7 million during the year ended December 31 2012 decrease of $105.4 million from

the $104 million net income reported durmg the year ended December 31 2011 The decrease in 2012 was primarily due to

the accrual of $115 million litigation loss contingency 4% lower
average total equivalent net realized prices and 18%

increase in DDA partially offset by an unrealized gain from commodity derivative contracts of $68.4 million and increased

production QEP Energy reported net mcome of $104 million in 2011 decrease of 49% from $203 million 2010 The

primary reason for the decrease in 2011 net income was the recognition of pnce related impairment charge of $195 million

in the fourth quarter of 2011 on some of QEP Energys mature dry gas and higher cost properties both the Northern and

Southern Regions

The following table provides summary of QEP Energys fmancial and operating results

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

in millions

Natural gas sales 667.4 1239.1 12053 5717 33.8

Oil sales 532.6 324.2 198.1 208.4 126.1

NOL sales 184.2 129.7 47.9 54.5 81.8

Purchased gas oil and NGL sales 222.0 509.8 287.8 509.8

Other .2 10.4 5.0 1.2 5.4

Total Revenues 1615.4 2213.2 1456.3 597.8 756.9

Operating expenses

Purchased gas oil and NGL expense 224.7 506.4 281.7 506.4

Lease operating expense 175.8 148.2 127.3 27.6 20.9

Natural gas oil and NGL transportation and other

handling costs 228.1 186.0 125.5 42.1 60.5

General and administrative 237.6 98.4 78.0 139.2 20.4

Production and property taxes 97.2 99.1 77.8 1.9 21.3

Depreciation depletion and amortization 838.0 707.2 592.5 130.8 114.7

Exploration expenses 11.2 10.5 23.0 0.7 12.5

Abandonment and impairment 133.4 218.4 46.1 85.0 172.3

Total Operating Expenses 1946.0 1974.2 1070.2 28.2 904.0

Net gain from asset sales 1.2 1.4 137 0.2 12.3

Operating Loss Income 329.4 240.4 399.8 569.8 159.4

Realized gain loss on derivative instruments 366.5 117.7 121.7 484.2 4.0

Unrealized gain on derivative instruments 68.4 117.7 121.7 49.3 4.0

Interest and other income 6.2 4.0 2.1 2.2 1.9

Income from unconsolidated affiliates 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1

Interest expense 116.8 81.9 78.5 34.9 3.4

Loss Income before Income Taxes 5.0 162.6 323.6 167.6 161.0

Income tax benefit provision 4.3 57.9 119.7 62.2 61.8

Net Loss Income Attributable to QEP

Operating expenses per unit

QEP Energys total operating expenses the sum of DDA expense lease operating expense natural gas oil and NGL

transportation and other handling costs GA expense portion of QEPs total interest
expense

that is allocated to QEP Energy
based on intercompany agreements and production taxes per Mcfe of production increased 10% to $5.30 per

Mcfe during

57

Revenues

0.7 104.7 203.9 105.4 99.2



2012 compared to $4.81 per Mcfe during 2011 Operating expenses per Mcfe of production increased 2% to $4.81 per Mcfe

during 2011 versus $4.72 per Mcfe in 2010

The following table presents certain QEP Energys operating expenses on unit of production basis

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs
per Mcfe

Depreciation depletion and amortization 2.63 2.57 2.59 0.06 0.02

Lease operating expense 0.55 0.54 0.56 0.01 0.02

Natural gas oil and NGL transportation and other

handling costs 0.71 0.68 0.55 0.03 0.13

General and administrative 0.74 0.36 0.34 0.38 0.02

Allocated interest expense 0.37 0.30 0.34 0.07 0.04

Production taxes 0.30 0.36 0.34 0.06 0.02

Total Operating Expenses 5.30 4.81 4.P 0.49 0.09

DDA expense increased $0.06 per Mcfe during the year
ended December 31 2012 when compared to the year ended

December 31 2011 The increase in DDA expense per Mcfe was the result of increased production from higher-rate DDA
pools and increases in the DDA rates from increased drilling costs in the Midcontinent and the Williston Basin DDA
expense per Mcfe decreased $0.02 in 2011 from the 2010 period QEP Energys DDA expense increased $114.7 million

during 2011 from 2010 While QEP Energys total DDA increased in 2011 the lower per unit expense in 2011 was the result

of booking NGL reserves associated with the fee-based processing agreement entered into between QEP Energy and QEP Field

Services for QEPs Pinedale production

QEP Energys average production costs lease operating expense per Mcfe were 2% higher during the year ended December

312012 compared to the year ended December 31 2011 Average production costs per Mcfe were 4% lower in the 2011

period compared to the 2010 period

The following table presents average production cost excluding production taxes for QEP Energy by region on unit of

production basis

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

per Mcfe pz
Southern Region 0.47 0.50 0.55 0.03 0.05

OS 054 p.01 02

Lease operating expense per Mcfe increased $0.01 during the year
ended December 31 2012 when compared to the year

ended December 31 2011 The increase during 2012 in lease operating expense
is primarily due to $0.05 per Mcfe increase in

the Northern Region which was mostlyoffset by $0.03 per
Mcfe decrease in the Southern Region The Northern Region

increase was driven by 41% increase in lease operating expenses partially offset by 30% increase in production Lease

operating expense increase in the Northern Region was primarily the result of higher water injection and disposal costs

increased trucking chemical labor and pumper costs and increases in workover costs and well maintenance and repair

expenses The Southern Region decrease was result of 5% increase in production and 2% decrease in lease operating

expenses The decrease in lease operating expenses in the Southern Region was driven primarily by decreases in workover

costs and well maintenance and repair expenses Lease operating expense per Mcfe decreased $0.02 for 2011 from the 2010

period as the result of increased production volumes in lower cost areas Growing production from new high-rate low

operatmg cost wells the Haynesville/Cotton Valley area and in the Pinedale Anticlrne coupled with dechmng production

from older higher cost areas reduced average per Mcfe lease operating expense
in 2011 For additional information regarding

the variances in production and lease operating expenses see Production and Operating Expenses discussions earlier in

Item of Part ii in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Natural gas oil and NGL transportation and other handling costs per Mcfe were 4% higher during the year ended December 31

2012 than in the year ended December 31 2011 The per Mcfe increase in 2012 relates to NGL sale agreements at Mont
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Belvieu Texas and the related transportation and processing of NGL which were effective beginning with the startup of the

Blacks Fork II plant in the third quarter of 2011 Natural gas oil and NGL transportation and other handling costs per Mcfe

were 24% higher in 2011 than in 2010 due primarily to processing costs associated with increased NGL production and related

transportation costs under revised processing agreement at Pinedale

GA expense
increased $0.38 per Mcfe during the year ended December 31 2012 The

per
Mcfe increase in 2012 was the

result of higher total GA expenses during 2012 partially offset by increased production during the same period The

increased GA expenses for 2012 was primarily the result of the accrual of $115 million litigation loss contingency See

Note Commitments and Contingencies to the consolidated fmancial statements in Item of Part II of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K Excluding the litigation loss contingency accrual GA was $0.38 per Mcfe an increase of $0.02 per Mcfe or

6% driven by expenses
incurred in the current year for restructuring costs higher compensation costs due to increased

headcount and the annual compensation program increases in pension and post-retirement medical expenses increases in

professional and contract services increased stock-based compensation expense and mark-to-market changes in the Companys

deferred compensation wrap plan See Note Restructuring Costs to the consolidated fmancial statements in Item of Part

II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information regarding restructuring costs GA
expense per

Mcfe

increased $0.02 during the year ended December 31 2011 as result of higher GA expenses which were primarily related to

employee benefit plan and stock-based compensation related expenses increased legal and outside professional services and

higher insurance costs which were partially offset by increased production in 2011

Allocated interest expense per Mcfe increased $0.07 during the year ended December 31 2012 The increase during 2012 was

primarily due to an increase in allocated interest expense resulting from higher debt levels Allocated interest
expense per

unit

of production decreased $0.04 per Mcfe in 2011 primarily due to higher production volumes

In most states in which QEP Energy operates QEP pays production taxes based on percentage of field-level revenue except

in Louisiana where severance taxes are volume based Production taxes
per

Mcfe decreased by $0.06 during 2012 because of

lower field-level natural gas oil and NGL prices Production taxs per Mcfe increased by $0.02 per Mcfe during 2011 because

of higher field-level oil and NGL prices

QEP Field Services

QEP Field Services which provides gas gathering and processing services generated net income of $129.0 million during the

year ended December 31 2012 compared to $154.5 million in the same period of 2011 During 2012 lower gathering and

processing margins contributed to the 17% decrease in net income during 2012 Gathering margins were lower during 2012 as

the result of decreased other gathenng revenue due to the elimmation of short-term third-party interruptible processmg

agreement The short-term processing arrangement was in effect during the first three quarters of 2011 before the
expansion

of

the Blacks Fork processing complex was put into service during the third quarter of 2011 Processing margins were lower

during 2012 due to decrease in NGL prices and the related impact of lower keep-whole processing margins QEP Field

Services generated net income of $154 million in the year ended December 31 2011 compared to $91 million in 2010

70% increase The increase in net income in 2011 was the result of higher gathering and processing margins and increased

throughput volumes
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The following table provides summary of QEP Field Services financial and operating results

Revenues

Processing fee-based 69.6 53.7 35.2 15.9 18.5

Sjrjflijgcsppt 83 up 8xr21q3t4fl4jpfl2ffi8p 3z62P

Gathering 172.9 161.1 152.5 11.8 8.6jr aiI

Purchased gas oil and NGL sales 13.3 13.3

Operating expenses
44 Hfl fl ///

nn
Processing 16.1 12.2 11.9 3.9 0.3

Process ngqlajbthahshrmlcage SStŁ 491 aS2tfl
Gathering 37.4 44.6 37.6 7.2 7.0

///
Natora1gatoiLandNGLiransportationantothtr er4t 8482t8484M9i SV 4A44i34UWiV fl

General and administrative 34.7 29.2 31.6 5.5 2.4
ILflA 94 999 4449499 94S 49 4Anfl$afln 4fl9 944 499 fl9it k9

Depreciation depletion and amortization 63.2 55.7 48.9 7.5 6.8

taiJ1cIats1ann%ahwaaa 94 4/9 4924 .44t9tA944fl4fl9tflfltKH49%49tfl9In44 ///449

Net gain from asset sales 1.6 1.6

4nqetmIs1knI48
/9fl

Interest and other income 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

91an4g44c/sftlSht y9 493S$t9 9847

Realized gains on derivative instruments 8.4 8.4

99

Interest expense 13.6 13.6 7.6 6.0

Income tax provision 71.8 93.4 51.9 21.6 41.5

rtcLflW9flLt3 4444444944% 44444 44444444449%

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 3.7 3.2 2.9 0.5 0.3

See Gathering and Processing sections as appearing earlier for additional discussion of the significant changes in QEP

Field Services comparative fmancial statements

Natural gas oil and NGL transportation and other handling costs increased $24.3 million and $9.3 million during the years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 when compared to the prior year periods The increase during the years ended December

31 2012 and 2011 was primarily due to transportation costs related to the Blacks Fork II plant placed into service in the third

quarter of 2011 and the related transportation of additional NGL volumes to Mont Belvieu Texas

General and administrative expenses increased by $5.5 million during the year ended December 31 2012 The increase in GA
costs during the current period was primarily due to increases in headcount and related compensation costs increases in

pension and post-retirement medical expenses increases in stock compensation expense and an increase in the mark-to-market

value of the deferred compensation wrap plan GA expensed decreased $2.4 million in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily due

to lower outside service costs

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

in millions
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During the year ended December 31 2012 DDA expense grew $7.5 million or 13% as compared to 2011 The 2012

increase in DDA expense was primarily due to the completion of the Blacks Fork II plant during the third quarter of 2011 at

QEP Field Services DDA expense grew $6.8 million or 14% in 2011 from the 2010 comparable period as result of plant
additions at QEP Field Services

See Consolidated Results Below Operating Loss Income section as appearing earlier for additional discussion of the

significant changes in such line items

QEP Marketing and Other

QEP Marketing which markets affiliate and third-party hatural gas and oil and owns and operates gas storage facility

generated no net income during the year ended December 31 2012 an $8.0 million decrease from the $8.0 million of income

during the year ended December 31 2011 The decrease in net income in 2012 related to lower marketing margins and higher
unrealized losses from derivative contracts Also contributing to the decrease was higher interest

expense in 2012 compared to

2011 due to higher average debt levels in the current year During 2012 QEP Marketing had loss on resale gas oil and NGL
of $8.0 million related to fulflllment of firm transportation contract commitments QEP Marketing generated net income from

continuing operations of $8.0 million during 2011 compared with loss of $12.0 million during 2010 The increase in 2011 was
due to 54% increase in marketing sales volumes partially offset by 5% decrease in marketing margins

The followingtable provides summary of QEP Marketing and Others fmancial and operating results

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.2010

in millions

Other 6.8 7.6 7.0 0.8 0.6

rtw$ttPU LL ss4
Operating expenses

PW4Se4 S%oil aq3sç4 tn4% ttSSlLifj 1IVi3i4%tc4Z 6W
Gathering processing and other 1.2 1.3 1.1 0.1 0.2

GJnarjndi4tunstÆne 44
Separation costs 13.5 13.5/4 fl
Pro41i cirando tjOt
Depreciation depletion and amortization 3.7 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.5

Net gain from asset sales

trft fl i4
cPtt %I Wt P4UJ V$4ieWA ta

Realized gain on derivative instruments 3.8 3.8

14rigEize4 ltYfln 4taiPb Ar aW Wa
Interest and other income 132.1 98.7 87.2 33.4 11.5

recSWbbt qj
Interest expense 124.4 93.2 85.4 31.2 7.8

Income tax benefit @rovision 1.0 3.1 4.6 4.1 7.7

itSt
Interest and other income prhnarily relates to intercompany debt agreements between QEP and its subsidiaries which is

eliminated in consolidation

Revenues
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

QEP seeks to fund its development projects by employing capital structure and fmancing strategy to provide sufficient

liquidity to withstand commodity price swings As part of this strategy QEP funds long-term capital intensive development

projects
while maintaining the ability to employ an exploration program execute acquisitions and maintain an appropriate debt

rating In addition QEP maintains commodity price derivative strategy to reduce commodity price volatility and to provide

certainty to cash flows

QEP funds its operations capital expenditures and working capital requirements with cash flow from its operating activities

and borrowings under its credit facilities Periodically QEPs access to debt and capital markets and sales of assets will provide

additional liquidity The Company believes cash flow from operations and availability under its credit facility will be sufficient

to fund the Companys planned capital expenditures and operating expenses during the next 12 months To the extent actual

operating results differ from the Companys estimates QEPs liquidity could be adversely affected

The following table provides QEPs available liquidity and debt to total capital ratio compared to the previous period

December 31

2012 2011

in millions except$fl 4/

Amount available under the revolving credit facility
805.9 889.4

r4i4SSf 44fth 4$ r4WaS c4 8894

Total debt 3206.9 1679.4

R4smsa
50% 34%

Ratio of debt to total capital

See discussion of the Companys revolving credit facility below Includes outstanding letters of credit of $4.1 million

for both the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Includes all outstanding debt which is discussed in detail below At December 31 2012 debt levels were higher than

at December 31 2011 primarily due to the 2012 Acquisition

Defined as total debt divided by the sum of total debt plus common shareholders equity

Credit Facility

QEPs revolving credit facility agreement which matures in August 2016 provides for unsecured loan commitments of $1.5

billion from syndicate of fmancial mstitutions The credit facility provides for borrowmgs at short-term interest rates and

contains customary covenants and restrictions The credit facility agreement also contains provisions which would allow for the

amount of the facility to be increased to $2.0 billion and for the maturity to be extended for two additional one-year periods

with the agreement of the lenders QEPs weighted-avenge interest rate on borrowings from its credit facility was 2.08% during

the year ended December 31 2012 At December 31 2012 QEP was in compliance with the debt covenants under the credit

agreement At February 13 2013 QEP had $731.5 million outstanding and $4.1 million of letters of credit issued under its

credit facility

Term Loan

During the second quarter of 2012 the Company entered into $300.0 million Term Loan with group
of financial institutions

The Term Loan agreement provides for unsecured borrowings at short-term interest rates and contains covenants restrictions

and interest rates that are substantially the same as the Companys revolving credit facility The Term Loan matures in April

2017 and the maturity date may be extended one year with the agreement of the lenders The proceeds from the Term Loan

were used to pay down the Companys credit facility and for general corporate purposes During the year ended December 31

2012 QEPs weighted-average interest rate on thefl Term Loan was 2.05% In conjunction with the Term Loan QEP entered into

interest rate swap contracts with combined notional principal amount of $300.0 million which will mature in March 2017

Under the swap contracts QEP pays 1.07% for the life of the swaps and receives one-month LIBOR The interest rate at

December 31 2012 under the Term Loan is one-month LIBOR plus 2.00% the Applicable Margin which when combined

with the fixed interest rate swaps results in current effective rate of 3.07% for borrowings under the Term Loan To the extent

that the Applicable Margin under the Term Loan changes the effective fixed rate paid for borrowings under the Term Loan will

change
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Senior Voles

During the liNt quarter ui 2112 the Company completed ptillic ollering ot S500 million in aggregate principal amount of

5.375 senior notes due in October 2022 The proceeds from the 2022 Senior Notes were used to repay indebtedness under the

Companys credit fucilitv In the second quarter of 2012 the Company purchased 56.7 million of its senior notes outstanding

due April 211 and March 2121 In addition during the third quarter of 2012 the Company completed public offering of

S650 million in aggregate principal amount ol 5.25 senior notes due in Max 2023 The proceeds from the 2023 Senior

Notes were used to linance portion of the 2012 Acquisition

The Companys senior unsecured notes outstanding as of December 31 2012 totaled S2.22 1.8 million principal amount and are

comprised of six issuances as follows

$1 76.S million 6.05 Senior Notes due September 2116

$134.0 million S0c Senior Notes due April 18

SI 36 million 60 Senior Notes due March 2020
5625.0 million 6.75 Senior Notes due March 2021

$500 million 5.375 Senior Notes due October 2022 and

S65ft million 5.25 Senior Notes due May 2023

ash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash liows from operating activities are Iriniarily affected by natural gas oil and NOL production volumes and commodity

prices including the effects of settlements of the Companys derivative contracts and by changes in working capital QEP
enters into commodity derivative transactions covering substantial hut varying portion of its anticipated future gas oil and

NGI. production br the next to 24 months

Net cash provided by operating activities increased $3.4 million during the year ended December 31 2012 when compared to

the year ended December 31 2011 due to an increase iii cash ironi operating assets and liabilities oilset lower net income

and reduced noncash adjustment to net income Noncash adjustments to net income consisted primarily of

abandonment and impairment charges unrealiied gains on derivative contracts and changes in debØrred income taxes Changes
in operating assets and liabilities were source of cash during 2012 primarily due to decrease in accounts receivable and an
increase in accrued expenses from the accrual of SlI million for litigation loss

contingency Changes operating assets and

liabilities driving use of cash during 2011 were increases in accounts receivable offset by increases in accounts payable

Net cash provided from operating activities is presented below

Year Ended December 31 Change

2012 2011 2010 2012 vs 2011 2011 vs 2011

in millions

Net incotne 132.0 270.4 285.9 tI38.4 l5.5
Noncash adjustments to net income 1038.0 .050.9 784.5 2.91 266.4

changes in operating assets and liabilities 126.0 t28.7 72.9 154.7 44.2

Net cash provided from operating activities 1296.0 1292.6 997.5 3.4 295.1

The net income for the year ended December 31 2010 excludes discontinued operations net of income tax ol $43.2

million
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Cash Flow from Investing Activities

comparison of capital expenditures for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 and forecast for calendar year

2013 are presented in the table below

2013
Year Ended December 31 Change

Forecast1 2012 2011 2010 2012vs.2011 2Ollvs.20l0

in millions

QEP Energy 1530.0 2702.4 1338.8 1215.8 1363.6 123.0

QEP Field Services 120.0 171.2 101.6 268.2 69.6 166.6

QEP Marketing 1.0 10 0.4 1.9 0.6 1.5

Corporate
25.0 13.6 5.0 8.6 5.0

Total accrued capital expenditures 1676.0 2888.2 1445.8 1485.9 14424 40.1

Change in accruals 88.5 14.7 16.9 73.8 2.2

Total cash capital expenditures L676.0 2799.7 1431.1 1469.0 1368.6 37.9

Represents the mid-point end of the most recent guidance

During the year ended December 31 2012 capital expenditures on cash basis increased 96% to $2 799 million compared

to $1431.1 million during the year ended December 31 2011 The increase of $1368.6 million cash capital expenditures

during 2012 was primarily the result of QEP Energys $1388.7 million 2012 Acquisition Excluding the 2012 Acquisition

QEPs capital expenditures were $20.1 miffion lower than in 2011 Capital expenditures on cash basis decreased in 2011

compared to 2010 due to completion in 2010 of capital projects for QEP Field Services

QEP Energy capital investment on an accrual basis during the year
ended December 31 2012 increased $1 363 milhon

over the year ending December 31 2011 due to increased capital expenditures in the Williston Basin primarily due to the

2012 Acquisition partially offset by lower capital expenditures in Haynesville approximately 81% lower due to the reduced

drilling program as capital was allocated out of the dry-gas Haynesville play into higher return oil and liquids rich natural gas

drilling programs QEP Energys capital investments for 2011 were higher than 2010 due to increased company operated well

completions
combined with acquisitions of additional working interests

QEP Field Services capital investment increased $69.6 million on an accrual basis during the year ended December 31 2012

compared to 2011 due to projects directed to grow the midstream business These projects include the construction of 150

MMcfd fee-based cryogenic gas processing plant in the Uinta Basin lion Horse II and the 10000 BbIId expansion to the NGL

fractionation facilities located at the Blacks Fork processing complex QEP Field Services capital investments decreased in

2011 compared to 2010 due to the completion of major capital projects in eastern Utah and northwest Louisiana in late 2010

and the completion of the Black Forks II plant early in the third quarter of 2011

At December 31 2012 forecasted capital investment for 2013 is espected to be approximately $1 6760 million comprised of

$1 5300 million allocated to QEP Energy $1200 million to QEP Field Services and $260 million between QEP Resources

and QEP Marketing During 2013 QEP intends to fund capital expenditures with cash flow from operating activities and if

needed borrowings under its credit facility As result of the cotrnued low natural gas prices QEP plans to decrease capital

expenditures for the Haynesville Shale and other dry-gas development areas and increase capital expenditures for higher return

projects including Pinedale Uinta Basin Red Wash Mesaverde and oil-directed horizontal drilling in the Wiffiston Basin

Powder River Basin and Midcontinent during 2013 QEP Energy has allocated approximately 98% of its 2013 total forecasted

capital expenditure budget to crude oil and liquids-rich natural gas plays QEP plans to invest total of approximately $120.0

million in capital expenditures during 2013 to grow its midstream business including the expansion of its gathering system in

the Uinta Basin as well as the completion of 10000 BbIJd expansion of the NGL fractionation facility located at the Blacks

Fork processing complex expected to be completed in the second half of 2013 QEP Resources plans to invest approximately

$25.0 million in capital expenditures related to corporate activities primarily the implementation of new Enterprise Resource

Planning system The aggregate levels of capital expenditures for 2013 and the allocation of those expenditures are dependent

on variety of factors including drilling results natural gas
and oil prices industry conditions the extent to which properties

or working interests are acquired the availability of capital resources to fund the expenditures and changes in managements

business assessments as to where QEPs capital can be most profitably deployed Accordingly the actual levels of capital

expenditures and the allocation of those expenditures may vary materially from QEPs estimates
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Cash Flow from Financing Activities

During the year ended December 31 2012 net cash proceeds from fmancing activities was $1498.5 million compared to

$130.3 million during the year ended December 31 2011 During 2012 QEP completed public offerings of $650.0 million and

$500.0 million of senior notes and entered into $300.0 million Term Loan QEP had borrowings from its credit facility of

$1234.5 million and repayments on its credit facility of $1151.0 million In addition QEP retired $6.7 million of its

outstandmg semor notes During the years ended December 31 20122011 aid 2010 QEP paid dividends of $142 million

$14 million and $7 million respectively In 2012 2011 and 2010 QEP paid long-term debt issuance costs of $17 million

$10.6 million and $16.6 million respectively At December 31 2012 long-term debt consisted of $690.0 million outstanding

under its credit facility $300 million under the Term Loan and $2221 million in semor notes excluding $4 million of net

original issue discount

During the year ended December 31 2011 net cash used in investing activities of $1422 million exceeded net cash provided

by operating activities of $1292.6 million by $130.3 million For 2011 long-term debt increased by net change of $207.1

million while short-term debt decreased by $58.5 million All intercompany loans between Questar and QEP which were

histoncally reported as notes payable in the Consolidated Balance Sheets were repaid on June 30 2010 in conjunction with

the Spin-off

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

QEP may enter into off-balance sheet arrangements and transactions that can give rise to material off-balance sheet obligations

At December 31 2012 the Companys material off-balance sheet arrangements and transactions included operating lease

arrangements drilling and transportation contracts and undrawn letters of credit There are no other transactions arrangements

or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons that are reasonably likely to materially affect QEPs liquidity

or availability of or requirements for capital resources See Contractual Cash Obligations and Other Commitments below for

more mformation regarding off-balance sheet arrangements

Settlement Agreement

On February 13 2013 QEP executed the Chieftain Settlement Agreement which provides for cash settlŁnient payment from

QEP in the amount of $115 million in exchange for full release of all claims regarding the calculation reporting and payment
of royalties from the sale of natural gas and its constituents for all penods prior to February 28 2013 At December 31 2012
QEP has recorded an accrual of $115 million based on the January 2013 mediation and resulting Chieftain Settlement

Agreement The Court has entered Preliminary Order Approving Class Action Settlement The payment of the $115 million

settlement amount will be made into escrow before the end of February 2013

65



Contractual Cash Obligations and Other Commitments

In the course of ordinary business activities QEP enters into variety of Contractual cash obligations and other commitments

The following table summarizes the significant contractual cash obligations as of December 31 2012

Payments Due by Year

Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 After 2017

in millions

Interest on fixed-rate long-term

debt 1122.7 133.0 133.0 133.0 129.5 122.3 471.9

29 44

Firmtransportation and storage 347.5 45.2 44.2 44.1 42.6 42.0 129.4

Sts1Pdir 32A 448 44tn

Fractionation 186.7 14.0 20.2 20.2 20.2 20.2 91.9

MStitiesbft$tIS 19fl t.7 37 2.6 29 424k 1jt
Operating leases 62.1 6.7 6.5 6.6 6.5 6.7 29.1

NSc4ff1iL49i iAk mi i431

Excludes variable rate debt mterest payments related to the Companys credit facility and Term Loan

These fliture obligations are discounted estimates of thture expenditures based on expected settlement dates See Item of

Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10 Note Asset Retirement Obligations for additional mformation

This table excludes the Companys benefit plan liabilities as future payment dates are unknown See Item of Part II of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K Note 11 Employee Benefits for additional information

Impact of Inflation and Pricing

QEP deals dollars Inflation the context of oil field services and goods has been sigmficant primary areas which

QEP operates Typically as pnces for oil and natural gas mcrease associated costs nse Conversely cost declmes are likely to

lag and may not adjust downward proportion to declining prices Changes prices impact QEPs revenues estimates of

reserves assessments of any impairment of oil and natural gas properties as well as values of properties being acquired or

sold Price changes have the potential to affect QEPs ability to raise capital borrow money and retain personnel While QEP

does not presently expect business costs to materially rise from where they are today higher prices for oil and natural gas could

result in increases in the costs of materials services and personnel

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

QEPs significant accounting policies are described in Note to the consolidated fmancial statements included in Item of Part

II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K The Companys consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles The preparation of consolidated fmancial statements requires management to make

assumptions and estimates that affect the reported results of operations and fmancial position The following accounting

policies may involve higher degree of complexity and judgment on the part of management

Gas and Oil Reserves

One of the most significant estimates the Company makes is the estimate of crude oil natural gas and NGL reserves Crude oil

natural gas and NGL reserve estimates require significant judgments in the evaluation of all available geological geophysical

engineering and economic data The data for given field may change substantially over time as result of numerous factors

including but not limited to additional development activity production history projected future production economic

assumptions relating to commodity prices operating expenses severance and other taxes capital expenditures and remediation

costs The subjective judgments and variances in data for various fields make these estimates less precise than other estimates

included in the financial statement disclosures

Estimates of proved gas
and oil reserves significantly affect the Companys DDA expense For example if estimates of

proved reserves decline the DDA rate will increase resulting in decrease in net income decline in estimates of proved
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reserves could also cause QEP to perform an impairment analysis to determine if the carrying amount of crude oil and natural

gas properties exceeds fair value and could result in an impairment charge which would reduce earnings

QEP Energy engages an independent reservoir engineering consultant to prepare estimates of the proved gas and oil reserves
Reserve estimates are based on complex and highly interpretive process that is subject to continuous revision as additional

production and development drilling information becomes available

See Note 17 Supplemental Oil and Gas Information Unaudited of Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Successful Efforts Accounting for Gas and Oil Operations

The Company follows the successful efforts method of accounting for gas and oil property acquisitions exploration

development and production activities Under this method the acquisition costs of proved and unproved properties successful

exploratory wells and development wells are capitalized Other exploration costs includmg geological and geophysical costs
the delay rental and administrative costs associated with unproved property and unsuccessful exploratory well costs are

expensed Costs to operate and maintain wells and field equipment are expensed as incurred Capitalized costs of unproved
properties are reclassified as proved property when related proved reserves are determined or charged against the impairment
allowance when abandoned

Capitalized proved property acquisition costs are amortized by field using the unit-of-production method based on proved
reserves Capitalized exploratory well and development costs are amortized similarly by field based on proved developed
reserves The calculation takes into consideration estimated future equipment dismantlement surface restoration and property
abandonment costs net of estimated equipment salvage values Other property and equipment are generally depreciated using
the straight-line method over estimated useful lives Or the unit-of-production method for certain processing plants gain or
loss is generally recognized only when an entire field is sold or abandoned or if the unit-of-production amortization rate would
be significantly affected

Impairment of Oil and Gas Properties

Proved gas and oil properties are evaluated on field-by-field basis for potential impairment Other properties are evaluated on
specific-asset basis or in

groups
of similarassets as applicable Impairment is indicated when triggering event occurs and

the sum of the estimated undiscounted future net cash flows of an evaluated asset is less than the assets carrying value

Triggering events could include but are not limited to an impairment of gas and oil reserves caused by mechanical problems
faster-than-expected decline of reserves lease-ownership issues other-than-temporary decline in natural gas NGL and crude
oil prices and changes in the utilization of midstream gathering and processing assets If impairment is indicated fair value is

calculated using discounted-cash flow approach Cash flow estimates require forecasts and assumptions for many years into

the future for variety of factors including commodity prices operating costs and estimates of proved probable and possible
reserves Managements assessment of the results of exploration activities and availability of funds for future activities also

impact the amounts and timing of impairment provisions During the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 QEP
recorded impairment charges of$107.6 million $195.5 million and $0.7 million respectively on some of its higher cost
proven properties in both Regions The impairment charge related to the reduced value of these areas resulting from lower spot
prices and lower forward curveprices

Unproved properties are evaluated on specific-asset basis or groups of similarassets as applicable The Company performs
periodic assessments of unproved oil and gas properties for impairment and

recognizes loss at the time of impairment In

determining whether an unproved property is impaired the Company considers numerous factors mcludmg but not limited to
current development and exploration dnllmg plans favorable or unfavorable exploration activity on adjacent leaseholds
house geologists evaluation of the lease future reserve cash flows and the remammg lease term During the years ended
December 312012 2011 and 2010 QEP recorded impairment charges of $23 million $20 million and $40 million
respectively on its unproved properties

Asset Retirement Obligations

QEP is obligated to fund the costs of disposing of long-lived assets upon their abandonment The majority of QEPs asset

retirement obligations ARO relate to the plugging of wells and the related abandonment of oil and
gas properties QEPs ARO

are recorded at estimated fair value measured by reference to the expected future cash outflows required to satisf the
retirement obligation discounted at QEPs credit-adjusted risk-free mterest rate Revisions to estimated ARO can result from
changes in retirement cost estimates revisions to estimated mflation rates and changes the estimate timing of abandonment
QEPs ARO liability at December 31 2012 was $193 million
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Accounting for Derivative Contracts

The Company uses derivative contracts typically fixed-price swaps and costless collars to protect against declinein the price

it receives from its natural gas oil and NGL production Accounting rules for derivatives require marking these instruments to

fair value at the balance sheet reporting date The change in fair value is reported either in net income or AOCI depending on

the structure of the derivative Prior to 2012 the Company structured the majority of its ei1ergy
derivative instruments as cash

flow hedges as defmed in ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges are recorded on

the balance sheet and in AOCI until the underlying gas or oil is produced When derivative is terminated before its contract

expires the associated gain or loss is recognized in incomeover the lifeôf the previously hedged production Changes in the

fair value of derivative contracts that do not qualify for hedge accountings are included as part
of operating income in the

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Effective January 2012 the Company elected to de-designate all of its natural gas
oil and NGL derivative contracts that had

previously been designated as cash flow hedges at December 31 2011 and elected to discontinue hedge accountmg

prospectively Accordmgly changes in the fair value of commodity derivative contracts are reported eammgs as unrealized

gains losses See Part II Item Note Summary of Sigmficant Accounting Policies of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

for additional information

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized in the period that services are provided or products are delivered QEP Energy uses the sales method

of accounting whereby revenue is recognized for all gas oil and NGL sold to purchasers Revenues include estimates for the

two most recent months using published commodity-price indexes and volumes supplied by field operators liability is

recorded to the extent that QEP Energy has an imbalance in excess of its share of remaining reserves in an underlying property

QEP Marketing presents revenues on gross revenue basis QEP Marketing does not engage in speculative hedging

transactions nor does it buy and sell energy contracts with the objective of generating profits on short-term differences in

prices

Litigation and Other Contingencies

In accordance with ASC 450 Contingencies an accrual is recorded for loss contingency when its occurrence is probable and

damages can be reasonably estimated based on the anticipated most likely outcome or the minimum amount within range of

possible outcomes Because legal proceedings are inherently unpredictable and unfavorable resolutions could occur assessing

contingencies is highly subjective and requires judgments about future events When evaluating contingencies QEP may be

unable to provide meaningful estimate due to number of factors including the procedural status of the matter in question

the presence of complex or novel legal theories and/or the ongoing discovery and development of information important to the

matters QEP regularly
reviews contingencies to determine the adequacy of its accruals and related disclosures The amount of

ultimate loss may differ from these estimates

Environmental Obligations

Management makes judgments and estimates in accordance with applicable accounting rules when it establishes reserves for

environmental remediation litigation and other contingent matters Provisions for such matters are charged to expense when it

is probable that liability has been incurred and reasonable estimates of the liability can be made Estimates of environmental

liabilities are based on variety of matters including but not limited to the stage of mvestigation the stage of the remedial

design evaluation of existing remediation technologies and presently enacted laws and regulations In future periods number

of factors could sigmflcantly change QEPs estimate of environmental remediation costs such as changes laws and

regulations changes the interpretation or administration of laws and regulations revisions to the remedial design

unanticipated construction problems identification of additional areas or volumes of contaminated soil and groundwater and

changes in costs of labor equipment and technology Consequently it is not possible for management to reliably estimate the

amount and timing of all future expenditures related to environmental matters and tual cOsts may vary significantly See Part

II Item Note Conimitments and Contingencies of this Annual Report on form 10-K for additional information regarding

current environmental claims

Benefit Plan Obligations

QEP mamtams closed non contributory defined-benefit pension plans mcluding both qualified and supplemental plan

QEP also provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for certain retired employees Determination of the benefit

obligations for QEPs defiied-benefit pension and postretirement plans impacts the recorded amounts for such obligations on

the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the amount of benefit expense recorded to the Consolidated Income Statement

Accounting for pension and other postretirement benefit obligations involves many assumptions the most significant of which

are the discount rate used to measure the present value of plan benefit obligations the expected long-term rates of return on
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plan assets the rate of future increases in compensation levels of participating employees and the future level of health care

costs

Share-Based Compensation

QEP uses the Biack-Scholes-Merton mathematical model to estimate the fair value of stock options for accounting purposes

The use of this model requires significant judgment with respect to the risk-free interest rate expected pricevolatility expected

dividend yield and expected life

Income Taxes

The amount of income taxes recorded by QEP requires interpretations of complex niles and regulations of various tax

jurisdictions throughout the United States QEP has recogni ed deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences

operating losses and tax credit carryforwards QEP routinely assesses the realizability of its deferred tax assets and reduces such

assets by valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be

realized QEP routinely assesses potential uncertain tax positions and if required establishes accruals for such amounts The

accruals for deferred tax assets Ændiiabilitiesincluding deferred state income tax assets and liabilities are subject to significant

judgment by management and are reviewed and adjusted routmely based on changes facts and circumstances Although

management considers its tax accruals adequate matenal changes these accruals may occur the future based on the

impact of tax audits changes legislation and resolution of pendmg or future tax matters

Purchase Price Allocations

QEP occasionally acquires assets and assumes liabilities in transactions accounted for as business combinations such as the

2012 Acquisition in the Williston Basin In connection with purchase business combination the acquiring company must

allocate the cost of the acquisition to assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on fair values as of the acquisition date Any

excess or shortage of amounts assigned to assets and liabilities over or under the purchase price is recorded as gain on bargain

purchase or goodwill The amount of goodwill or gain on bargain purchase recorded in any particular business combination can

vary significantly depending upon the values attributed to assets acquired and liabilities assumed

In estimating the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combination QEP makes various

assumptions The most significant assumptions relate to the estimated fair values assigned to proved and unproved crude oil

and natural gas properties If sufficient market data is not available regarding the fair values of proved and unproved properties

QEP must prepare estimates To estimate the fair values of these properties QEP prepares estimates of crude oil NGL and

natural gas reserves QEP estimates future prices to apply to the estimated reserves quantities acquired and estimates future

operating and development costs to arrive at estimates of future net cash flows For estimated proved reserves the future net

cash flows are discounted using market-based weighted average cost of capital rate determined appropriate at the time of the

acquisition The market-based weighted average cost of capital rate is subjected to additional project-specific risking factors To

compensate for the inherent risk of estimating and valuing unproved reserves the discounted future net cash flows of probable

and possible reserves are reduced by additional risk-weighting factors

Estimated fair values assigned to assets acquired can have significant effect on results of operations in the future higher fair

value assigned to property results in higher DDA expense which results in lower net earnings Fair values are based on

estimates of future commodity prices reserves quantities operating expenses and development costs This increases the

likelihood of impairment if future commodity prices or reserves quantities are lower than those originally used to determine fair

value or if future operating expenses or development costs are higher than those originally used to determine fair value

Impairment would have no effect on cash flows but would result in decrease in net income for the period in which the

impairment is recorded See Part II Item Note Acquisition of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional

information regarding the 2012 Acquisition

Recent Accounting Developments

See Recent Accounting Developments in Note to the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATiVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

QEPs primary market risk exposures arise from changes in the market price for natural gas oil and NGL and to volatility in

interest rates These risks can affect revenues and cash flows from operating investing and financing activities Commodity

prices have historically been volatile and are subject to wide fluctuations in response to relatively minor changes in supply and

demand If commodity prices fluctuate significantly revenues and cash flow may significantly decrease or increase QEP

Energy and QEP Marketing also have long-term contracts for pipeline capacity and are obligated to pay for transportation
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services with no guarantee that QEP will be able to fully utilize the contractual capacity of these transportation commitments

In addition write-down of the Companys oil and
gas properties may be required if future oil and natural gas commodity

prices experience sustained significant decline Furthermore the Companys credit facility and Term Loan have floating

interest rates which
expose QEP to interest rate risk To manage the Companys exposure to these risks QEP enters into

commodity derivative contracts in the form of costless collars and fixed-price swaps to manage commodity price risk and

periodically interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk

Commodity Price Risk Management

QEPs subsidiaries use commodity price derivative instruments in the normal course of business to reduce the risk of adverse

commodity price movements The Companys risk management policies provide for the use of derivative instruments to

manage this risk However these same arrangements typically limit future gains from favorable price movements The types of

commodity derivative instruments utilized by the Company include fixed-price swaps and costless collars The volume of

commodity derivative instruments utilized by the Company may vary from year to year The derivative instruments currently

utilized by the Company do not have margin requirements or collateral provisions that would require payments prior to the

scheduled cash settlement dates The Company does not enter into derivative contracts for speculative or trading purposes As
of December 31 2012 QEP held commodity price derivative contracts totaling 139.4 million MMBtu of natural gas and 6.9

million barrels of oil At December 31 2011 the QEP derivative contracts consisted of 213.0 million MIviBtu of natural gas
2.0 million barrels of oil and 53.9 million gallons of NGL
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Swaps

Total Average price
Index Volumes per unit

in millions

The following table shows the sensitivity of the fair value of gas oil and NGL derivative contracts to changes in the market

price of gas oil and NGL and basis differentials

December 31 2012

Utilizing the actual derivative contractual volumes 10% increase in underlying commodity prices would reduce the fair value

of these instruments by $111.9 million while 10% decrease in underlying commodity prices would increase the fair value of

The following table presents open 2013 derivative positions as of Februaiy 13 20l3

QEP Energy Commodity Derivative Positions

Year Type of Contract

2013 Swap NYMEX 51.1 3.79

2014 Swap NYMEX 18.3 4.21

1F4C1 LT
Oil sales Bbls

4O%3 44 ftWP

2013 Swap BRENTICE 0.3 107.80

QEP Marketing Commodity Derivative Positions

Average Swaps
Total price

Year Type of Contract Index Volumes per MMBtu

4444

Natural gas sales MMBtu
2t3 Swap PC1
Natural gas purchases MMBtu
2U SWap JFNPCR4

2014 Swap IFNPCR 0.1 3.02

Changes in the fair value of derivative contracts from December 31 2011 to December 31 2012 are presented below

Commodity
derivative contracts

in millionseuegas i1 aratNL derivatwe oiifrçts du 2O11

Contracts settled
380.0

gtngas iudoi pncen 1itwesmarkets

Contracts added
37.5

5ai1 $b4of gas nLde affreofliracts ou d1teembe1 444

Fair value if market pnces of gas oil and NGL and basis differentials declme by 10% 304

in millions
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these instruments by $111.9 million as of December 31 2012 However gain or loss eventually would be substantially offset

by the actual sales value of the physical production covered by the derivative instruments For additional information regarding

the Companys commodity derivative transactions see Note Derivative Contracts under Part II Item of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

Interest-Rate Risk Management

The Companys ability to borrow and the rates offered by lenders can be adversely affected by illiquid credit markets as

described in the Risk Factors in Item 1A of Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K The Companys credit facility has

floating interest rate which expose QEP to interest rate risk At December 31 2012 the Company had $690.0 million

outstanding under its credit facility If interest rates were to increase or decrease 10% during the year ended December 31

2012 at our average level of borrowing for those same periods our interest expense would increase or decrease by $0.8 million

for the year endedDecember 31 2012 or less than 1% of total interest expense The remaining $2221.8 million of the

Companys debt is fixed rate senior notes that are not subject to interest rate movements

The Companys Term Loan has floating interest rate which exposes QEP to interest rate risk At December 31 2012 the

Company had $300.0 million outstanding under the Term Loan During the second quarter
of 2012 QEP entered into interest

rate swap contracts with an aggregate notional amount of $300.0 million to minimize the interest rate volatility risk associated

with its $300.0 million Term Loan QEP pays fixed interest rate and receives floating interest rate indexed to the one-month

LIBOR At December 31 2012 the fair value of the interest rate swaps was derivative liability balance of $6.2 million 50

basis point decrease in the one-month LIBOR rate would cause the fair value of the interest rate swaps to decrease by $5.5

million while 50 basis point increase in the one-month LIBOR rate would cause the fair value of the interest rate swaps to

increase by $6.1 million For additional information regarding the Companys debt instruments see Note Debt under Part

II Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To Board of Directors and Shareholders of QEP Resources Inc

In our opinion the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statement of operations

comprehensive income equity and cash flows present fairly in all material respects the financial position of QEP Resources

Inc at December 31 2012 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America In addition in our opinion the financial statement

schedule for the year ended December 31 2012 appearing under Item 15c presents fairly in all material respects the

information set forth therem when read in conjunction with the related consolidated fmancial statements Also our opinion

the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012

based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is responsible for these financial statements and fmancial

statement schedule for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness

of internal control over fmancial reporting included in Managements Assessment of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

under Item 9A Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements financial statement schedule and on the

Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audit We conducted our audits in accordance with

the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require thatwe plan and

perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free of material misstatement and

whether effective internal control over fmancial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit of the financial

statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fmancial statements

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation Our audit of internal control over fmancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal

control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinions

As discussed in Note ito the financial statements the Company discontinued hedge accounting effective January 2012

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of fmancial reporting and the preparation of fmancial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and iiiprovide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the fmancial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over fmancial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston Texas

February 21 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholder of

QEP Resources Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of QEP Resources Inc as of December 31 2011 and the

related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive income loss equity and cash flows for each of the two years in

the period ended December 31 2011 Our audits also included the fmancial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item for

each of the two years in the period ended December31 2011 These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of

the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on

our audits

We conducted our audits accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountmg Oversight Board Umted States
Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the fmancial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial

position of QEP Resources Inc at December 31 2011 and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each

of the two years the period ended December 31 2011 conformity with generally accepted accountmg pnnciples

Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic financial statements

taken as whole presents fairly all matenal respects the information set forth therem

Is Ernst Young LLP

Denver Colorado

February 24 2012
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QEP RESOURCES INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

REVENUES in millions except per share amounts

$fta4$b4 1239tS

Oil sales
532.6 324.2 198.1

NGLsaJes iu 4e In an Hi 309 et42t

Gathering processing and other 181.6 200.8 156.6

Puroltnca flM4 tit
Total Revenues 2349.8 3159.2 2300.6

Purchased gas oil and NGL expense
655.6 077 589.3

Leasdopem$f$ exp$ fl uI4$2 1tSU

Natural gas oil and NGL transport other handling costs 148.9 102.2 54.2

raI 41thL na44tt
u41At%fl1tflfJtaNn Ut tJ NYr Y4

General and administrative 266.6 123.2 107.2

nt /Wt fln na nne
Gpara4otc9t$ 14 Pfl4A 1ih flg4 fl4p 4n flTCA a$ fli

Production and property taxes 103.4 105.4 82.5

DeteciahezhpItiQna1tta1ott1a4iq flSh sm %4
Exploration expenses

11.2 10.5 23.0

AbandotsneitfSdhie1iV
ti

\$fl tf iaA 2tt4 flL 461

Total Operating Expenses 2484.3 2654.7 1767.4

Netantfrea$sLsas flt fl9fl \/

OPERATiNG LOSS iNCOME 133.3 505.9 545.3

RemdaidmrSbze4$San4staUy1WrSeetfl 441S

Interest and other income 6.6 4.1 2.3

he9meomunog$bt14a1i$eS
4444 31

Loss from early extinguishment of debt 0.6 0.7 13.3

interetexpertse 41 pits 90 844

INCOME FROM CONTiNUING OPERATIONS BEFORE iNCOME

TAXES 198.5 424.8 452.9

lotaxa ttS t4i4 t6t0

iNCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 132.0 270.4 285.9

9% 499 44
4L2

NET iNCOME 132.0 270.4 329.1

Netluco1Reattnbi48beto4Co4tr4lkfl4dtt 1449 1S42Ł 44

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO QEP 128.3 267.2 326.2

44
Pe Nfl NS44 44

Basic from continuing operations
0.72 1.51 1.61

tP 025

Basic total 0.72 1.51 1.86

94 94944 44
L6P

Diluted from discontinued operations
0.24

______________ ______________

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

UsdinbacpaIct0Mpnt
94e4 44447749 V26i 175

Used in diluted calculation
178.7 178.4 177.3

See notes accompanying the consolidated fmancial statements
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QEP RESOURCES INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSiVE iNCOME LOSS

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2O10

in millions

Other comprehensive loss income net of tax

Pension and other postretirement plans adjustments

Amortization of net actuarial 1.1

Amortization of net prior service cost 3.5 3.5 1.73qflSY /flfl nr
Total pension and other postretirement plans adjustments 4.0 11.2 29.5

Comprehensive loss income 43.1 284.0 436.3

Comprehensive loss income attributable to QEP 46.8 280.8 433.4

Presented net of income tax benefit of $101.3 million during the year ended December 312012 and net of income

tax expense of $14.7 million and $81.0 million during the
years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Presented net of income tax benefit of $6.3 million and $9.2 million during the years ended December 31 2012 and

2011 respectively and net of income tax expense of $1.6 million for the year ended December 31 2010
Presented net of mcome tax expense of $0 million during the year ended December 31 2012

Presented net Of income tax benefit of $20.9 million during the year ended December 31 2010
Presented net of income tax

expense of $2.2 million $2.1 million and $1.0 million during the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Presented net of income tax expense of $0.8 million during the year ended December 31 2012

See notes accompanying the consolidated financial statements
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QEP RESOURCES INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 December 31
2012 2011

ASSETS in millions

CurentAssets
Cash and cash equivalents

ctu$srcviiab1Mt 3914

Fair value of derivative contracts
188.7 273.7

Gas eilatzdNQL 2% it
Prepaid expenses and other

60.4 43.7

total Cwrenthsset et/ 4L7
Property Plant and Equipment successffil efforts method for

gas
and oil properties

Prove4properties
flfl o434s 11714

Unproved properties
net

937.9 326.8

Mftteamlttservites

Marketing and other
64.6 49.8

MedMandSap1its44 nm e.F s16

Total Property Plant and Equipment 12933.6 10100.2

44 tfjti444
Exploration andproduction 4258.1 3339.2

n$ dim dip av a$Psw t27P
Marketing and other

18.1 14.6

TottAcedMu1atedPDepr1iatSMD41ebbfl aAmdzUzatimr it 44344 365L3

Net Property Plant and Equipment
8299.5 6448.9

Invbs1nientjn$tcóiolZStedaffiliAte
444 422

Goodwill
59.5 59.5

fl/ /14 4/4// 44 44s// 4/4 44
44 1235

Other noncurrent assets
54.5 37.6

TOTAL AssEflh ________________ _______________

Current Liabilities

ceehontstapdingnexc4S$ofqbM$flneS .7 44
$tT 294

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
//

635.9 457.3

Prodisttonidpteertythte$
44 418 400

Interest payable
36.9 24.4

FasrYa1ueofderivftincmVact 48
13

Deferred income taxes
5.0 85.4

Td11GurrGntL1kb111t1 444 ii 888 1Z$9/

Long-term debt
494

1679.4

Deferredmcomttaxes fl4 ii 1A93.$1 I4t7

Asset retirement obligations
191.4 163.9

444$4 4$

EairvalueofdenattvyQon1tactS h4 4444 4444
Other long-term liabilities

137.5 124.8

88 443 88 344 44

Cemnntments and atmgen see NoteS

EQUITY

and 172n1fflfoasbTest$ed4tttve179494 54 p844 fl 94 fl4 4.S 140

Treasury stock- 0.1 million and 04 million shares respectively 3.7 13.1

Add$IQSt$i4lntp1Th1
43144

Retained earnings
2773.0 2673.5

AnrnuIttedothtrcOtnprthenWPflCOme 844 83 $2$. 24j

Total Common Shareholders Equity
3266.0 3301.5

IIoneOptro1hngitqest
4494 444 84 894 84 884 44

Total Equity 3313.7 3352.1

ToTAtJjAB1Ln1tsANpEQnt 384

84 444k $9 jsss 74427

See notes accompanying the consolidated fmancial statements
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QEP RESOURCES INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

AccumulatedCommon Stock Treasury Stock Additional
Other Non-

Paid-in Retained
Comprehensive controlling

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings IncomeLoss Interest Total

in millions

BSce4pM2OS 174S tl 2$fl2 S1A US $M$.7
Questar common stock issued net of repurchases 0.4

H4bflfleohte 326.2 2$

Dividends paid 15.9 15.9

SJiaso4asaopousMion 3$
EquityfromQuestar 250.0 250.0

TflfiSfrflpzgto Q4eflar 2A 42t5 4DPS
Distribution of noncontrolling interest 5.0 5.0

angetneaSdbft1ueeftsatw1ietofta 136.7 136.7

Change in pension and postretirement liability net of tax 29.5 29.5

BakncatDetShb1t34 its 1Z\ AQ13 Z4ZL
________

2011 netincome 2672 3.2 270.4

biideztdsblth0 14d- 14.1

Share-based compensation 1.3 0.3 9.2 33.3 24.1

Dkithw0niQbwaMothz 0.4 -r 04
Distribution of noncontrolling interest 5.4 5.4

baAeia1roau8 j4tqo4efiwdnsn oftat 24.8 242

Change in pension and postretirement liability net of tax
__________ 1.2 11.2

g1ahatDSei1W2fl ti7 GM. _______ _______ 207S 3$2A
2012 net income 128.3 3.7 132.0

Thyijlcl$hsa 4141 141
Share-based compensation 1.3 0.2 7.1 30.7 14.6 23.2

__ 13

6.6 6.6

Change in pension and postretirement liability net of tax 4.0 4.0

s4kcshcesajiaotr _____________________ ________________________________

See notes accompanying the consolidated financial statements
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QEP RESOURCES INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

OPERATiNG ACTIVITIES in millions

132.0 270.4 329.1

Discontinued operations net of income tax 43.2

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation depletion and amortization 904.9 765.4 643.4

Deferred income taxes 32.1 156.8 188.2

Abandonment and impairment
133.4 218.4 46

Share-based compensation 25.6 22.0 16.1

Amortization of debt issuance costs and discounts 53 4.1

Net gain from asset sales 1.2 1.4 12.1

Income from unconsolidated affiliates 6.8 .0

Distributions from unconsolidated affiliates and dry exploratory well expense
7.9 8.1 1.8

Non-cash loss on early extinguishment of debt .3

Unrealized gain on derivative contracts 63.2 117.7 121.7

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 9.6 144.6 32.6

inventories 28.7 22.0 10.1

Prepaid expenses 16.8 1.6 16.2

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
101.3 127.8 4.2

Federal income taxes 3.5 17.0 30.9

Other 0.3 8.5 7.5

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities of Continuing Operations 1296.0 1292.6 997.5

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Property acquisitions 1401.0 48.0 109.3

Property plant and equipment including dry hole exploratory well expense 1398.7 1383.1 1359.7

Proceeds from disposition of assets 5.2 8.2 25.6

Change in notes receivable 52.9

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities of Continuing Operations 2794.5 1422.9 1390.5

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Checks outstanding in excess of cash balances 10.3 9.9 9.5

Long-tenn debt issued 1450.0

Long-term debt issuance costs paid 17.8 10.6 16.6

Long-term debt repaid 6.7 58.5 91.5

Repayments of notes payable 39.3

Long-term debt extinguishment costs 4.9

Proceeds from credit facility 1234.5 591.5

Repayments of credit facility 1151.0 385.0 761.5

Other capital contributions 2.2 0.7 2.8

Equity contribution 250.0

Dividends paid 14.2 14.1 7.0

Excess tax benefit on share-based compensation 2.2 1.6

Distribution from Questar
0.2 7.2

Distribution to noncontrolling interest 6.6 5.4 5.0

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities of Continuing Operations 1498.5 130.3 373.7

CASH USED IN CONTINUING OPERATIONS 19.3

Cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations 68.6

Cash used in investing activities of discontinued operations 39.9

Cash used in financing activities of discontinued operations 26.9

Effect of change in cash and cash equivalents of discontmued operations 1.8

Change in cash and cash equivalents 19.3

Beginning cash and cash equivalents
19.3

Net income

Ending cash atid cash equivalents

See notes accompanying the consolidated financial statements
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QEP RESOURCES INC

NOTES ACCOMPANYING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business

QEP Resources Inc QEP or the Company is holding company with three major lines of business natural gas and crude oil

exploration and production midstream field services and energy marketing These businesses are conducted through the

Companys three principal subsidiaries

QEP Energy Company QEP Energy acquires explores for develops and produces natural gas oil and natural gas liquids

NGL

QEP Field Services Company QEP Field Services provides midstream field services including natural gas gathering

processing compression and treating services for affiliates and third parties and

QEP Marketing Company QEP Marketing markets affiliate and third-party naturalgas and oil and owns and operates an

underground gasstorage reservoir

Operations are focused in two major regionsthe Northern Region jrimarily in North Dakota Wyoming and Utah and the

Southern Region primarily Oklahoma Louisiana and the Texas Panhandle of the United States QEPs corporate headquarters
are located in Denver Colorado

Shares of QEP Resources common stock trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol QEP

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements contain the accounts of QEP and its majority-owned or controlled subsidiaries The
consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with U.S Generally Accepted Accounting Principles GAAP
and with the instructions for annual reports on Form 10-K and Regulations S-X and S-K All significant intercompany accounts

and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Effective May 18 2010 Questar Market Resources Inc Market Resources then wholly owned subsidiary of Questar

Corporation Questar merged with and into newly-formed wholly owned subsidiary QEP Delaware corporation in order

to reincorporate in the State of Delaware Reincorporation Merger The Reincorporation Merger was affected pursuant to an

Agreement and Plan of Merger entered into between Market Resources and QEP The Reincorporation Merger was approved
by the boards of directors of Market Resources and QEP and submitted to vote of and approved by the Board of Directors of

Questar as sole shareholder of Market Resources and by Market Resources as sole shareholder of QEP on May 18 2010

On June 30 2010 Questar distributed all of the shares of common stock of QEP held by Questar to Questar shareholders in

tax-free pro rata dividend the Spin-off Each Questar shareholder received one share of QEP common stock for each one
share of Questar common stock held including fractional shares at the close of business on the record date In connection

therewith QEP distributed Wexpro Company Wexpro wholly owned subsidiary of QEP at the time to Questar In addition

Questar contributed $250.0 million of equity to QEP prior to the Spin-off

The fmancial information presented in this Annual Report on Form 10-K presents QEPs financial results as an independent

company separate from Questar and reflects Wexpros fmancial condition and operating results as discontinued operations for

all periods presented summary of discontinued operations can be found in Note 13 to the consolidated fmancial statements

All dollar and share amounts in this Form 10-K are in millions except per-share information and where otherwise noted

Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliates

QEP uses the equity method to account for investment in unconsolidated affiliates where it does not have control but has

significant influence The investment in unconsolidated affiliates on the Companys consolidated balance sheets equals the

Companys proportionate share of equity reported by the unconsolidated affiliates Investment is assessed for possible

impairment when events indicate that the fair value of the investment may be below the Companys carrying value When such
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condition is deemed to be other than temporary the carrying value of the investment is written down toits fair value and the

amount of the write-down is included in the determination of net income

The principal unconsolidated affiliates and QEPs ownership percentage as of December 31 2012 and 2011 were Uintah Basin

Field Services LLC 38%and and Three Rivers Gathering LLC 50% both limited liability companies engaged in

gathering and compressing natural gas

Reclassifications

In 2011 Gathering processing and other revenues included NGL which were reclassified to conform with the current

period presentation on the Consolidated Statement of Operations The NGL reclassification is all within Revenues and has no

effect on income from continuing operations net income or earnings per share Additionally QEP reclassified Materials and

supplies as of December 31 2011 from current to long-term on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for consistency with current

period presentation

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements and notes in conformity with GAAP requires that management

formulate estimates and assumptions that affect revenues expenses assets liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets

and liabilities significant item that requires managements estimates and assumptions is the estimate of proved natural gas

oil and NGL reserves which are used in the calculation of depreciation depletion and amortization rates of its gas
and oil

properties impairment of proved properties and asset retirement obligations Changes in estimated quantities
of its reserves

could impact the Companys reported financial results as well as disclosures regarding the quantities and value of proved gas

and oil reserves Other items subject to estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of property plant and

equipment and goodwill assigning fair value and allocating purchase price in connection with business combinations valuation

allowances for receivables income taxes valuation of derivatives instruments accrued liabilities accrued revenue and related

receivables and obligations related to employee benefits among others Although management believes these estimates are

reasonable actual results could differ from these estimates

Revenue Recognition

QEP subsidiaries recognize revenues in the period that services are provided or products are delivered Revenues associated

with the sale of natural gas and oil are accounted for using the sales method whereby revenue is recognized as gas
and oil is

sold to purchasers liability is recorded to the extent that the Company has sold volumes in excess of its share of remaining

gas and oil reserves in an underlying property QEPs imbalance obligations at December 31 2012 and 2011 were $13.2

million and $13.3 million respectively

QEP Marketing reports revenues on gross basis because in the judgment of management the nature and circumstances of its

marketing transactions are consistent with guidance for gross revenue reporting QEP Marketing markets affiliate and third-

party natural gas oil and NGL volumes QEP Marketing uses derivatives to secure known price for specific volume over

specific time period QEP Marketing does not engage in speculative hedging transactions nor does it buy and sell energy

contracts with the objective of generating profits on short-term differences in price QEP Marketing has not engaged in buy/sell

arrangements as described in ASC 845-10-25-4 Accounting forPurchases and Sales of Inventory with the Same Counterparty

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist principally of repurchase agreements with maturities of three months or less The repurchase

agreements are highly liquid investments in overnight securities made through commercial-bank accounts that result in

available funds the next business day
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Supplemental cash flow information is shown in the below table

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Supplemental Disclosures in millions

UO 80
Cash paid received for income taxes 30.0 28.5 14.0

Chaige in capital expenditure accrui balance 88.5 14.7 16.9

Accounts Receivable Trade

Accounts receivable trade consists mainly of receivables from oil and gas purchasers and joint interest owners on properties the

Company operates For receivables from joint interest owners the Company has the ability to withhold future revenue

disbursements to recover any non-payment ofjoint interest billings Generally the Companys oil and gas receivables are

collected and bad-debts are minimal Bad-debt
expense associated with accounts receivable for the years ended December 31

2012 and 2011 was $1.4 million and $0.2 million respectively and credit of $0.3 million in 2010 The Company routinely

assesses the recoverability of all material trade and
otier receivables to determine their collectability The allowance for bad-

debt expenses was $2.8 million at December 31 2012 and $1.7 million at December 31 2011

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment balances are stated at historical cost Material and supplies inventories are valued at the lower of

cost or market Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred with the exception of compressor maintenance costs
which are capitalized and depreciated Significant accounting policies for our property plant and equipment are as follows

Gas and oil properties

QEP Energy uses the successful efforts method to account for gas and oil properties The costs of acquiring leaseholds drilling

development wells drilling successful exploratory wells purchasing related support equipment and facilities are capitalized

Geological and geophysical studies and other exploratory activities are expensed as incurred Costs of production and general-

corporate activities are expensed in the period incurred gain or loss is generally recognized only when an entire field is sold or

abandoned or if the unit-of-production depreciation depletion and amortization rate would be significantly affected

Capitalized costs of unproved properties are reclassified as proved property when related proved reserves are determined or

charged against the impainnent allowance when abandoned

Capitalized exploratory well costs

The Company capitalizes exploratory well costs until it determines whether an exploratory well is commercial or

noncommercial If the Company deems the well commercial capitalized costs are depreciated on field basis using the unit-of-

production method and the estimated proved developed gas and oil reserves If the Company concludes that the well is

noncommercial well costs are immediately charged to exploration expense Exploratory-well costs capitalized for period

greater than one year since the completion of drilling are expensed unless the Company remains engaged in substantial

activities to assess whether the well is commercial

Depreciation depletion and amortization

Capitalized proved leasehold costs are depleted on field-by-field basis using the unit-of-production method and the estimated

proved gas and oil reserves Oil and NGL volumes are converted to natural gas equivalents using the ratio of one barrel of
crude oil condensate or NGL to 6000 cubic feet of natural gas Capitalized costs of exploratory wells that have found proved
gas and oil reserves and capitalized development costs are depreciated using the unit-of-production method based on estimated

proved developed reserves for successful effort field pool The Company capitalizes an estimate of the fair value of future

abandonment costs

Depreciation depletion and amortization for the remaining Company properties is based upon rates that will systematically

charge the costs of assets against income over the estimated useful lives of those assets using either straight-line or unit-of-

production method Investment in gas gathering and processing fixed assets is charged to expense using either the straight-line

or unit-of-production method depending upon the facility The estimated useful lives of those assets depreciated under the

straight-line basis generally range as follows
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Leasehold improvements to 10 years

see 4ptxw1t 3t7 eai

Furniture and office equipment to years

Impairment ofLong-LivedAssets

Proved gas and oil properties are evaluated on field-by-field basis for potential impairment Impairment is indicated when

triggering event occurs and/or the sum of the estimated undiscounted future net cash flows of an evaluated asset is less than the

assets carrying value Triggering events could include but are not limited to an impairment of gas and oil reserves caused by

mechanical problems faster-than-expected decline of reserves lease-ownership issues declines in natural gas NGL and crude

oil prices and changes in the utilization of midstream gathering and processing assets If impairment is indicated fair value is

calculated using discounted-cash flow approach Cash flow estimates require forecasts and assumptions for many years into

the future for variety of factors including commodity prices operating costs and estimates of proved probable and possible

reserves Cash flow estimates relating to future cash flows from probable and possible reserves are reduced by additional risk-

weighting factors

Unproved properties are evaluated on specific-asset basis or in groups of similarassets as applicable The Company performs

periodic assessments of unproved oil and gas properties for impairment and recognizes loss at the time of impairment In

determining whether an unproved property is impaired the Company considers numerous factors including but not limited to

current development and exploration drilling plans favorable or unfavorable exploration activity on adjacent leaseholds in-

house geologists evaluation of the lease future reserve cash flows and the remaining lease term

During the year ended December 31 2012 QEP recorded abandonment and impainnent charges of $133.4 million on its oil

and gas properties
Of the $133.4 million abandonment and impairment charges during the year ended December 31 2012

$107.6 million related to price-related impairment charges on proved properties and $23.7 million related to impairment on

unproved properties
The impairment charges were related to the reduced value of certain fields resulting from lower natural

gas crude oil and NGL prices and impairments of unproven leasehold acquisition costs Of the $133.4 million abandonment

and impairment charges during the year ended December 31 2012 $104.8 million was related to oil and gas properties in the

Southern Region and $28.6 million was related to oil and gas properties in the Northern Region During the year ended

December 31 2011 QEP recorded abandonment and impairment charges of $2 18.4 million $173.1 million were related to

properties in the Northern Region with the remaining $45.3 million related to properties in the Southern Region Of the $218.4

million abandonment and impairment charges during the year ended December 31 2011 $195.5 million related to the

impairment charges on proved properties and $20.3 million related to impairment on unproved properties During the year

ended December 31 2010 QEP recorded abandonment and impairment charges of $46.1 million of which $0.7 million related

to proved property impairments and $40.7 million related to impairment on unproved properties

Asset Retirement Obligations

Asset retirement obligations ARO associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets are recognized as liabilities

with an increase to the carrying amounts of the related long-lived assets in the period incurred The cost of the tangible asset

including the asset retirement costs is depreciated over the useful life of the asset ARO are recorded at estimated fair value

measured by reference to the expected future cash outflows required to satisfy the retirement obligations discounted at the

Companys credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate Accretion expense
is recognized over time as the discounted liabilities are

accreted to their expected settlement value If estimated future costs of ARO change an adjustment is recorded to both the asset

retirement obligation and the long-lived asset Revisions to estimated ARO can result from changes in retirement cost

estimates revisions to estimated inflation rates and changes in the estimated timing of abandonment

Capitalized Interest

The Company capitalizes interest costs during the construction phase of large capital projects that meet certain criteria

Capitalized interest was $3.4 million $3.0 million and $3.1 million during the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively

Litigation and Other Contingencies

In accordance with ASC 450 Contingencies an accrual is recorded fOr loss contingency when its occurrence is probable and

damages can be reasonably estimated based on the anticipated most likely outcome or the minimum amount within range of

possible outcomes QEP regularly reviews contingencies to determine the adequacy of its accruals and related disclosures The

amount of ultimate loss may differ from these estimates See Note Commitments and Contingencies for additional

information
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Except for environmental contingencies acquired ma businesscombination which are recorded at fair value QEP accrues

losses associated with environmental obligations when such losses are probable and can be reasonably estimated Accruals for

estimated environmental losses are recognized no later than at the time the remediation feasibility study or the evaluation of

response options is complete These accruals are adjusted as additional information becomes available or as circumstances

change Future environmental expendituresare not dicounted to their present value Recoveries of environmental costs from

other parties are recorded separately as assets at their undiscountØd value when receipt of such recoveries is probable.

Goodwifi

Goodwill represents the excess of the amount paid over the fair value of net assets acquired in business combination and is

not subject to amortization As of December 31 2012 and 2011 goodwill was $59.5 million and related to the Uinta Basin

reporting unit within QEP Energy Goodwill is tested for impairment at minimum of oncea year or when triggering event

occurs using the income approach Under the income approach the fair value is estimated based on the value of expected future

cash flows Key assumptions used in the cash flow model consider estimated quantities of crude oil NGL and natural gas

reserves including both proved reserves and risk-adjusted unproved reserves estimates of market prices considering forward

commodity price curves as of the measurement date and estimates of operating administrative and capital costs adjusted for

inflation The undiscounted net cash flows of the reporting unit to which the goodwill relates are evaluatedJmpairmentis

indicated if undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying value of the assets The amount of the impairment is measured

using discounted cash flow model considering future revenues operating costs risk-adjusted discount rate and other

factors There have been no goodwill impairments

Derivative Instruments

Effective January 2012 the Company elected to de-designate all of its natural gas oil and NGL derivative contracts that had

previously been designated as cash flow hedges and has elected to discontinue hedge accounting prospectively Accordingly all

realized and unrealized gains and losses are recognized in earnings immediately as derivative contracts are settled and marked-

to-market FOr the year ended December 31 2012 unrealized gaIns of $63.2 million were included in income that prior to

January 2012 would have been deferred in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income AOCI under hedge accounting

Refer to Note 6Derivative Contracts for additional information At December31 2011 AOCI consisted of $395.9 million

$248.6 million after tax of unrealized gains representing the mark-to-market value of the Companys cash flow hedges as of

the balance sheet date less any ineffectiveness recognized As result of discontinuing hedge accounting such mark-to-market

values at December 31 2011 were frozen in AOCIas ofthe dc-designation date and are being reclassified into earnings as the

original hedged transactions occur and effect earnings QEP expects to reclassif into earnings from AOCI the remaining frozen

value $123.5 million $77.6 million after tax related to de-designated natural gas oil and NGL hedges during 2013

All of QEPs derivative contracts are net settled in cash without delivery of product These contracts also have nominal

quantity and exchange an index price for afixedprice and are net settled with the brokers as.the price bulletins become

available These derivative contracts are recorded in revenues or cost of sales in the month of settlement Basis-only swaps are

used to manage the risk of widening basis differentials These contracts are marked to market monthly with any change in the

valuation recognized in the determination of income

Credit Risk

The Northern and Southern Regions constitute the Companys primary market areas Exposure to credit risk may be affected by

the concentration of customers in these
regions due to changes in economic or other conditions Customers mclude individuals

and numerous commercial and industrial enterprises that may react differently to changing conditions Management believes

that its credit-review procedures loss reserves customer deposits and collection procedures have adequately provided for usual

and customary credit related losses Commodity-based hedging arrangements also expose the Company to credit nsk The

Company monitors the creditworthiness of its counterparties which generally are major financial institutions and energy

companies Loss reserves are periodically reviewed for adequacy and may be established on specific case basis QEP requests

credit support and in some cases fungible collateral financial guarantees letters of credit or prepayment from companies with

unacceptable credit risks The Company has master-netting agreements with some counterparties that allow the offsetting of

receivables and payables in default situation

The Companys five largest customers accounted for 37% 32% and 27% in aggregate of QEP revenueS during the years ended

December 31 20122011 and 2010 respectively During the
year

ended December 31 2012 Chevron U.S.A Inc and

Enterprise Products Operating L.P accountedfor 13% and 10% respectively of the Companys total revenues Management
believes that the loss of either customer or any other customer would not have material effect on the financial position or
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results of operations of QEP since there are numerous potential purchasers of its production During the years ended December

31 2011 and 2010 each of the five largest customers sales were below 10% of QEPs total revenues

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided for the temporary differences arising between the book and tax carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities These differences create taxable or tax-deductible amounts for future periods The Company records interest

earned on income tax refunds in interest and other income and records penalties and interest charged on tax deficiencies in

interest expense

ASC 740 Income Taxes specifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by prescribing minimum recognition

threshold for tax position to be reflected in the financial statements If recognized the taxbenefit is measured as the largest

amount of tax benefit that is more-likely-than-not to be realized upon ultimate settlement Management has considered the

amounts and the probabilities of the outcomes that could be realized upon ultimate settlement and believes that it is more-

likely-than-not that the Companys recorded income tax benefits will be fully realized There were no unrecognized tax benefits

at the beginning or at the end of the twelve-month periods ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 The federal income tax

returns for 2011 and 2010 are currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service Income tax returns for 2012 have

not yet been filed Most state tax returns for 2009 and subsequent years
remain subject to examination

Treasury Stock

We record treasury stock purchases at costs which includes incremental direct transaction costs Amounts are recorded as

reduction in shareholders equity in the consolidated balance sheets Acquired treasury stock is used for stock grants to

employees refer to Note 10 Share-Based Compensation for additional information

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share EPS are computed by dividing net income attributable to QEP by the weighted-average number of

common shares outstanding during the reporting period Diluted EPS includes the potential increase in the number of

outstanding shares that could result from the exercise of in-the-money stock options QEP.s unvested restricted shares are

considered issued and outstanding the historical forfeiture rate is minimal and the restricted shares receive dividends

Unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents are considered

participating securities and are included in the computation of earnings per share pursuant to the two-class method The

Companys unvested restricted stock awards contain nonforfeitable dividend rights and participate equally with common stock

with respect to dividends issued or declared However the Companys unvested restricted stock does not have contractual

obligation to share in losses of the Company The Companys unexercised stock options do not contain rights to dividends

Under the two-class method the earnings used to determine basic earnings per common share are reduced by an amount

allocated to participating securities When the Company records net loss none of the loss is allocated to the participating

securities since the securities are not obligated to share in Company losses Use of the two-class method has an insignificant

impact on the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per common share reconciliation of the components of basic and

diluted shares used in the EPS calculation follows

December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions

Potential number of shares issuable under the Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan 0.9 1.9 2.0

Share-Based Compensation

QEP issues stock options and restricted shares to certain officers employees and non-employee directors under its Long-Term

Stock Incentive Plan LTSIP QEP uses the Black-Scholes-Merton mathematical model to estimate the fair value of stock

options for accounting purposes The granting of restricted shares results in recognition of compensation cost measured at the

grant-date market price QEP uses an accelerated method in recognizing share-based compensation costs with graded-vesting

periods Stock options held by employees generally vest in three equal annual installments and primarily have terms of seven
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years Restricted shares vest in equal installments over specified number of
years

after the grant date with the majority vesting

in three years Non-vested restricted shares have voting and dividend rights however sale or transfer is restricted At the time

of the Spin-off all outstanding options and restricted stock were bifurcated The Company also awards performance share units

which are paid out in cash that is dependent upon the Companys total shareholder return compared to group of its peers over

three-year period The performance share units compensation cost is equal to its fair value as of the period end and is

classified as liability For summary of LTSIP transactions see Note 10Share-Based Compensation

Pension Plans Other Postretirement Benefits and Defined-Contribution Plans

QEP measures pension plan assets at fair value Defined-benefit plan obligations and costs are actuarially determined

incorporating the use of various assumptions Critical assumptions for pension and other postretirement plans include the

discount rate the expected rate of return on plan assets for funded pension plans the rate of future compensation increases

and the health care cost trend rate Other assumptions involve demographic factors such as retirement mortality and turnover

QEP evaluates and updates its actuarial assumptions at least annually

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is the sum of net income attributable to QEP as reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

and changes in the components of other comprehensive income Other comprehensive income includes certain items that are

recorded directly to equity and classified as AOCI One component of other comprehensive income is changes in the market

value of commodity-based derivative instruments that qualified for hedge accounting Income or loss associated with

commodity-based derivative instruments that qualified for hedge accounting is realized when the natural gas oil or NGL
underlying the derivative instrument is sold Comprehensive income also includes changes in the under-funded portion of the

defined benefit pension plans and other postretirement benefits pians and changes in deferred income taxes on such amOunts

These transactions are not the culmination of the earnings process but result from periodically adjusting historical balances to

fair value

Business Segments

Line of business information is presented according to senior managements basis for evaluating performance considering

differences in the nature of products services and regulation QEPs lines of business are QEP Energy QEP Field Services and

QEP Marketing and other corporate activities not attributable to line of business

Recent Accounting Developments

In December of 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011 11 Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities which enhances

disclosure requirements regarding an entitys financial mstrumentsand denvative mstruments that are offset or subject to

master netting arrangement This information about offsetting and related netting arrangements will enable users of financial

statements to understand the effect of those arrangements on the entitys fmancial position including the effect of rights of

setoff The amendments are required for annual reportmg periods begmnmg after January 2013 and mterim periods within

those annual periods QEP is evaluating the impact of this ASU on its disclosure requirements

Tn July of 2012 the FASB issued ASU 2012 02 Intangibles Goodwill and Other Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

for Impairment which revises the way an entity can test mdefmite-lived intangible assets for impairment by allowing an entity

to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events and circumstances indicates that it is more likely

than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired If there is no indication of impairment from the qualitative

impairment test the entity is not required to complete quantitative impairment test of detennimng and comparmg the fair

value with the carrying amount of the indefinite-lived asset Under the guidance in this ASU an entity also has the option to

bypass the qualitative assessment in any period and proceea directly in performing the quantitative impairment test and can

resume performing the qualitative sessment%many subsequent penod The amendments are effective for annual and interim

impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15 2012 The adoption of this standard will allow the

Company to more efficiently complete the annual goodwill impairment test but will not have significant impact on the

Companys consolidated financial statements
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Note 2- Acquisition

On September 27 2012 QEP Energy completed an acquisition of oil and gas properties in the Williston Basin for an aggregate

purchase price of approximately $1.4 billion subject to post-closing adjustments the 2012 Acquisition The properties are

located in Williams and McKenzie counties of North Dakota approximately 12 miles west of QEPs existing core acreage
in

the Williston Basin

The 2012 Acquisition meets the definition of business combination under ASC 805 Business Combinations as it included

proved properties QEP allocated the cost of the 2012 Acquisition to assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on fair values

as of the acquisition date Revenues of $63.7 million and net income of $14.9 million generated from the acquired properties

for the fourth quarter of 2012 and have been included in QEPs Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended

December 31 2012 During the year ended December 31 2012 QEP Energys acquisition-related costs of $1.1 million are

included in General and administrative on the Consolidated Statements of Operations

QEP Energy recorded the 2012 Acquisition on its Consolidated Balance Sheets however the fmal purchase price is subject to

revision based on the settlement of post-closing adjustments The following table presents summary of the preliminary

purchase accounting entries

As of December 31 2012

Consideration given in millions

asiIstSi4Si$W

/ff44 flflfle4 fl4H tun
Proved properties

713.8

ii

htJijprovedptqptrtM4n flhn flse Hna 6J
Asset retirement obligations 0.9

IL
flffl W$n $flafl

fl3fl

Other assets acquired
0.8

124IG1 Ptrj $SFI$$7

The following unaudited pro forma results of operations are provided for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 as

though the 2012 Acquisition had been completed as of the beginning of January 2011 These supplemental pro
forma resuits

of operations are provided for illustrative purposes only and may not be indicative of the actual resuits that wouid have been

achieved by the properties for the periods presented or that may be achieved by the properties in the future Future resuits may

vary significantly from the resuits reflected in this pro forma fmancial information because of future events and transactions as

well as other factors The pro forma information is based on QEPs consolidated results of operations for the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 on the acquired properties historical results of operations and on estimates of the effect of the

transaction on the combined resuits The pro forma results of operations have been prepared by adjusting the historical results

of QEP to include the historical resuits of the acquired properties based on information provided by the seller and the impact of

the preliminary purchase pnce allocation The pro forma results of operations do not mclude any cost savmgs or other synergies

that may result from the 2012 Acquisition or any estimated costs that have been or will be mcurred by the Company to integrate

the properties

Year ended December 31

2012 2011

Actual Pro forma Actual Pro forma

in millions except per share data

Net income attributable to QEP 128.3 143.0 267.2 259.8

Basic 0.72 0.80 1.51 1.47

sp%giu jfE4i
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Note Capitalized Exploratory Well Costs

Net changes in capitalized exploratory well costs are presented in the table below and exclude amounts that were capitalized
and subsequentlyexpensed in the period Thebalance at December 31 2012 2011 and2Ql0 represents the amount of

capitalized exploratory well costs that are pending the determination ofproved reserves

2012 2011 2010

.inmiuions

QEP records asset retirement obligations ARO when there are legal obligations associated with the rtirØmeæt of tangible

long-lived assets The Companys ARO liability applies primarily to abandonment costs associated with gas and oil wells

production facilities and certain other properties The fair values of such costs are estimated by Company personnel based on
abandonment costs of similar assets and depreciated over the life of the related assets Revisions to the ARO liability occur due

tochanges in estimated abandonment costs and well economic lives The ARO liability is adjusted to present value each period

through an accretion calculation using credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate Of the $193.1 million ARO liability $1.7 million

was included as liability in Accounts payable and accrued expenses on the Consolidated Balance Sheet

The following is reconciliation of the changes in the asset retirement obligation for the periods specified below

in millions

ARO liability at January 163.9 148.3

Accretion
10.5 9.7

Liabilities incurred 8.5 7.9

Revisions ii.i

Liabilities settled 0.9 2.0
ARO liability at December 31 193.1 163.9

Note 5Fair Value Measurements

QEP measures and discloses fair values in accordance with the provisions of ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements This

guidance defines fair value in applying GAAP establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about

fair-value measurements but does not change existing guidance as to whether or not an instrument is carried at fair value ASC
820 also establishes fair-value hierarchy Level inputs are quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in

active markets that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date Level inputs are inputs other than quoted

prices included within Level that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly Level inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

QEP has determined that its commodity derivative instruments are Level The Level fair value of commodity derivative

contracts see Note Derivative Contracts is based on market prices posted on the NYMEX on the last trading day of the

reporting period and industry standard discounted cash flow models QEP primarily applies the market approach for recurring
fair value measurements and maximizes its use of observable inputs and minimizes its use of unobservable inputs QEP
considers bid and ask prices for valuing the majority of its assets and liabilities measured and reported at fair value In addition

to using market data QEP makes assumptions in valuing its assets and liabilities including assumptions about risk and the

Additions to capitalized exploratory well costs pending the determination of proved
reserves

Note Asset Retirement Obligations

12.7

Asset Retirement Obligations

2012 2011
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risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique The Companys policy is to recognize significant transfers between levels

at the end of the reporting period

However certain of the Companys commodity derivative instruments are valued using industry standard models that consider

various inputs including quoted forward prices for commodities time value volatility and current market and contractual

prices for the underlying instruments as well as other relevant economic measures Substantially all of these inputs are

observable in the marketplace throughout the full term of the instrument and can be derived from observable data or are

supported by observable prices at which transactions are executed in the marketplace The determination of fair value for

derivative assets and liabilities also incorporates nonperformance risk for counterparties and for QEP Derivative contract fair

values are reported on net basis to the extent legal right of offset with the counterparty exists

In addition QEP has interest rate swaps that it has determined are Level The fair values of the interest rate swaps are

determined using the market standard methodology of discounting the future expected cash flows that would occur under the

contractual terms of the swap The variable interest ntes used in the ealculation of projected cash flows are based on an

expectation of future interest rates derived from observable market interef rate curves QEP incorpates credit valuation

adjustments to reflect both its nonperformance nsk and the respective counterpartys nonperformance nsk in the fair value

measurements While the credit valuation adjustments are not obsçrvable inputs they are not significant to the overall valuation

and the other inputs used to value the interest rate swaps are observable Level inputs

The fair value of fmancial assets and liabilities at December 31 2912 and 2011 is shown in the tables below

Fair Value Measurements

December 312012

Nettmg

Level Lel Level Adjustments Total

in millions

Financial Assets

Commodity derivative instruments short-term 189.7 1.0 188.7

44t/ n42 444 au L1 n4i

Total fmancial assets 193.9 1.1
/_$

192.8

4/44 144944/ flfl40 44 444flfl44fl444 4444 4fl

/4 44 444/ 44$44 444 9fl4
Financial Liabilities

coiinwdii twathidiq fls$t$9yt4j ernj4444nli4àL2r 44n44

Interest rate swaps short-term 2.6 2.6

csioty4euyd Uªnf4j iin42 4t49 4/44 2e ioi
Interest rate swaps long-term

3.6 3.6
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Fair Value Measurements

December 31 2011

Netting
Level Level Level Adjustments Total

in millions

Financial Assets

Commodity derivative instruments- long-term 123.5 _L
123.5

Commodity derivative instruments short-term 11.7 10.4 1.3

Total fmancial liabilities 11.7 10.4 1.3

Fair values related to the Companys crude oil costless collars were transferred from Level to Level in the second quarter of

2012 due to the enhancements to the Companys internal valuation process including the use of observable inputs to assess the

fair value There were no other significant transfers in or out of Levels or for the periods presented herein

The change in the fair value of Level commodity derivative instruments assets and liabilities for the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 are shown below

Change in Level Fair

Value Measurements

2012 2011

in millions

1ait tJPiiuaryi

Realized gains and losses 0.6 25.3
.fl 43j

Settlements 0.6 25.3
rafeotortveI

Balance at December 31

The following table discloses the fair value and related carrying amount of certain financial instruments not disclosed in other

notes to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Carrying Level
Carrying Level

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

December 312012 December 31 2011

in millions

Financial liabilities

Long-term debt 3206.9 3420.7 1679.4 1754.9

The carrying amount of checks outstanding in excess of cash balances approximates fair value The fair value of fixed-rate

long-term debt is based on the trading levels and dollar prices for the Companys debt at the end of the quarter The carrying
amount of variable-rate long-term debt approximates fair value because the floating interest rate paid on such debt was set for

periods of one month

The initial measurement of asset retirement obligations at fair value is calculated using discounted cash flow techniques and

based on internal estimates of future retirement costs associated with property plant and equipment Significant Level inputs

are used in the calculation of asset retirement obligations include plugging costs and reserve lives reconciliation of the

Companys asset retirement obligations is presented in Note Asset Retirement Obligations
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Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements

The provisions
of the fair value measurement standard are also applied to the Companys nonrecurring non-fmancial

measurements The Company utilizes fair value on non-recurring basis to review its proved oil and gas properties and

goodwill for potential impairment when events and circumstances indicate possible decline in the recoverability of the

carrying value of such property During the years
ended December 31 2012 and 2011 the Company recorded impairments on

certain oil and gas properties resulting in write down of the associated carrying value to fair value The fair value of the

property was measured utilizing the income approach and utilizing inputs which are primarily based upon internally developed

cash flow models Given the unobservable nature of the inputs proved oil and gas property impairments are considered vel

within the fair value hierarchy During the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 the Company recorded $107.6 million

and $195.5 million respectively of impainnents related to some of its proved properties The proved properties were written

down to their estimated fair values of $71 million and $157 million at the time of the impairments during 2012 and 2011

respectively

Acquisitions of proved and unproved properties are also measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis The Company utilized

discounted cash flow model to estimates the fair value of acquired property as of the acquisition date which utilized the following

inputs to estimate future net cash flows estimated quantities of crude oil natural gas and NGL reserves estimates of future

commodity prices and estimated production rates future operating and development costs which were based on the Companys

historic experience with similarproperties Due to the unobservable characteristics of the inputs the fair value of the properties

are considered Level within the fair value hierarchy Refer to Note Acquisition for additional information on the fair value

of acquired properties
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Note Derivative Contracts

QEP has established policies and procedures for managing commodity price volatility through the use of derivative

instruments In the normal course of business QEP uses commodity derivative instruments to reduce the impact of downward

movements in commodity prices on cash flow returns on capital and other financial results However these instruments

typically limit gains from favorable price movements The volume of production subject to commodity derivative instruments

and the mix of the instruments are frequently evaluated and adjusted by management in response tQ changmg market

conditions QEP may enter into commodity derivative contracts for up to 100% of forecasted production from proved reserves

In addition QEP may enter into commodity derivative contracts on portion of its extracted NGL volumes in its midstream

business and portion ofits natural
gas

sales and purchases for marketing transactions QEP does not enter-into commodity

derivative instruments for speculative purposes

QEP uses commodity derivative instruments known as fixed price swaps and costless collars to realize known pnce or range

of prices for specific volume of production delivered into regional sales point Costless collars are combinations of put and

call options that have floOr price and ceiling price and payments are made or received only if the settlement price is outside

the range between the floor and ceiling pnces QEPs commodity derivative instruments do not require
the physical delivery of

natural gas crude oil or NGL between the parties at settlement Swap and costless collar transactions are settled in cash with

one party paying the other for the net difference in prices multiplied by the contract volume for the settlement period Natural

gas price derivative instruments are typically structured as fixed-price swaps at regional price indices Oil price derivative

instruments are typically structured as NYMEX fixed-price swaps based at Cushing Oklahoma NGL price derivative

instruments are typically structured as Mont Belvieu Texas fixed-price swaps

QEP enters into commodity derivative transactions that do not have commodity margin requirements or collateral provisions

that would require payments prior to the scheduled settlement dates Commodity derivative contract counterparties are

normally financial institutions and
energy trading firms with investment-grade credit ratings QEP routinely monitors and

manages its exposure to counterparty risk by requiring specific minimum credit standards for all counterparties and avoids

concentration of credit exposure by transacting with multiple counterparties

Effective January 2012 QEP elected to de-designate all of its natural gas crude oil and NGL derivative contracts that were

previously designated as cash flow hedges and discontinue hedge accounting prospectively As result of discontinuing hedge

accounting the mark-to-market values at December 31 2011 were fixed in AOCI as of the de-designation date and are being

reclassified into the Consolidated Statement of Operations as the transactions settle and affect earnmgs At December 31 2012

AOCI consisted of $123 million $77 million after tax of unrealized gains During 2012 $1711 million unrealized gains
after tax were reclassified from AOCI into the Consolidated Statement of Operations in Realized and Unrealized gains on

derivative contracts as the transactions settled QEP expects to reclassify into earnings from AOCI the remaining fixed value

related to de-designated natural gas oil and NGL hedges during 2013 Currently QEP recognizes all gains and losses from

changes in the fair value of natural gas oil and NGL derivative contracts immediately in earnmgs rather than deferring ay
such amounts AOCI All commodity derivative instruments are recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as either assets

or liabilities measured at their fair values All realized and unrealized gains and losses from derivative instruments incurred

after January 2012 are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Operations in Realized and unrealized gains on

derivative contracts below operating income

QEP also uses interest rate swaps to mitigate portion of its exposure to interest rate volatility risk During the second quarter

of 2012 QEP entered into vanabe-to-fixed interest rate swap agreements havmg combined notional principal amount of

$300.0 million to minimize the interest rate volatility risk associated with its $300.0 million term loan QEP locked in fixed

interest rate in exchange for variable interest rate indexed to the one-month LIBOR rate The interest rate swaps are valued at

mark-to-market settle monthly and will mature in March of 2017
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QEP Energy Derivative Contracts

The following table sets forth QEP Energys quantities and average prices for its commodity derivative contracts as of

December 31 2012

in millions

Swaps

Natural gas sales MMBtU

2O13

2013 Swap IFNPCR 65.7 5.66

Oil sales Bbls

2014 Swap NYMEXWTI 1.8 92.72

QEP Marketing Derivative Contracts

QEP Marketing enters into commodity derivative transactions to lock in margin on natural gas volumes placed into storage

and for marketing transactions in which QEP Marketing is required to sell gas volumes at fixed price The following table sets

forth QEP Marketings volumes and swap prices for its commodity derivative contracts as of December 31 2012

Average

Total Swap price

Volumes per MMBtu

in millions

MMBtu

QEP Resources Derivative Contracts

In the second quarter of 2012 QEP Resources entered into interest rate swap agreements to effectively lock fixed mterest

rate on debt outstanding under its Term Loan The following table sets forth QEP Resources notional amounts and mterest rates

for its interest rate swaps outstandmg as of December 31 2012

Notional amount Type of Contract Maturity

in millions

Year Type of Cortract Index

Total

Voiume
Average price per

unit

Year Type ofContract Index

Natural gas
sales

Natural gas purchases MMBtu

zL
2014 Swap IFNPCR 0.1 3.02

Fixed Rate

Paid

Variable Rate

Received
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QEP Derivative Financial Statement Presentation

The following table presentsthe balance sheet location of QEFs outstanding derivat.ive contracts on gross contract basis as

opposed to the net contract basis presentation in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the related fair values at the balance sheet

dates

Gross asse.t derivative Gross liability derivative

instrumentsfair value instruments fair value

December 31

Balance Sheet line item 2012 2011 2012 2011

in millions in millions

Commodi Fair value of derivative

contracts 4.2 123.5 0.1

AWhjjof4 jj
///////4 ________________________________________

Total derivative instruments 193.9 407.6 7.3 11.7

Current

Interest rate swaps
Fair value of derivative

contracts 2.6
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The effects and location of the change in fair value and settlement of QEPs derivative contracts on the Consolidated Statements

of Operations are summarized in the following tables

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010Derivative instruments not designated as cash flow hedges

Realized gain loss on commodity derivative contracts

QEP Energy

Natural
gas

derivative contracts

Oil derivative contracts

NGL derivative

QEP Field Services

NOL derivat

QEP Mnrketing

Natural

Total realized gain loss on commodity derivative contracts

Tn realized ga sw on cacti contracts

QEP Energy

Natural

Oil derivative contracts

NUL derivative

QEP Field Services

NUL

QEP Marketing

Tatural gas

Total unrealized gain on commodity derivative contracts

Total realized and unrealized gain

Realized gain loss on interest rate swaps

Realized loss on interest rate swaps

Unrealized gain loss on interest rate swaps

Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps

Total realized and unrealized loss on interest rate swaps

vsraptssun tPSs4tn

tnotttraets

380.0 117.7 121.7

in hi Th$üt1

as derivative contracts 37.8 117.7 121.7

29.0

eists

derivative contracts

$t4Uh4
k3vat1yecontratS vi

69.3 117.7 121.7

IttOIn4nY4$$$IdW11tt tx

Gains and losses on derivatives not designated as cash flow hedges are included in earnings in Realized and unrealized

gains on derivative contracts on the Consolidated Statement of Operations

14.4

Total net unrealized gain on derivative contracts

7.4$
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The following table presents the change in the fair value and settlement of QEFs derivative contracts that were designated as

cashflowhedgesin2Oll and2OlO

Location of gain Qoss
December 31

Derivative instruments classified as cash flow hedges recognized in earnings 2012 2011 2010

Commodity derivatives

Gain on derivative instruments for the effective portion of

hedget iized in AOCI

Gain reclassified from AOCI into income for effective

portion of hedge

The Company estimates that the remaining derivative contracts that were outstanding inAOCI at December 312012 with fixed

fair value of $77.6 million after tax will be settled and reclassified from AOCI to the Consolidated Statements of Operations

during the next twelve months

Note 7Restructuring Costs

During the first quarter 2012 QEP began incurring costs related to the closure of its Oklahoma City office and the subsequent

consolidation of its Southern Region operations into single regional office located in Tulsa During the second half of 2012

QEP incurred additional restructuring and reorganization costs related to consolidating various corporate and accounting

functions to the Denver corporate headquarters The creation of one office for QEPs Southern Region as well as consolidation

of corporate and accountmg functions is mtended to mcrease efficiency team-based collaboration and organizational

productivity over the long term As part of the reorganization QEP mcurred and will contmue to mcur costs associated with the

severance retention and relocation of employees additional pension expenses exit costs associated with the termmation of

operating leases arising from office space that will no longer be utilized by the Company and other expenses The Company

currently estimates that the remaining restructuring costs will be incurred during 2013

The following table summarizes by line of business each major type of costs expected to be incurred and the total amounts

recorded General and administrative
expense on the Consolidated Statement of Operations the respective penods

indicated

QEP
QEP Field QEP

Energy Services Marketing Total

in millionsRestructuring costs expected to be incurred

Retention and relocation expense 5.4 0.2 0.2 5.87rr
Total restructuring costs expected to be incurred 9.3 0.2 0.4 9.9

Total restructuring costs recognized in income for the year ended December 31 2012

Retention and relocation expense 3.4 3.4

Total restructuring costs incurred during the year

ended December 31 2012

Accumulated other

comprehensive income 350.8

Oil sales

Gain reclassified from AOCI into income for effective

portion of hedge

1.6

Marketing purchases

8.7

4.3 3.1

6.9 0.1 7.0
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In addition to the costs incurred above during the year ended December 31 2012 the Company recognized curtailment loss of

$2.2 million as part of its pension plans net periodic benefit cost The curtailment loss was result of the Companys restructuring

efforts and termination benefits and is included on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as part of the Companys pension liability For

additional mformation related to the Companys pension plans see Note 11 Employee Benefits The followmg is reconciliation

of the restructuring liability by line of business which is included within Accounts payable and accrued expenses on the

Consolidated Balance sheets

QEP QEP Field QEP
Energy Services Marketing Total

in millions

Costs incurred and charged to expense 6.9 0.1 7.0

BalanceatDecember3l2012 1.0 1.0

Note 8Debt

As of the indicated dates the principal amount of QEPs debt including amounts outstanding under its revolving credit facility

and term loan agreement consisted of the following

December 31

2012 2011

in millions

Term loan due 2017 300.0

1ahsnaI nnieninw 1768

6.80% Senior Notes due 2018 134.0 138.6

flbrt flfr3$S

6.875% Senior Notes due 2021 625.0 625.0

an Ar3tk AMlttnllrvthrs4ns fl ainat
5.25% Senior Notes due 2023 650.0

tà4ttniptttodebt
Less unamortized discount 4.9 5.5os 16c$4

Of the total debt outstanding on December 31 2012 the revolving credit facility due August 25 2016 the term loan due April

18 2017 and the 6.05% Senior Notes due September 2016 will mature within the next five years

Credit Facility

QEPs revolving credit facility agreement which matures in August 2016 provides for loan commitments of $1.5 billion from

group
of financial institutions The credit facility provides for borrowings at short-term interest rates and contains customary

covenants and restnctions The credit facility agreement also contams an accordion provision that would allow for the amount

of the facility to be mcreased to $2 billion and for the matunty to be extended for two additional one year penods with the

agreement of the lenders

During the year ended December 31 2012 QEPs weighted-average interest rate on borrowings from its credit facility was

2.08% At December 31 2012 and 2011 QEP was in compliance with the covenants under the credit agreement At

December 31 2012 there was $690.0 million outstanding and QEP had $4.1 million in letters of credit outstanding under the

credit facility
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Term Loan

During the second quarter of 2012 QEP entered into $300.0 million senior unsecured term loan agreement with group of

financial institutions The term loan provides for borrowings at short-term interest rates and contains covenants restrictions and

interest rates that are substantially the same as the Companyts credit facility The term loan matures in April 2017 and the

maturity date may be extended one year with the agreement of the lenders The proceeds from the term loanwere used to pay
down the credit facility and for general corporate purposes During the year ended December 31 2012 QEPs weighted-

average
interest rate on borrowings from the term loan was 2.05%.At December 31 2012 QEP was in compliance with the

covenants under the term loan credit agreement

Senior Notes

During the first quarter of 2012 QEP completed public offering of $500.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.3 75%

senior notes due in October 2022 The 2022 senior notes were issued atpar Interest on the notes will be paid semi-annually in

April ancPOctober of each year The netproceeds of $493.1 million were used to repay indebtedness under QEPs credit facility

The fmance costs associated with the offering were $6.9 million and were deferred and are being amortized over the life Of the

notes

During the second quarter of 2012 QEP repurchased $6.7 million of its senior notes outstanding QEP recognized loss on

extinguishment of debt from those repurchases and associated write-offs of debt issuance costs discounts and premiums paid of

$0.6 million

During the thirdquarter of 2012 QEP completed public offering of $650.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.25%

senior notes due in May 2023 The notes were issued at par Interest on the notes wilibe paid semi-annually in May and
November of each year The netproceeds of $64L0 million were used.to fund aportion of the 2012 Acquisition as described in

Note Acquisition The costs associated with the offering were $9.0 million and were deferred and are being amortized over

the life of the notes The amortization
expense

related to all oftheCOmpanys deferred finance costs is included in Interest

expense on the Consolidated Statement of Operations

At December 31 2012 the Company had $2221.8 million principal amount of senior notes outstanding with maturities

ranging from September 2016 to May 2023 and coupons ranging from 5.25% to 6.875% The senior notes pay interest semi

annually are unsecured senior obligations ajid rank equally with all of out Other existing and future unsecured and senior

obligations QEP may redeem some or all of its senior notes at any time before their maturity at a.redemption price based on

make-whole amoUnt p1us accrued and unpaid intçrest to the date ofredemption The indenture governing QEPts senior notes

contains customary events of default and covenants that may limit QEPs ability to among other things placeliens on its

property or assets

Note Commitments and Contingencies

QEP is mvolved various commercial and regulatory claims litigaiion and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary

course of its business QEP assesses these claims in an effort to determme the degree of probability and range of possible loss

for potential accrual in its consolidated financial statements In accordance with ASC 450 Contingencies an accrual is

recorded for loss contingency when its occurrence is probable and damages can be reasonably estimated based on the

anticipated most likely outcome or the minimum amount within range of possible outcomes Because legal proceedmgs are

inherently unpredictable and unfavorable resolutions could occur assessing contingencies is highly subjective and requires

judgments about uncertain future events When evaluating contmgencies QEP may be unable to provide meamngful estimate

due to number of factors including the procedural status of the matter in question the presence of complex or novel legal

theones and/or the ongoing discovery and development of information important to the matters QEP regularly reviews

contingencies to determine the adequacy of its accruals and related disclosures The followmg discussion descnbes the nature

of QEPs material loss contingencies
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Environmental Claims

United States ofAmerica QEP Field Services Civil No 208CV167 U.S District Court forUtah filed on February 28 2008

The U.S Environmental Protection Agency EPA alleged that QEP Field Services.f/k/a QUestar Gas Management violated

the Clean Air Act CAA and sought substantial penalties and permanent injunction involving the manner of operation of five

compressor
stations located in the Uinta Basin of eastern Utah On May 16 2012 .QEP Field Services settled this matter and

the parties executed consent decree which was subsequently approved by court order The civil penalty paid to the

government during the third quarter of 2012 was $3.7 million contribution of $0.4 million was paid to trust created by the

Ute Indian Tribe of the Uintah and Ouray Reservation for the implementation of environmental programs for the benefit of

Tribal members The settlement also requires the Company to reduce its emissions by removing certain equipment installing

additional pollution controls and replacing the natural gas powered instrument control systems with compressed air control

systems all of which will require capital expenditures of approximately $2.4 million of which $1.2 million had been spent as

of December 31 2012 QEP Field Services will have continuing operational compliance obligations under the conseit decree at

the affected facilities

In October 2009 the Company received cease and desist order from the U.S Army Corps of Engineers COE to refrain from

unpermitted work resulting in the discharge of dredged and/or fill material into waters of the United States at three sites located

in Caddo and Red River Parishes Louisiana EPA Region has assumed lead responsibility for enforcement of the cease and

desist order and any possible future orders for the removal of unauthorized fills and/or civil penalties under the Clean Water

Act In 2012 the Company completed field audit which identified 112 additional instances affecting approximately 90 acres

where work may have been conducted in violation of the Clean Water Act The Company has disclosed each of these instances

to the EPA under the EPAs Audit Policy to reduce penalties and to the COE The Company is working with the EPA and the

COE to resolve these matters which will require the Company to undertake certain mitigation and permitting activities and

may require the Company to pay monetary penalty At this time QEP is unable to estimate the potential loss related to this

matter but believes it exceeds the $100000 threshold for disclosure of environmental matters

Litigation

Chieftain Royalty Company QEP Energy Company Case No CJ2O1 1-i District Court for the Western District of

Okiahoma This statewide class actiOn was filed on January 202011 on behalf of QEPs Oklahoma royalty owners asserting

various claims for damages related to royalty valuation on all of QEPs Oklahoma wells operated byQEP or from which QEP

marketed gas These claims include breach of contract breach of fiduciary duty fraud unjust enrichment tori ious breach of

contract conspiracy and conversion based generally on asserted improper deduction of post-production costs The Court

certified the class as to the breach of contract breach of fiduciary duty and unjust enrichment claims The parties successfully

mediated the case in January 2013 On February 13 2013 the parties executed Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement the

Chieftain Settlement Agreement providing for cash payment from QEP to the class in the amount of $115.0 million In

consideration for the settlement payment QEP will receive full release of all claims regarding the calculation reporting and

payment of royalties from the sale of natural gas and its constituents for all periods prior to February 28 2013 and all class

members are enjoined from asserting claims related to such royalties As part of the Chieftain Settlement Agreement the parties

also agreed on the methodology for the calculation and payment of future royalties payable by QEP or its successors and

assigns under all class leases for the life of such leases The Court has entered Preliminary OrderApproving Class Action

Settlement During the year ended December 31 2012 QEP recorded a.loss contingency accrual of $115.0 million which is

included in General and administrative expense on the Consolidated Statement of Operations The accrual is included in

Accounts payable and accrued expenses on the ConsolidatedBalance Sheet

Questar Gas Company QEP Field Services Company Civil No 20902969 Third Judicial District Court State of Utah QEP

Field Services former affiliate Questar Gas Company QGC filed this cOmplaint in statecourt in Utah on May 12012

asserting claims for breach of contract breach of implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing for an accounting and

declaratory judgment related to 1993 gathering agreement 1993 Agreement entered when the parties were affiliates Under

the 1993 Agreement QEP Field Services provides gathering services for producing properties developed by former affiliate

Wexpro Company on behalf of QGCs utility ratepayers The core dispute pertains to the annual calculation of the gathering

rate which is based on cost of service concept expressed in the 1993 Agreement and in 1998 amendment The annual

gathering rate has been calculated in the same manner under the contract since it was amended in 1998 without any prior

objection or challenge by QGC Specific monetary damages are not asserted Also on May 2012 QEP Field Services

Company filed legal action against Questar Gas entitled QEP Field Services Company Questar Gas Company in the

Second District Court in Denver County Colorado seeking declaratory judgment relating to its gathering service and charges

under the same agreement
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Commitments

Subsidiaries of QEP have contracted for firm-transportation services with various third-party pipelines Market conditions

drilling activity and competition may prevent full utilization of the contractual capacity In addition QEP has contracts with

third parties who provide drilling services and fractionation contracts Annual payments and the corresponding years for

transportation contracts drilling contracts and fractionation contracts are as follows in millions

Year Amount
n%nr\
Wthtttmfl1HflH$2t /tttflCfl/tttti4C

2014 146.2

2016 107.7

flnt9U n72///n/// \///

After 2017 385.7

QEP rents office
space throughout its

scope
of operations from third-party lessors Rental expense from operating leases

amounted to $7.3 million $5.0 million and $4.5 million during the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively Minimum future payments under the terms of lçng-term operating leases for the Companys primary office

locations are as follows in millions

Year Amount

2014 6.5

Prtte9
nr46h

2016 65

After2Ol7 29.1

Note 10 Share-Based Compensation

QEP issues stock options and restricted shares under its Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan LTSIP and awards performance

based share umts under its Cash Incentive Plan CIP to certam officers employees and non-employee directors QEP

recogmzes expense over time as the stock options restricted shares and performance-based share nmts vest Deferred share-

based compensation is included in additional paid-in cäpitàl in the Consolidated Balance Sheels There were 13.1 million

shares available for future grants under the LTSIP at December 31 2012 Share-based compensation expense is recognized in

General and administrative on the Consolidated Statements of Operations During the year ended December 31 2012 QEP
recognized $25.6 million in total compensation expense related tOshare-based compensation compared to $22.0 million and

$16 million dunng the
years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Stock Options

QEP uses the Black-Scholes-Merton mathematical model to estimate the fair value of stock options awardsat the date of the

grant Fair-value calculations rely upon subjective assumptions used in the mathematiCal model and may not be representative

of future results The Black-Scholes-Merton model is intended for measuring the value of options traded on an exchange The

Company utilizes the simplified method to estimate the expected term of the stock options granted as there is limited

historical exercise data available estimatmg the expected term of the stock options QEP uses historical volatility method to

estimate the fair value of stock options awards and the risk-free interest rate is based on the yield on U.S Treasury strips with

maturities similar to those of the expected term of the stock options The stock options typically vest in equal installments over

three-year period from the grantdate and are exercisable immediately upon vesting through the seventh anniversary of the

grant date

The calculated fair value of options granted and major assumptions used in the model at the date of grant are listed below
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Stock Option Variables

Stock option transactions under the terms of the LTSIP are summarized below

Weighted-

Average

Weighted- Remaining

Options Average Contractual Aggregate

Outstanding Exercise Price Term Intrinsic Value

per share in years in millions

Oiitstatdmg atDeembr 2011 PO694 212
Granted 304660 30.75

Exercised i481
Forfeited

OutstandiigtDecember312Oi2 344 1O
Options Exercisable at December 31 2012 1230843 22.50 2.88 10.3

The total intrinsic value the difference between the market price at the exercise date and the exercise price of options

exercised was $9.6 million $2.7 million and $0.3 million during the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively The Company realized $4.6 million and $0.4 million of income tax benefits for the years ended December 31

2012 and 2011 no income tax benefit realized in 2010 which increased its Additional Paid-in-Capital APIC pool by $5.1

million as of December 31 2012 As of December 31 2012 $2.7 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to stock

options granted under the LTSIP is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of 1.99 years During the
year

ended December 31 2012 QEP issued shares for stock option exercises from its treasury stock During the year end

December 31 2012 QEP received $2.6 million in cash in relation to the exercise of stock options

Restricted Shares

Restricted share grants typically vest in equal installments over three-year period from the grant date The grant date fair

value is determined based on the closing bid price of the Companys common stock on the grant date The total fair value of

restricted stock that vested during the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 was $16.7 million and $11.7 million

respectively with minimal vestings in 2010 The Company realized $0.3 million income tax expense and $1.0 million income

tax benefit for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively and increased the Companys APIC pool by $0.9

million as of December 31 2012 The weighted average grant-date fair value of restricted stock granted during the years was

$30.54 per share $38.50 per share and $28.70 per share for the years
ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

As of December 31 2012 $16.5 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted shares granted under the

LTSIP is expected to be recognized over weighted-average vesting period of 2.09 years

2012

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010

Risk-free interest rate range
0.63% n/a n/a

Wetdaverag nkfree mterest rate 04% 21% 23%

Expected price volatility range
55.9% 56.5% n/a n/a

Wehte-averae epte4prte vol$tht 54%
Expected dividend yield 0.26% 0.21% 1.18%

Expected tenn inyars at the date oganL
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Restricted Weighted-
Shares Average Grant-

Outstanding Date Fair Value

per share

Granted 827986 30.54

Forfeited 85920 32.30

Performance Share Units

The performance share umts cash payouts are dependent upon the Companys total shareholder return compared to group of

its
peers over three-year period The awards are denominated in share units but delivered in cash at the end of the

performance period The weighted average grant-date fair value of the performance share umts granted during the period was

$30 90
per umt and $39 07 per pmt for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively As of December 31 2012

$3.2 million of unrecognized compensation cost classified as liability or the fair market value related to performance shares

granted under the CIP is expected to be recogmzed over weighted average vesting period of 90 years

Transactions mvolvmg performance share umts under the terms of the CIP are summarized below

Performance

Share Weighted-
Units Average Grant-

Outstanding Date Fair Value

Granted 180923 30.90

Forfeited 12713 35.69

ance er

Note 11 Employee Benefits

Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits

The Company maintains closed defined-benefit pension and postretirement medical plans providing coverage to 145 or 16%
of QEPs active employees and to 70 participants that are retired terminated and vested or suspended Pension-plan benefits

are based on the employees age at retirement years of service and highest earnings in consecutive 72 semi-monthly pay

period during the 10 years preceding retirement QEP pension plans include qualified and nonqualifled retirement plan
Postretirement health care benefits and life insurance are provided only to employees hired before January 1997 The

Company pays portion of the costs of health-care benefits determined by an employees years of service The Company has

capped its
exposure to increasing medical care and life insurance costs by paying fixed dollar monthly contribution toward

these retiree benefits The Company contribution is prorated based on an employees years
of service at retirement only those

employees with 25 or more years of service receive the maximum Company contribution At December 31 2012 and 2011
QEPs accumulated benefit obligation exceeded the fair value of plan assets as the plan is unfunded

During the year ended December 31 2012 the Company recognized $2.2 million loss on curtailment as part of its

restructuring efforts and related termination benefits curtailment is recognized immediately when there is significant

reduction in or an elimination of defmed benefit accruals for present employees future services For additional information

regarding the Companys restructuring efforts see Note Restructuring Costs During the year ended December 31 2012 the

Company made contributions of $5.6 million to its funded pension plan and $1.3 million to its unfunded pension plan
Contributions to funded plans increase plan assets while contributions to unfunded plans are used to fund current benefit

payments During 2013 the Company expects to contribute approximately $8.1 million to its funded pension plan

approximately $3.2 million to its unfunded pension plan and approximately $0.2 million for retiree health care and life

insurance benefits The accumulated postretirement benefit obligation for all defined-benefit pension plans was $106.9 million

and $78.3 million at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Transactions involving restricted shares under the terms of the LTSIP are summarized below

103



The following table sets forth changes in the benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets for the Companys pension and

other postretirement benefit plans for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 as well as the frmnded status of the plans

and amounts recognized in the fmancial statements at December 31 2012 and 2011

Pension benefits Other postretirement benefits

2012 2011 2012 2011

in millions

Change in benefit obligation

B1Mt

Service cost 4.0 2.9 0.1 0.1

Mte cost
4flfl

fls4 /flf t\

Change in plan assumptions
8.4 19.6

Bs4fitpay$enls 7fl czrp CI 34n4

Actuarial loss gain 10.8 0.7 0.4 1.0

igatiqn tDef4br1 Z3Ifjth jt
Change inplan assets

Paw vdue of plaitas tntaV3t

Actual gain loss on plan assets 6.9 1.3

Compaijy con nbution4the4Jjjt 77
Benefit payments 2.7 0.2

jJ22d
UnderfUnded status current and long-term 74.4 59.9 6.7 5.9

$iwuntsrde.nir4Ji4d$eL4keetrnn4 3fl

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3.2 1.3 0.2

Othe ng4e ilts nn na jZq47t47sabt7fl4

Total amount recognized in balance sheet 74.4 59.9 6.7 5.9

fls .p 444$ %ft

11hpiSOO 44

rviee
jU pjii

44

if $4

Net actuarial loss gain

Prior se cost

Total amount recognized in AOCI

32.6 18.6 1.3 1.0

34 fl
S4 ________ ___________ ________________

67.7 61.2 4.7 4.8
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The following table sets forth the Companys pension and other postretirement benefit cost and amounts recognized in other

comprehensive income before tax for the respective years ended December 31

Pension benefits Other postretirement benefits

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

Components of net periodic benefit cost

Interest cost 5.1 4.5 2.1 0.3 0.3 0.1

49
Curtailment loss 2.2

trt$ 113

Amortization of actuarial loss 1.9 0.1

44C4 $A1w $1 4$C$ 04

Components recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income nsip c42r jb
Amortization of actuarial loss 1.9 0.1

44nifl9n__ ntiiS

Amortization of prior service cost 5.3 5.3 2.6 0.4 0.3 0.1

a.siQrDr ris p$44 an
Total amount recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income 6.5 17.6 43.6 0.1 0.7 4.2

The estimated portion of net actuarial loss and net prior service cost for the pension plans that will be amortized from AOCI
into net periodic benefit cost in 2013 is$7.3 million of which $5.0 million represents amortization of prior service cost

recognition and the remaining $2.3 million represents amortization of net actuarial losses The estimated portion to be

recognized net penodic cost for other postretirement benefits from AOCI 2013 is $0 million of which $0 million

represents amortization of pnor service cost recogmtion and the remaining $0 million represents amortization of net actuanal

losses

Following are the weighted-average assumptions weighted by the plan level benefit obligation for pension benefits used by

the Company to calculate pension and other postretirement benefit
obligations at December 31 2012 and 2011

Pens jon benefits Other postretirØment benefits

Rate of increase in compensation 3.60% 3.60% 3.60% 4.00%

The discount rate assumptions used by the Company represents an estimate of the intetest rate Ætwhich the pension and other

postretirement obligations could effectively be sealed on the measurement date

Following are the weighted-average assumptions weighted by the net period benefit cost for pension benefits used by the

Company in determining the net periodic pension and other postretirement benefit cost for the years ended December 31

Pension benefits Other postretirement benefits

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

Discount rate 4.38% 5.80% 5.70% 4.70% 5.80% 5.70%

Expected long-term return on plan assets 7.25% 7.50% 7.50% n/a n/a n/a

Rate of increase in compensation 3.60% 3.60% 3.60% 4.00% n/a n/a

In selecting the assumption for expected long-term rate of return on assets the Company considers the average rate of return

expected on the finds to be invested to provide benefits This includes considering the plans asset allocation historical returns

on these types of assets the current economic environment and the expected returns likely to be earned over the life of the plan

No plan assets are expected to be returned to the Company in 2013 Historical heath care cost trend rates are not applicable to

2012 2011 2012 2011
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the Company because the Companys medical costs are capped at fixed amount As the Companys medical costs are capped

at fixed amount the sensitivity to increase and decreases in the health-care inflation rate is not applicable

Plan Assets

The Companys Employee Benefits Committee EBC oversees investment of pension plan assets The EBC uses third-party

asset manager to assist in setting targeted-policy ranges for the allocation of assets among various investment categories The

EBC allocates pension-plan assets among broad asset categories and reviews the asset allocation at least annually Asset-

allocation decisions consider risk and return future-benefit requirements participant growth and other expected cash flows

These characteristics affect the level risk and expected growth of postretirement-benefit assets The EBC uses asset-mix

guidelines that include targets for each asset category return objectives for each asset group and the desired level of

diversification and liquidity These guidelines may change from time to time based on the committees ongoing evaluation of

each plans risk tolerance The EBC estimates an expected overall long-term rate of return on assets by weighting expected

returns of each asset class by its targeted asset allocation percentage Expected return estimates are developed from analysis of

past performance and forecasts of long-term return expectations by third-parties Responsibility for indiyidual security selection

rests with each investment manager who issubject to guidelines specified by the EBC The EBC sets performance objectives

for each investment manager that are expected to bernet over three-year period or complete market cycle whichever is

shorter Performance and risk levels are regularly monitored to confirm policy compliance and that results are withm

expectations Performance for each investment is measured relative to the appropriate index benchmark for its category QEP

securities may be considered for purchase at an investment managers discretion but within limitations prescribed by ERJSA

and other laws There was no direct investment in QEP shares for the periods disclosed The majority of retirement-benefit

assets were invested as follows

Equity securities Domestic equity assets were mostly invested in stock index fund and smaller portion was invested in an

actively managed product with diversification goal representative of the whole U.S stock market Foreign equitysecurities

consisted of developed and emerging market foreign equity assets that were invested in funds that hold diversified portfolio of

common stocks of corporations developed and emergmg foreign countries

Debt securities Investment grade intermediate-term debt assets are invested in funds holding diversified portfolio of debt of

governments corporations and mortgage borrowers with average maturities of to 10 years and investment grade credit

ratings Investment grade long-term debt assets are inyested in diversified portfolio of debt of corporate and non-corporate

issuers with an average maturity of more than ten years and investment grade credit ratings

Although the actual allocation to cash and short-tern investments is minimal less than 1% larger cash allocations may be

held from time to time if deemed necessary for operational aspects of the retirement plan Cash is invested in high-quality

short-term temporary investment fund that purchases investment-grade quality short-term debt issued by governments and

corporations

Commingled funds The EBC made the decision to invest all of the retirement plan assets in commingled funds as these funds

typically have lower expense ratios and are more tax efficient than mutual funds While commingled funds are classified as

Level assets because there are calculations involved in determining the net asset value of the funds the underlying assets can

be traced back to observable asset values and these commingled funds are audited annually by an independent accounting firm

The fair value measurement provision ofASC 820 Fair Value Measurements defines fair value in applying generally accepted

accounting principles as well as establishes framework for measuring fair value and for making disclosures about fair-value

measurements Fair value measurement establishes fair-value hierarchy Level inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date Level inputs are inputs other than quoted

prices included within Level that are observable for an asset either directly or indirectly Level inputs are unobservable

inputs for an asset The Companys Level investments are public investment vehicles valued using the net asset value NAY
of the fund but are considered Level because they are commingled funds The NAY is based on the value of the underlying

assets owned by the fund excluding transaction costs and minus liabilities

The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the fair value of pension and postretirement benefit

assets
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As of December 31 2012
Percentage

Level Level Level Total of total

in millions except percentages

lit

Equity securities

Intemational 16.7 16.7 30%

______________________ ___________ 30%
Total investments 55.3 553 100%

As of December 31 2011
Percentage

Level Level Level Total of total

in millions except percentages

ia11Mt fl9nctat
Equity securities %S ttt1

Intemational 13 13.0 29%t% tttv 4t
_____________ _____________

Total investments 44.2 44.2 100%

The following table presents summary of changes in the fair value of QEPs Level investments

Year ended December 31

2012 2011

in millions

Employer contributions 5.6 14.8

iauAtGaieenr7
tq7

Realized gains 0.7 0.3

W43
Benefits paid 1.3 0.2

Expected Benefit Payments

As of December 31 2012 the following fliture benefit payments are expected to be paid

Postretirement

Pension benefits

in millions

ttt tttS O2

2014
5.3 0.2tV 41tt tttkort e4 ttt

2016 5.6 0.3

4ttt 72 03

2Ol8through2O2l 40.9 1.8

Employee Investment Plan

QEP employees may participate in the QEP Employee Investment Plan EIP defined-contribution plan The EIP allows

eligible employees to purchase shares of QEP common stock or other investments through payroll deduction at the current fair

market value on the transaction date The Company currently contributes an overall match of 100% of employees contribution

up to maximum of 6% of theft qualiing earnings In addition from time-to-time at the discretion of management the
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Company may contribute discretionary portion beyond the company match to employees not in the Companys closed defined

benefit plan The Company recognizes expense equal to its yearly contributions which amounted to $6.4 million $5.8 million

and $4.2 million during the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Note 12 Income Taxes

Details of income tax expenses and deferred income taxes from continuing operations are provided in the following tables The

components of income tax expenses were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Federal income tax expense benefit

Quxent t$6

Deferred
36.5 153.0 172.9

State1ncoMotaxetiensbCnCt

Current
0.7 2.9 4.7

J/f
Total income tax expense

66.5 154.4 167.0

The difference between the statutory federal income tax rate and the Companys effective income tax rate is explained as

follows

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Increase decrease in rate as result of

State meotnetaxesnetSf$tt1

Penalties 0.6%

Returntoprdwsrona4justifleilt
t1UWVY n13% 2K

Noncontrolling interest 0.7% 0.3% 0.2%

Nun-deductible Spm-GffeMt$ Jict
Other

0.6% 0.7% 0.1%

7ffectiye

in millions
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Significant components of the Companys deferred income taxes were as follows

December31

2012 2011

in millions

Commodity price and interest rate derivatives 69.4 147.2its
Deferred tax assets

tA %Y tt.4efl

Employee benefits and compensation costs 47.7 42.9

ttt tc
Bonus and vacation accrual

11.8 10.7

//44
Total deferred tax assets

177.5 291.7
// 4\ nfl 4/fl //p4W 9tt

Balance sheet classification

Deferred income tax liability non-current
1493.5 1484.7

///r
Federal and state income tax NOLs and credits declined significantly at December 312012 compared to December 31 2011
due to an election to capitalize and amortize certam mtangible drillmg costs order to mmimizealtemative mmimum tax The
amounts and expiration dates of operating loss and tax credit carryforwards at December 31 2012

Expiration Dates

U.S altemative minimum tax credit Indefmite 44.4

tQatsttr tttttr
tth rP rt tftCfln tr

Note 13 Discontinued Operations

Wexpros operatmg results pnor to the Spm-off are reflected this Annual Report on Form 10-K as discontmued operations
and summarized in the table below

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions except er share amouths

Income before income taxes
67.4

tMAiÆnt tj4t
Discontinued operations net of income taxes

43.2

Basic from discontinued operations 0.25
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Note 14 Operations by Line of Business

QEPs lines of business include natural gas and oil exploration and production QEP Energy midstream field services QEP

Field Services and marketing QEP Marketing and other The lines of business are managed separately and therefore the

financial information is presented separately due to the distinct differences in the nature of operations of each line of business

among other factors

The following table is summary of operating results for the year ended December 31 2012 by line of business

QEP
QEP QEP Field Marketing QEP

Energy Services Other Eliminations Consolidated

in millions

Revenues

tNk1wlftc4eiantr flJ ü16LS4 Sn 3$Z taga iM
From affiliated customers 119.0 605.7 724.7

fl
t4 43t2 tott4L c4iiK

Operating expenses

324.X/ L4t jOZX $O21 t1ft MW
Lease operating expense

175.8 3.5 172.3

\% nt ça tzh tfl
tico sqtI ae

Gathering processing
and other 86.8 1.2 88.0

L4Sitk$ikWve 74 Sa .14 44$6
Production and property taxes 97.2 6.0 0.2 103.4

.S

Abandonment impairment and exploration

expenses
144.6

144.6

424Mifth idrb ftOS4 1g4841$

Net gain from asset sales 1.2
1.2

p$%3

Realized and unrealized gains losses on

derivative contracts
434.9 8.4 1.4 441.9

tpt 6S 04 2Ci4c 4a9r
Income from unconsolidated affiliates 0.1 6.7 6.8

of debt 545 55 ir

Interest expense 116.8 13.6 124.4 131.9 122.9

1ijSabetbreRomees q4t5 4%f
Income tax provision benefit 71.8 1.0 66.5

jjeiQ.S 2.7

Net income attributable to noncontrolling

interest 3.7 3.7

Identifiable total assets 7436.5 1399.7 272.3 9108.5

.s

Cash capital expenditures 2621.1 164.0 14.6 2799.7

tt4tt%4 $444lt $Rfl

Goodwill 59.5 59.5

The impact of QEPs settled derivative contracts for the year ended December 31 2012 are reflected below operating

loss income

Net loss income attributable to QEP for the year
ended December 31 2012 includes the impact of unrealized gains

and losses from changes in the fair value of the commodity derivative contracts
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The following table is summary of operating results for the year ended December 31 2011 by line of business

QEP
QEP QEP Field Marketing QEP

Energy Services Other Eliminations Consolidated

in millions

Fromunaffiliatedcustomers 2213.2 369.3 576.7 3159.2

Total Revenues 2213.2 465.5 1156.9 676.4 3159.2rt1
Purchased gas oil and NGL expense 506.4 1144.5 573.8 1077.1fl fl fl Jfl

Natural gas oil and NGL transportation and

other handling costs 186.0 9.3 93.1 102.2

General and administrative 98.4 29.2 2.1 6.5 123.2

Depreciation de letion and amortization 707.2 55.7 2.5 765.4

Total operating expenses 14.2 115. 676.4 2o-4.7

__________ __________ ______________________ ___________
Operating income 240.4 259.2 6.3 505.9

Income from unconsolidated affiliates 0.1 5.4 5.5

ªtI
Interest expense 81.9 13.6 93.2 98.7 90.0

Income taxes 57.9 93.4 3.1 154.4

Net income attributable to noncontrolling
interest

3.2 3.2

________ 44
_________

Identifiable assets 5815.7 1312.7 314.3 7442.7

Cash capital expenditures 1295.5 130.1 5.5 1431.1

Goodwill 59.5 59.5

Revenues for the year ended December 31 2011 reflect the impact of QEPs settled derivative contracts See Note
Derivative Contracts for additional information on derivative contract settlements in the year ended December 31
2011

Under hedge accounting realized gains and losses from realized commodity derivative contract settlements were
included in revenues and operating income during the year ended December 31 2011
Under hedge accounting unrealized gains and losses from changes in the fair value were deferred in AOCI during the

year ended December 31 2011
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The following table is summary of operating results for the year
ended December 31 2010 by line of business

QEP
QEP QEP Field Marketing QEP

Energy Services Other Eliminations Consolidated

in millions

From unaffiliated customers 1456.3 245.5 598.8 2300.6

aaz ______________
Total Revenues 1456.3 319.2 1098.5 573.4 2300.6cw

Purchased gas oil and NGL expense
1082.8 493.5 589.3

tt aso
Natural gas oil and NGL transportation and

other handling costs 125.5 71.3 54.2

General and administrative 78.0 31.6 3.9 6.3 107.2

ii Iil IMII
Production and property taxes 77.8 4.4 0.3 82.5

Abandonment impairment and exp1oration

expenses
69.1

69.1

Net gain loss from asset sales 13.7 1.6 12.1

Interest and other income 2.1 0.1 87.2 87.1 2.3

Loss on extinguishment of debt 13.3 13.3

Income before income taxes 323.6 145.9 16.6 452.9

Net income from continuing operations 203.9 94.0 12.0 285.9

Investment in unconsolidated affiliates 44.5 44.5

Accrued capital expenditures 1215.8 268.2 1.9 1485.9tj
..

Revenues for the year ended December 31 2010 reflect the impact of QEPs settled derivative contracts See Note

Derivative Contracts for detailed information on derivative contract settlements in the year ended December 31

2010

Under hedge accounting realized gains and losses from realized commodity derivative contract settlements were

included in revenues and operating income during the year ended December 31 2010

Under hedge accounting unrealized gains and losses from changes in the fair value were deferred in AOCI during the

year
ended December 31 2010
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Note 15 Subsequent Event

On January 2013 QEP announced that its Board of Directors had authorized the formation of midstream Master Limited

Partnership MLP accompanied by the preparation and filing of registration statement with the SEC for an initial public

offenng IPO of common units of the MILP The Company expects to file registration statement with the SEC in the second

quarter of 2013 The MLP is intended to support the growth of QEPs midstream business and is consistent with the Companys
focus on maximizmg shareholder value and mamtaimng balance sheet strength The Company expects to mitially contribute

majority share of its gathering assets in Wyoming North Dakota and Utah to the MLP Subject to final board approval and

market conditions QEP expects to sell mmonty mterest the MLP the IPO and raise approximately $300 million to $400

million in gross proceeds Proceeds from the offermg would be used to fluid ongomg operations to repay debt under the

Companys credit facility and for generaltcorporato purposes Additional detail will be included in the registration statement

See Note Commitments and Contingencies to these consolidated fmancial statements for discussion of the mediation and

resulting execution of the Chiefiam Settlement Agreement February 2013

Note 16 Quarterly Financial Information unaudited

The following table provides summary of unaudited quarterly financial information

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

in millions

2012

Operating income loss 49.5 55.5 12.6 114.7 133.3

1iMMwaMsuIMIamRutMmum1mamwiznik
Net income loss attributable to QEP 155.2 0.7 3.1 23.1 128.3

2011

Jtevelgts 444

Operating income 137.1 168.9 183.4 16.5 505.9

Net income loss attributable to QEP 73.2 92.8 101.5 0.3 267.2
44 41 444 42 2222

Basic EPS from continuing operations 0.42 0.52 0.58 0.01 1.51

Jas

Basic EPS attributable to QEP 0.87$ 0.02 0.13 0.72

Note 17 Supplemental Gas and Oil Information Unaudited

The Company is making the followmg supplemental disclosures of gas and oil producmg activities accordance with ASC
932 Extractive Activities Oil and Gas as amended by ASU 2010 03 011LIF1I Gas Reserve Estimation and Disclosures and

SEC Regulation S-X The Company uses the successful efforts accounting method for its gas and oil exploration and

development activities All properties are located in the United States

Capitalized Costs

The aggregate amounts of costs capitalized for gas and oil exploration and development activities and the related amounts of

accumulated depreciation depletion and amortization are shown below
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December 31

2012 2011

in millions

Unproved properties net 937.9 326.8

Accumulated depreciation depletion and amortization 4258.1 3339.2

Costs Incurred

The costs incurred in gas and oil exploration and development activities are displayed the table below Development costs

incurred reflect accrued capital costs of $81.3 million and ARO additions and revisions of $17.7 million during the year ended

December 31 2012 The costs incurred to advance the development of reserves that were classified as proved undeveloped

were approximately $513.0 million in 2012 $533.6 million in 2011 and $434.2 million in 2010

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions

Property acquisitions

Unpro 4If fH Mj 1j 141

Proved 714.4 0.1 0.2

4ftft

r11
Exploration capitalized and expensed 14.3 36.5 146.4

fl
Total costs incurred 2731.3 1352.4 1244.5

Results of Operations

Following are the results of operations of QEP Energy gas and oil exploration and development activities before allocated

corporate overhead and interest expenses

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millioiis

iy

Production costs 501.1 433.3 330.6

ft $J$ 4ft

Depreciation depletion and amortization 838.0 707.2 592.5

___________________________________ ________________

Total expenses
1483.7 1369.4 992.2

Income tax benefit expense 33.6 119.0 171.8

Revenue for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 reflect the impact of QEFs settled derivative contracts

which during the year ended December 31 2012 are reflected below operating loss income See Note Derivative

Contracts
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Estimated Quantities of Proved Gas and Oil Reserves

Estimates of proved gas and oil reserves have been completed in accordance with professional engineering standards and the

Companys established internal controls which includes the compliance oversight of multi-functional reserves review

committee responsible to the Companys Board of Directors QEP Energys estimated proved reserves have been prepared by

Ryder Scott Company L.P independent reservoir engineering consultants in accordance with the SECs Regulation S-X and

ASC 932 as amended The individuals performing reserves estimates
possess professional qualifications and demonstrate

competency in reserves estimation and evaluation The estimates of proved reserves are inherently imprecise and are

continually subject to revision based on production history results of additional exploration and development price changes

and other factors

All of QEP Energys proved undeveloped reserves at December 31 2012 are scheduled to be developed within five years from

the date such locations were initially disclosed as proved undeveloped reserves except for 200 Bcfe located within the northern

portion of the Companys Pinedale Anticline leasehold in western Wyoming Long-term development of natural gas reserves in

the Pinedale Anticline Project Area PAPA is governed by the Bureau of Land Managements September 2008 Record of

Decision ROD on the Fmal Supplemental Environmental Impact Statements Under the ROD QEP Energy is allowed to dnll

and complete wells year-round in designated concentrated development areas defmed in the PAPA The ROD contains

additional requirements and restrictions on the
sequence

of development of the PAPA which requires the Company to develop

its leasehold from the south to the north These restrictions result in protracted phased development of the PAPA that is beyond

the control of the Company The Company has an ongoing development plan for the PAPA and the financial capability to

continue development in the manner estimated
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As of December 31 2012 all of the Companys oil and gas reserves are attributable to properties within the United Sates

summary of the Companys change in quantities of proved oil and gas reserves for the years ended December 31 2010 2011

and 2012 are as follows

Proved reserves

Balance at December 31 2009 2525.0 29.3 7.7 2746.9

Revisions of previous estimates 46.3 0.7 4.8 78.6

Extensions and discoveries 248.4 26.1 6.1 441.8

Purchase of reserves in place 0.2 0.2

Sale of reserves in place 3.2 0.8 7.8

Production 203.8 3.0 1.2 229.0

Balance at December 312010 2612.9 52.3 17.4 3030.7

Revisions of previous estimates 270.1 1.7 39.3 23.5

Extensions and discoveries 641.9 17.4 22.6 881.6

Purchase of reserves in place 1.9 2.1

Sale of reserves in place 0.8 0.2 1.9

Production 236.4 3.7 2.7 275.2

Balance at December 2011 2749.4 67.5 76.6 3613.8

Revisions of previous estimates 240.6 1.5 0.7 244.8

Extensions and discoveries 330.6 17.3 23.0 572.5

Purchase of reserves in place 32.3 42.0 4.9 313.8

Sale of reserves in place

Production 249.3 6.3 5.3 319.2

Balance at December 312012 2622.4 119.0 99.9 3936.1

Proved developed reserves

Balance at December 31 2009 1178.7 22.4 4.9 1342.8

Balance at December 31 2010 1404.8 25.1 9.3 1611.5

Balance at December 31 2011 1538.3 33.0 38.4 1966.3

Balance at December 31 2012 1531.7 47.4 49.3 2111.9

Proved undeveloped reserves

Balance at December 31 2009 1346.3 6.9 2.8 1404.1

Balance at December 31 2010 1208.1 27.2 8.0 1419.2

Balance at December 31 2011 1211.1 34.6 38.2 1647.5

Balance at December 31 2012 1090.7 71.6 50.6 1824.2

Revisions of previous estimates in 2012 include negative impacts due to 152.4 Bcfe pricing revisions 35.6 Bcfe

performance revisions 27.6 Bcfe operating cost revisions and 29.1 Bcfe other revisions The 152.4 Bcfe pricing revisions

were due to lower natural gas prices which reduced natural gas reserve volumes by 147.7 Bcf Negative performance

revisions were driven by 56.0 Bcfe decrease in Pinedale reserves Pinedale reserve adjustments are based on additional

production history well performance and current pricing causing revised ffiture development plan which includes lower

density drilling in some flank areas resulting in 25 proved undeveloped PUD locations being eliminated Reserve

decreases are partially offset by 35.9 Bcfe positive impact from revisions in the Uinta Basin due to the installation of

the Iron Horse Cryogenic plant to increase liquid recoveries and improved well performance in the Red Wash Mesaverde

field

Extensions and discoveries in 2012 increased proved reserves by 572.5 Bcfe primarily related to extensions and

discoveries in the Uinta Basin of 258.3 Bcfe in Pinedale of 151.6 Bcfe and 162.6 Bcfe in the Williston Basin

Natural Gas

Bcf

Oil NGL

MIvIbbl MMbbl

Natural Gas

Equivalents

Bcfe
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Midcontinent and other Legacy areas of operation combined All of these extensions and discoveries related to new well

completions and the associated new PHD locations as part of the Companys development drilling plans

Purchase of reserves in place primarily relate to the Companys $1.4 billion 2012 Acquisitioti as discussed in Note

Acquisition

Revisions of previous estimates in 2011 include 173.7 Bcfe negative impact due to performance revisions offset by 150.2

Bcfe positive impact from other revisions The 173.7 Bcfe perfonnance revisions were due tothe reduction of natural
gas

volumes of 209.8 Bcf partially offset by anincrease in NGL volumes of 312 MMbbls Which is included in other

revisions The primary reason for the increase in the NGL volumes or 31.8 Mrvlbblsrelates to the completion of the

Blacks Fork II plant and the fee-based processing agreement entered into between QEP Energy and QEP Field Services

for QEP Energys Pinedale production offset by reduction in the dry natural as reserve rŁlªted to shrink of about 59.6

Bcf The remaining performance related reduction in the natural gas reserves was primarily related to the removal of

certain PUP locations in the Haynesville/Cotton Valley area to recognize the 80-acre increased density development plan

Extensions and discoveries increased proved reserves by 881.6 Bcfe primarily related to extensions and discoveries at

the Haynesville/Cotton Valley area 358.8 Bcfe Uinta Basin area 189.1 Bcfe and Pinedale Anticline area 161.2 Bcfe
All of these extensions and discOveries related to new well completions and associatednew PUP locations Estimates of

the quantity of proved reserves from the Companys Prnedale Anticline leasehold rn western Wyoming have changed

substantially over time as result of numerous factors rncludmg but not limited to additional development dnllmg

activity producing well performance and the development and application of reliable technologies The continued

analysis of new data has led to progressive rncreases estimates of original gas-rn-place at Prnedale and to better

understanding of the appropnate well density to maximize the economic recovery of the rn-place volumes With the

application of the amendments ofASC 932 in ASU 2010-03 reserves associated with Prnedale increased density drilling

are included in extensions and discovenes for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 because each new well

drilled recovers incremental reserves that would otherwise be unrecoverable

Standardized Measure of Future Net Cash Flows Relating to Proved Reserves

Future net cash flows were calculated at December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 by applying prices which were the simple

average of the first-of-the-month commodity prices adjusted for location and quality differentials for the 12-months of 2012
2011 and 2010 with consideration of known contractual price changes The pnces used do not include any impact of QEPs

commodity derivatives portfolio The following table provides the average benchmark prices per unit before location and

quality differential adjustments used to calculate the related reserve category

For the year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Average benchmark
price per unit

44
Crude oil pnce per Bbl 94 71 96 19 7943

Year-end operating expenses development costs and appropriate statutory income tax rates with consideration of future tax

rates were used to compute the future net cash flows All cash flows were discounted at 10% to reflect the time value of cash

flows without regard to the risk of specific properties The estimated future costs to develop booked proved undeveloped

reserves are approximately $1042 million in 2013 $871 million in 2014 and $814 million in 2015

The assumptions used to derive the standardized measure of future net cash flows are those required by accounting standards

and do not necessarily reflect the Companys expectations The information may be useful for certain comparative purposes but

should not be solely relied upon in evaluating QEP or its performance Furthermore mformation contained in the following

table may not represent realistic assessments of future cash flows nor should the standardized measure of future net cash flows

be viewed as representative of the current value of the Companys reserves Management believes that the following factors

should be considered when reviewing the information below
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Future commodity prices received for selling the Companys net production will probably differ from those required to

be used in these calculations

Future operating and capital costs will probably differ from those required to be used in these calculations

Future market conditions government regulations and reservoir conditions may cause production rates in future years

to vary significantly from those rates used in the calculations

Future revenues may be subject to different production severance and property taxation rates

The selection of 10% discount rate is arbitrary and may not be reasonable factor in adjusting for future economic

conditions or in considering the risk that is part of realizing future net cash flows from the reserves

The standardized measure of future net cash flows relatmg to proved reserves is presented the table below

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

inmillions

1Ij74$
Future production costs 5027.2 4276.1 3701.8127$8
Future income tax expenses 2269.0 2837.1 1957.6

10% annual discount for estimated timing of net cash flows 3942.0 4411.8 3533.9

The principal sources of change in the standardized measure of future net cash flows relating to proved reserves is presented in

the table below

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions

444 flfl\/fl 4e
4$J

Sales of gas oil and NGL produced during the period net of production costs 892.3 1779.9 1125.7

juptio1 1758

Net change due to extensions discoveries and improved recovery 948.5 1806.4 789.1

Changes due to purchases of reserves in place 831.4 0.1 0.2

Previously estimated development costs incurred during the period 513.0 533.6 434.2

Accretion of discount 499.4 355.4 170.9

87 411Muid
Other 16.1 9.9 11.5

ba
Balance at December 31
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL

DISCLOSURE

As disclosed in the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 17 2011 and its Current Report

on Form 8-KJA filed with the SEC on February 28 2012 the Company changed its independent registered public accountants

effective for the fiscal year ended December 31 2012

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Companys Chief Executive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer have evaluated the effectiveness of the design and

operation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as such term is defmed in Rule 13a- 15e under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended as of December 31 2012 Based on such evaluation such officers have concluded that as

of December 31 2012 the Companys disclosure controls and procedures are designed and effective to ensure that information

required to be included in the Companys reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized

and reported within the time periods specified by the SECs rules and forms and that information required to be disclosed in

reports filed or submitted by the Company under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Companys

management including its principal exeCutive officer and principal fmancial officer or persons performing similar functions as

appropriate to allow timely decisions regardmg required disclosure

In designing and evaluating the Companys disclosure controls and procedures management recognizes that any controls and

procedures no matter how well designed and operated can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance that the

objectives of the control system will be met In addition the design of any control system is based in part upon certain

assumptions about the likelihood of future events and the application ofjudgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of

possible controls and procedures Because of these and other inherent limitations of control systems there is only reasonable

assurance that the Companys controls will succeed in achieving their goals under all potential future conditions

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in the Companys internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended

December 31 2012 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys mtemal control

over financial reporting

Managements Assessment of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Companys management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting

as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15f The Companys internal control over fmancial reporting is process designed under

the supervision of QEPs Chief Executive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer to provide reasotiable assurance regarding the

reliability of fmancial reporting and the preparation of consolidated fmancial statements for external purposes in accordance

with accountmg principles generally accepted the Umted States of America Because of its mherent limitations mternal

control over financial reporting may not detect or prevent misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of the

effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become madequate because of changes in conditions or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or processes may deteriorate

As of December 31 2012 management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over fiiiancial reporting based on the

criteria for effective internal control over fmancial reporting established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommissiOn Based on the assessment management determined

that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on those

criteria Management included in its assessment of internal control over financial reporting all consolidated entities

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the consolidated financial

statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 which is included in the consolidated financial statements in Item of Part II

of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 10 concerning QEPs directors and nominees for directors and other corporate governance

matters will be presented in the Companys definitive Proxy Statement prepared for the solicitation of proxies in connection

with the Companys annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 24 2013 which will be filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission no later than 120 days subsequent to December 31 2012 Proxy Statement and is incorporated by

reference herein

Information about the Companys executive officers can be found in Item of Part in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Information concerning compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange Act will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is

incorporated herein by reference

The Company has Business Ethics and Compliance Policy Ethics Policy that applies to all of its directors officers

including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and employees QEP has posted the Ethics Policy on its

website www.qepres.com Any waiver of the Ethics Policy for executive officers must be approved only by the Companys

Board of Directors QEP will post on its website any amendments to or waivers of the Ethics Policy that apply to executive

officers

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 will be set forth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 will be set forth in the Proxy Statement andis incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVIcEs

The mformation required by Item 14 will be set forth the Proxy Statement and is mcorporated herem by reference

PART 1V

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial statements and financial statement schedules filed as part of this report are listed in the index included in Item

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data ofthisreport

Exhibits The following is list of exhibits required to be filed as part of this report Item 15b
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Amended and Restated Bylaws deemed effective February 14 2013 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No
to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

February 15 2013

Indenture dated 2001 between Questar Market Resources Inc predecessor-in-interest to QEP
Resources Inc and Bank One NA predecessor-m-mterest to Wells Fargo Bank National Association as

Trustee Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No 01 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 13 2001

Officers Certificate setting forth the terms of the Companys 6.05%Notes due 2016 Incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 99 to the Company Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 15 2006

Officers Certificate setting forth the terms of the Companys 80% Notes due 2020 Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 42 to the Companys Current Report on Form filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on September 2009

Officers Certificate dated as of September 12 2012 including form of the Registrants 5.250% Notes due

2023 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No to the Companys Current Report on Form filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 14 2012

Exhibit No Descripti

2.2

3.Z

Separation and Distribution Agreement dated as of June 14 2010 by and between Questar Corporation and

QEP Resources Inc Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No 2.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 16 2010

4.3

4.5

4.7

Officers Jertificate setting forth the terms of the Companys 6.80% Notes due 201 Incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 42 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on April 2008

Indenture dated as of March 2012 between the Company and Fargo Bank National Association as

Trustee Incorporated by reference to Exhibit ito the Companys Current Report on Form filed with the

Securities and Commission On March 2012

4.11

10.2

Term Loan Agreement dated as of April 18 2012 among QEP Resources Inc as borrower Wells Fargo Bank
National Association asadituinistrative agent and the lenders party thereto Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit No 10 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on April 20 2012
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Tax Mailers Agreement dated as of June 14 2010 by and between Questar Corporation and QEP Resources

10.4 Inc Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with

the Securities and Exchane Commission on June 16 2010

10.12

QEP Resources Inc Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No 10.4

to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 16

2010

Amended and RestatedEmployment Agreement dated June 15 2010 by and between QEP Resources Inc

Questar Corporation and Richard Doleshek Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No 10.6 to the Companys

Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 16 2010

QEP Resources Inc 2010 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan adopted June 12 2010 Incorporated by reference

to Exhibit No 10.9 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on June 16 2010

QEP Resources Inc Amended Deferred Compensation Wrap Plan adopted January 28 2013 Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit No 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on January 31 2013

Mr 15$

QEP Resources Inc Form of Nonqualifled Stock Option Agreement for nonquahfled stock options granted to

10.14 certain key executives Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 29 2010

10.6

10.8

10.10

10.16
QEP Resources Inc Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for incentive stock options granted to certain

key executives Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No 103 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed with the Securities and Exchanl Commission on June 29 2010

10 18
QEP Resources Inc Form of Restricted Stock Agreement forrestricted stock granted to certain key executives

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No 10.5 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the

Securities and Commission on June 29 2010

10.20
QEP Resources Inc Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for restricted stock granted to non-employee

directors Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No 10.7 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

with the Secunties and Exchange Commission on June 29 2010

QEP Resources Inc Form of Restricted Units Agreemçnt for restricted Łtock units granted to Mr Keith

10.22 Rattie Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No 10.9 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 29 2010
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Purchase and Sale Agreement dated August 23 2012 by and among QEP Energy Company as purchaser and
Black Hills Exploration and Production Inc Unit Petroleum Company Sundance Energy Inc Highline

10.24 Exploration Inc Houston Energy L.P Nisku Royalty LP Empire Oil Company and Kent Lynch as
sellers Incorporate by reference to Exhibit No 10.2 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 30 2012

12.1 Ratio ofearnings to fixed charges

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company

23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Ernst Young LLP

mdonaa iaetsSIisSjr4ibu4anM$LJ
24 Power of Attorney

31
Certification signed by Richard Doleshek QEP Resources Inc Executive Vice President Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

99.1 Qualifications and Report of Independent Petroleum Engineers and Geologists Ryder Scott Company L.P

tbIQ4S fl

101 .SCH XBRL Schema Document

nfl t1t tfl
A44

101.LAB XBRL Label Linkbase Document

101 .DEF XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

Filed herewith

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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Financial Statement Schedule

owai

QEP RESOURCES INC

Schedule of Valuation and Qualifing Accounts

Beginning Amounts charged credited Deduôiionsfor accounts

Balance expense
written off and other

millions

ifl

Description

Year ended December 31 2012

Al ice for bad debts

Year ended December 31 2011

Allowance for bad debts

Year ended December 31 2010

Ending

Balance

tn
fl \4J4

4fl /fl4/ ////

Ailian3foiVad$S

t4
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on February 22 2013

QEP RESOURCES INC

Registrant

Is/C Stanley

Stanley

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on February 22 2013

Is/C Stanley Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

Stanley Principal Executive Officer

Is Richard Doleshek Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer and

Richard Doleshek Treasurer Principal Financial Officer

Is Kendall Carbone Vice President and Controller

Kendall Carbone
Principal Accounting Officer

Stanley Chairman of the Board Director

Keith Rattie Director

phillips Baker Jr Director

Richard Flury Director

David Trice Director

Robeft McKee III Director

KM Scoggins Director

February 22 2013 By Is Stanley

Stanley Attorney in Fact
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Corporate Information

COMMON STOCK
178.5 million basic shares issued par

value $0.01 per share at Dec 31 2012

Listed on the New York Stock Exchange ticker symbol QEP

SHAREHOLDER RECORDS TRANSFERAND PAYING AGENT

Wells Fargo Bank N.A

Shareowner Services

1110 Centre Pointe Curve Suite 101

Mendota Heights MN 55120-4100

Tel 866-877-6324 toll free

FORM 10-K

QEP Resources Form 10-Kan annual
report

of company operations filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commissionis available online at www.sec.gov or at

www.qepres.com or by calling QEP Investor Relations at 303-405-6665

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report 2012 contains forward-looking statements regarding estimates

of reserves and production and plans and expectations for our business and opera

tions Actual results may differ materially from those anticipated due to many

factors For more information see Forward-Looking
Statements on pages

and

of our Form 10-K included in this report

In filings with the SEC the SEC requires
disclosure of proved reserves and permits

optional disclosure of probable and possible reserves We do not disclose probable

and
possible

reserves in our SEC filings
but do include such reserves in this Annual

Report 2012 We also include in this Annual Report 2012 the term EUR or

estimated ultimate recovery and SEC guidelines strictly prohibit
us from including

such estimates in our SEC filings
EUR as well asestimates of probable and possible

reserves are by their nature more speculative
than estimates of proved reserves and

accordingly are subject to substantially
more risks of actually being realized For

discussion of such risks see our risk factor and reserve
disclosures in the Form 10-K

included in this Annual Report 2012

ANNUAL MEETING
The 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at a.m MDT Friday

May 24 2013 at The Westin Denver Downtown 1672 Lawrence Street Denver

Colorado 80202

ANALYST AND MEDIA CONTACT

Greg Bensen

Director Investor Relations

Tel 303-405-6665

Email greg.bensen@qepres.com

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

glossary
of terms used in this Annual Report 2012 can be found on pages

through of our Form 10-K included in this report

PRINCIPAL OFFICE

QEP Resources

1050 17th Street

Suite 500

Denver CO 80265

Tel 303-672-6900

MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

QEP Energy Company

QEP Field Services Company

QEP Marketing Company

CORPORATE WEB SITE

Corporate information is available online at www.qepres.com

COMPANY CERTIFICATION

In 2012 the company
submitted the annual certification of its chief executive officer

regarding the companys compliance with the New York Stock Exchanges corporate

governance listing
standards pursuant to Section 303A.12a of the NYSE Listed

Company
Manual

OFFICERS

Charles Stanley

Chairman President and CEO QEP Resources

RichardJ Doleshek

Executive Vice President CEO and Treasurer QEP Resources

Jay Neese

Executive Vice President QEP Resources

Austin Murr

Senior Vice President Land and Business Development QEP Energy

Perry Richards

Senior Vice President QEP Field Services

Jim Torgerson

Senior Vice President Operations QEP Energy

Kendall Carbone

Vice President Controller and Chief Accounting Officer QEP Resources

Margo Fiala

Vice President Human Resources QEP Resources

Scott Gutberlet

Vice President Commercial and Technical Services QEP Energy

Abigail Jones

Vice President Compliance and Corporate Secretary QEP Resources

Kevin Peretti

Vice President Engineering
and Operations QEP Field Services

Vincent Rigatti

Vice President New Ventures QEP Energy

Jeffery Tommerup

Vice President Southern Region QEP Energy

Michael Watanabe

Vice President Land QEP Energy

Christopher Woosley

Vice President and General Counsel QEP Resources



Board of Directors

Mr Phillips Baker Jr 53
President chief executive officer and direc

tor Hecla Mining Company former chief

financial officer and chief operating officer

Hecla Qpestar director 20042010 QEP

director since 2010

Dr Scoggins 65
President Colorado School of Mines

retired executive vice president ExxonMobil

Production Co previously held senior

executive positions with Mobil Corp

director Cobalt International Energy and

Laredo Petroleum Holdings Inc Opestar

director 20052010 QEP director since

2010 QEP lead director since 2012

Mr Richard Flury 65
Retired chief executive gas

and
power

BP

plc former chief executive worldwide explo

ration and production Amoco Corp non-

executive chairman Chicago Bridge and

Iron NV and director Callon Petroleum

Co Qpestar director 20022010 QEP
director since 2010

Mr Charles Stanley 54
Chairman of the Board since 2012

president and chief executive officer QEP
former executive vice president and chief

operating officer Qpestar director Hecla

Mining Company Oestar director 2002

2010 QEP director since 2010

Mr Robert McKee III 66
Retired executive vice president exploration

and production Conoco Phillips and

Conoco Corp director Parker Drilling Co

and Post Oak Bank Qestar director

20032010 QEP director since 2010

Mr Keith Rattie 59
Former president and chief executive officer

Qpcstar Corporation non-executive chair

man and director QEP 20102012 non-

executive chairman Qpestar Corporation

director ENSCO International Rockwater

Energy Solutions Inc and Zions First

National Bank QEP director since 2010

Mr David Trice 64
Retired chairman and chief executive officer

Newfield Exploration Company director

New Jersey Resources Corporation

McDermott International Inc Rockwater

Energy Solutions Inc and Crazy Mountain

Brewery LLC QEP director since 2011




